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General Notice No. 1777 of 2019

LEGAL SUPPLEMENT
The undermentioned Proclamation and 

Government Notices are published in the Legal 
Supplement to this number of the Government 
Gazette:

To fix the date of the coming into operation of 
Part VI of the Insolvency Act.

(Proclamation No. 46 of 2019)

The Insolvency (Amendment of Schedule) 
Regulations 2019.

(Government Notice No. 191 of 2019)

Radiation Safety and Nuclear Security (Control 
of Import and Export of Radiation Sources and 
Other Controlled Items) Regulations 2019.

(Government Notice No. 192 of 2019)

The Rodrigues Consumer Protection (Control 
of Price of Taxable and Non-taxable Goods) 
(Amendment No. 27) Regulations 2019.

(Government Notice No. 193 of 2019)

The Carbide of Calcium (Amendment) 
Regulations 2019.

(Government Notice No. 194 of 2019)

The Inflammable Liquids and Substances 
(Amendment) Regulations 2019.

(Government Notice No. 195 of 2019)

The Inflammable Gases (Amendment) 
Regulations 2019.

(Government Notice No. 196 of 2019)

Prime Minister’s Office,
Port Louis. 

This 19th October, 2019.

General Notice No. 1778 of 2019

APPOINTMENT
Commissioners of the Disciplined 

Forces Service Commission
In accordance with the powers vested in him 

by Section 90 of the Constitution, His Excellency 
Mr Paramasivum Pillay VYAPOORY, G.O.S.K., 
Acting President of the Republic has appointed 
the following persons as Commissioners of the 

Disciplined Forces Service Commission for a 
further period of three years with effect from 
17 October 2019:

(i) Mr Deywanund BHOGUN
(ii) Mr Shailendra Kumar Singh DUSOWOTH
(iii) Mr Areff SALAUROO
(iv) Mr Antoine Herve SYDONIE

16 October 2019

The State House
Le Reduit

General Notice No. 1779 of 2019

APPOINTMENT
1. Mr Dharam Dev MANRAJ, G.O.S.K has 

been appointed as Financial Secretary 
in the Ministry of Finance and Economic 
Development on a contractual basis for a 
further period of two years as from 09 October 
2019 on the same terms and conditions.

2. Mr Dharam Dev MANRAJ, G.O.S.K, 
Financial Secretary, Ministry of Finance and 
Economic Development has acted as Secretary 
to Cabinet and Head of the Civil Service from 
26 to 30 August 2019 during the absence on 
mission overseas ofMrN.K. Ballah, G.O.S.K, 
Secretary to Cabinet and Head of the Civil 
Service.

3. Mr Raj Kishore BUNJUN, Deputy Permanent 
Secretary, Ministry of Health and Quality of 
Life has been assigned the duties of Permanent 
Secretary at the Ministry of Health and Quality 
of Life from 03 September to 22 October 2019 
during the absence on leave of Mr D. Kalisetty 
Appadu, Permanent Secretary

4. Ms Marie Joelle Sandrine VALERE, Deputy 
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Youth 
and Sports, has been assigned the duties of 
Pennanent Secretary at the Ministry of Youth 
and Sports from 18 to 26 August 2019 during 
the absence on mission of Mr M. Boodhun, 
Pennanent Secretary.

5. Mr Youdhisteer MUNBODH, Deputy 
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Education 
and Human Resources, Tertiary Education 
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and Scientific Research has been assigned the 
duties of Permanent Secretary at the Ministry 
of Education and Human Resources, Tertiary 
Education and Scientific Research from 24 
July to 16 August 2019 during the absence on 
leave of Mr G. Gukhool, Permanent Secretary.

6. Mrs Shakuntala Devi GUJADHUR- 
NOWBUTH, Deputy Permanent Secretary, 
Ministry of Tourism, has been assigned the 
duties of Permanent Secretary at the Ministry 
of Social Security, National Solidarity and 
Environment and Sustainable Development 
(Social Security and National Solidarity 
Division), from 10 to 21 July 2019 during the 
absence on leave of Mr K. Conhye, Permanent 
Secretary.

7. Mr Fareed Azad Iman CHUTTAN has 
been appointed as Senior Chief Executive in a 
substantive capacity as from 21 August 2019.

8. Mrs Asha DABEESINGH, Deputy 
Permanent Secretary, Prime Minister's Office 
(Cabinet Office) has been assigned the duties 
of Permanent Secretary at the Prime Minister's 
Office (Cabinet Office) from 27 to 31 August 
2019 during the absence on mission abroad of 
Mr Premode Neerunjun, Permanent Secretary.

9. Mr Navindsing JUGMOHUNSING, Deputy 
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Technology, 
Communication and Innovation has been 
assigned the duties of Permanent Secretary at 
the Ministry of Technology, Communication 
and Innovation from 08 to 19 September 2019 
during the absence on mission/leave abroad 
of Mrs Mylavadee Mudaliar, Permanent 
Secretary.

10. Dr (Mrs) Rooba Yanembal MOORGHEN, 
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Housing 
and Lands has been assigned the duties of 
Senior Chief Executive at the Ministry of 
Housing and Lands from 18 to 25 August 
2019 during the absence on mission abroad 
of Mr V. Lutchmeeparsad, Senior Chief 
Executive.

11. Mr Jaganathan Parasivam RANGAN, 
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Foreign 
Affairs, Regional Integration and International 
Trade has been assigned the duties of Secretary 

for Foreign Affairs from 24 August to 02 
September 2019 during the absence on mission 
of Mrs U.C. Dwarka-Canabady, Secretary for 
Foreign Affairs.

12. Mr Jean Daniel Philippe LABONNE, 
Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of 
Ocean Economy, Marine Resources, Fisheries 
and Shipping has been assigned the duties of 
Permanent Secretary at the Ministry of Ocean 
Economy, Marine Resources, Fisheries and 
Shipping from 29 August to 01 September 
2019 and from 04 to 06 September 2019 
during the absence on mission abroad of 
Mr V.K. Daby, Permanent Secretary.

13. Mr Kechan BALGOBIN, Deputy Permanent 
Secretary, Prime Minister’s Office (External 
Communications Division) has been assigned 
the duties of Permanent Secretary at the Prime 
Minister’s Office (External Communications 
Division) from 26 to 30 August 2019 during 
the absence on mission of Ms Maheswaree 
Naraini Madhub, Permanent Secretary

14. Mrs Preeyadarshanee DASSAYE, Deputy 
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Industry, 
Commerce and Consumer Protection 
(Commerce Division) has been assigned the 
duties of Permanent Secretary at the Ministry 
of Industry, Commerce and Consumer 
Protection (Industry Division) from 09 to 
14 September 2019 during the absence on 
mission of Mrs B.F. Abdool Raman-Ahmed, 
Permanent Secretary.

15. Mr Ravi MEETTOOK, Permanent Secretary, 
Ministry of Education and Human Resources, 
Tertiary Education and Scientific Research 
has been assigned the duties of Senior Chief 
Executive at the Ministry of Education and 
Human Resources, Tertiary Education and 
Scientific Research from 22 to 29 September 
2019 during the absence on mission/leave 
abroad of Mr Swaminathan RAGEN, Senior 
Chief Executive.

16. Mrs Zahira Bibi AULADIN- 
AUCKBURALLY, Deputy Permanent 
Secretary, Ministry of Public Infrastructure 
and Land Transport (Public Infrastructure 
Division) has been assigned the duties of 
Permanent Secretary at the Ministry of Public 
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Infrastructure and Land Transport (Public 
Infrastructure Division) up to 13 August 
2019 during the absence on mission of 
Mrs D. Allagapen, Permanent Secretary

RETIREMENT

1. Mr Fareed Azad Iman CHUTTAN, Senior 
Chief Executive, Ministry of Industry, 
Commerce and Consumer Protection 
(Commerce Division) will retire from the 
Service on 18 November 2019, on ground of 
age, in accordance with Section 8(4) of the 
Pensions Act.

OVERSEAS MISSION

1. Mr. Mohammad Irfan ABDOOL
RAHMAN, GOSK, Electoral Commissioner 
left Mauritius on Sunday 22 September 2019 
to participate in the 21st Annual General 
Conference of the Electoral Commissions 
Forum of SADC Countries (ECF SADC) in 
Lilongwe, Malawi. He is expected to be back 
on 26 September 2019.

Date: 15 October 2019

Ministry of Civil Service 
and Administrative Reforms

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 1780 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 6)

Notice is hereby given that I intend to acquire 
compulsorily on behalf of the State of Mauritius 
two (2) portions of land, hereinafter described, 
situate at Quatre Bornes in the district of Plaines 
Wilhems for the public purpose of laying of 
underground utility cables under the Metro 
Express Project.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 1 of an approximate extent of thirty 
seven square metres (37m2) is to be excised from 
of a plot of land of an extent of seven hundred and 
forty nine decimal twenty square metres (749.20m2) 
belonging to JMLS Co.Ltd as evidenced by deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 201706/001636 and 
TV201709/000522 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by surplus of State 
Land.

Towards the South East by former railway line.

Towards the South West Portion No. 2.

Towards the North West by surplus of land 
belonging to JMLS Co.Ltd.

Portion No. 2 of an approximate extent of 
thirteen square metres (13m2) is to be excised from 
a plot of land of an extent of one thousand and fifty 
five decimal twenty two square metres (1055.22m2) 
belonging to JMLS Co.Ltd as evidenced by deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 201706/001636 and 
TV201709/000522 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by Portion No. 1.

Towards the South East by former railway line.

Towards the South West by surplus of land 
belonging to JMLS Co.Ltd.

Towards the North West again by surplus of 
land belonging to JMLS Co.Ltd.

Date: 23/09/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower
Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 1781 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 6)

Notice is hereby given that three (3) portions of 
land situate at Ripailles in the district of Moka are 
likely to be acquired by the State of Mauritius for 
the public purpose of Stabilization and Repair 
Works along Terre Rouge - Verdun - Trianon 
Link Road and Bagatelle - Valentina Link 
Road (M3).

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 430 (Serial No. 430) of an 
approximate extent of two thousand and twenty five 
square metres (2025m2) is to be excised from all 
that remains of nine arpents and thirty three square 
perches (9A 33P) or thirty nine thousand three 
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hundred and eighty and seventy two hundredths 
square metres (39380.72m2) forming part of an 
extent of forty eight thousand two hundred and 
forty four and fifty four hundredths square metres 
(48244.54m2) belonging to (i) Mrs Ww Ajduth 
GHOORAH for 1/16 in usufruct and (ii) Mr Udaye 
Kumar GHOORAH for 1/16 in bare ownership and 
for 15/16 in full ownership as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume TV 5901/14 and is 
bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by State Land [acquired 
for the construction of Terre Rouge - Verdun - 
Trianon Link Road and Bagatelle - Valentina Link 
Road (M3)].

Towards the South East by State Land [acquired 
for the construction of Terre Rouge - Verdun - 
Trianon Link Road and Bagatelle - Valentina Link 
Road (M3)].

Towards the South West by Portion No. 431 
(Serial No.431) hereinafter described

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Portion No.431 (Serial No. 431) of an 
approximate extent of one thousand three 
hundred and thirty five square metres (1335m2) 
is to be excised from all that remains of eleven 
thousand six hundred and twelve and eighty nine 
hundredths square metres (11612.89m2) belonging 
to Heirs Ajduth GHOORAH as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume TV 8676/9 and is 
bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by Portion No. 430 
(Serial No. 430) above described.

Towards the East by State Land [acquired 
for the construction of Terre Rouge - Verdun - 
Trianon Link Road and Bagatelle - Valentina Link 
Road (M3)].

Towards the South West by Portion No.432 
(Serial No.432) hereinafter described.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 432 (Serial No. 432) of an 
approximate extent of three thousand five hundred 
and twenty square metres (3520m2) is to be excised 
from a portion of land being all that remains of 
seventy seven arpents and fifty square perches 
(77A 50P) or thirty two hectares and seven 
thousand one hundred and seventeen square metres 

(32Ha 7117m2) belonging to MON DESERT 
ALMA LTD (Now ENL LAND LIMITED holder 
of a business registration number C06000025) 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 151/190, 22nt 26me terrain and is bounded as 
follows:-

Towards the North East by Portion No. 431 
(Serial No. 431) above described.

Towards the East by State Land [acquired 
for the construction of Terre Rouge - Verdun - 
Trianon Link Road and Bagatelle - Valentina Link 
Road (M3)].

Towards the South by the surplus of land.

Towards the West by the surplus of land.

Date: 30/09/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO
Minister of Housing and Lands

Ebene Tower
Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 1782 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given, that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily a portion of land on behalf 
of the State of Mauritius, hereinafter described, 
located at Trianon in the district of Plaines 
Wilhems for the public purpose of implementing 
the Metro Express Project.

DESCRIPTION

Plot ACQ1 (PIN: 1722270163 - PCR 
12129/2019) of the extent of one hundred and 
thirty two decimal fifty square metres (132.50m2) 
is excised from all that remains of an original plot 
of the extent of eight thousand seven hundred 
and seventy nine decimal twenty square metres 
(8779.20m2) as per title deed, and which extent 
was found after survey to be seven thousand five 
hundred and fifteen square metres (7515m2) - 
(after the excisions of three plots of land of the 
extent of 415.27m2, 145.80m2 and 560m2, sold 
by virtue of TV8683/22, TV201811/000819 and 
TV201705/001306 respectively) - belonging to 
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Mr. Shyam Kumar CHEEKHOOREE born on 
18 May 1955, holding Identity Card Number 
21805554413036 as evidenced by deed registered 
ind transcribed in Volume TV 2035/55 and is 
sounded as follows:-

-Towards the North East, by the plot of land 
Delonging to the State of Mauritius, on forty one 
metres and forty four centimetres (41.44m).

-Towards the South East, by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Shyam Kumar Cheekhooree, on 
five metres and eigty four centimetres (5.84m).

-Towards the South West, again by the 
surplus of land belonging to Mr. Shyam Kumar 
Cheekhooree, on thirty six metres and seventy two 
centimetres (36.72m).

-Towards the North West, by the plot of land 
belonging to the State of Mauritius, on three metres 
and thirty eight centimetres (3.38m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit, referenced 
ACQ/75/000571, drawn up by Mr. Naheed Idbal 
TORABALLY, Government Land Surveyor on 
02.08.2019.

The plan may be inspected by the public at 
the Archives Section on the second floor, at the 
Ministry of Housing and Lands, Plot 52, Ebene 
Tower, Ebene Cybercity during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days 
of the second publication of this Notice in the 
Government Gazette, a written declaration of the 
nature of his interest in the land and of the amount 
and details of his claim for compensation.

Date: 23/09/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower
Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 1783 of 2019

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT 
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given, that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 

Mauritius a right of way over a portion of land, 
hereinafter described, located at Trianon in the 
district of Plaines Wilhems for the public purpose 
of implementing the Metro Express Project.

DESCRIPTION

Plot RW2 (PIN: 1722270164 - PCR 
12130/2019) of the extent of one hundred and 
eighty two decimal fifty square metres (182.50m2) 
forms part of all that remains of an original plot 
of land of the extent of eight thousand seven 
hundred and seventy nine decimal twenty square 
metres (8779.20m2) as per title deed, and which 
extent was found after survey to be seven thousand 
five hundred and fifteen square metres (7515m2) 
- (after the excisions of three plots of land of the 
extent of 415.27m2, 145.80m2 and 560m2, sold 
by virtue of TV 8683/22, TV 201811/000819 and 
TV 201705/001306 respectively) - belonging to 
Mr. Shyam Kumar CHEEKHOOREE bom on 
18 May 1955, and holding Identity Card Number 
C1805554413036 as evidenced by deed registered 
and transcribed in Volume TV 2035/55 and is 
bounded as follows:-

• Towards the North East, partly by the plot 
of land belonging to the State of Mauritius 
and partly by the surplus of land belonging 
to Mr. Shyam Kumar Cheekhooree, on a 
total length measuring fifty six metres and 
seventy centimetres (56.70m).

• Towards the South East, by the surplus 
of land belonging to Mr. Shyam Kumar 
Cheekhooree, on five metres and eigty one 
centimetres (5.81m).

• Towards the South West, again by the 
surplus of land belonging to Mr. Shyam 
Kumar Cheekhooree, on fifty metres and 
sixty six centimetres (50.66m).

• Towards the North West, by the plot of land 
belonging to CHINA UNITED GROUP 
LTD- (being the object of an acquisition 
of a right of way by the State of Mauritius 
and is referred to as Plot RW1 on the plan 
mentioned below), on three metres and 
sixty five centimetres (3.65m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit, referenced 
ACQ/75/000574, drawn up by Mr. Naheed Idbal
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TORABALLY, Government Land Surveyor on 
02.08.2019.

The plan may be inspected by the public at 
the Archives Section on the second floor, at the 
Ministry of Housing and Lands, Plot 52, Ebene 
Tower, Ebene Cybercity during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days 
of the second publication of this Notice in the 
Government Gazette, a written declaration of the 
nature of his interest in the land and of the amount 
and details of his claim for compensation.

Date: 23/09/2019

The Honourable Purmanund JHUGROO 
Minister of Housing and Lands 

Ebene Tower
Ebene

General Notice No. 1784 of 2019

THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF FLACQ

NOTICE
THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF 
GRAND RIVER SOUTH EAST

OCCURRENCE OF VACANCY IN OFFICE

Notice is hereby given that a vacancy has 
occurred for the seat of Mr Jean-Claude Dario 
CASTEL, Nominated Member of The Village 
Council of Grand River South East under Section 
38(b) of the Local Government Act 2011 as 
subsequently amended.

T. NARSINGHEN (Mrs) 
Ag. Chief Executive

District Council Office
Plaine de Gersigny
Flacq

04 September, 2019

General Notice No. 1785 of 2019

COMPOSITION OF THE TRADITIONAL 
MEDICINE BOARD

Notice is hereby given that in accordance 
with Section 3(1) of the Ayurvedic and Other 
Traditional Medicines Act 1989, the Traditional 
Medicine Board for the period September 2019 to 
August 2022 is composed as follows -

(a) Chairperson
Mr Georges Henry JEANNE, Senior Chief 
Executive

(b) The Chief Medical Officer
Dr Sivalingum RAMEN, Ag Director 
General Health Services

(c) The Solicitor General or his representative
Mrs Asha PILLAY-NABABSING, State 
Counsel

(d) A representative of the Prime Minister’s 
Office
Mr Nuvin RAMBARUTH, Assistant 
Permanent Secretary

(e) One registered Medical Practitioner 
appointed by the Minister
Dr Poornanand Rye JOORAWON, 
Ayurvedic Doctor

(f) Persons having knowledge of traditional 
medicine appointed by the Minister
Dr (Mrs) Rhitambhra SOBURRUN- 
GOPAUL, Ayurvedic Doctor
Dr (Mrs) Uzma ZUBAIR, Homeopathic 
Doctor
Dr Nelson Chek Kiong WONG SANG 
WAH, Traditional Chinese Medicine 
Acupuncturist

(g) Members of the public appointed by the 
Minister
Mrs Vidooshi SAULICK SHARMA, 
Educator
Mr Sheik Imran Mohamed ABDOOL, 
Naturopath
Mr Sunyog NAGA, Administrative Officer

Dated this 10th day of October 2019.

Ministry of Health and Quality of Life
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General Notice No. 1786 of 2019

INDEPENDENT COMMISSION AGAINST CORRUPTION 
(ICAC)

(established under Section 19(1) of Prevention of 
Corruption Act 2002 as subsequently 

amendedPoCA 2002)

NOTICE PUBLISHED UNDER SECTION 
56(3)(a) OF (PoCA 2002)

NOTICE is hereby given that, on an application 
made by the Independent Commission Against 
Corruption (ICAC), an Order has been made on 
12th September 2019 by the Honourable Judge at 
Chambers, as follows:-

(a) (i) attaching in the hands of The 
Mauritius Commercial Bank Ltd all 
money and other property due or owing 
or belonging to or held on behalf of 
Mrs Ummabye Cossigny bom Bhageea, 
NID B241170430565 in Savings Account 
No 072590025;

(ii) attaching in the hands of BCP Bank 
(Mauritius) Ltd all money and other 
property due or owing or belonging to 
or held on behalf of Marcel Jean Yves 
Cossigny, NID C2303480500916 in 
Current Account No 00661811000;

(iii) attaching in the hands of The
Mauritius Commercial Bank Ltd all 
money and other property due or owing 
or belonging to or held on behalf of 
Miss Rebecca Lydie Cossigny, NID 
C180399050054E in Savings Account 
No 445471840 save and except for the sum 
of Rs 700,000 pursuant to the Judge’s Order 
dated 28 June 2019 [SCR No.ll8739J;

(b) attaching in the hands of CIEL Limited 
and MCB Registry and Securities 
Ltd all shares and dividends payable 
to Marcel Jean Yves Cossigny, NID 
C2303480500916;

(c) requiring (i) The Mauritius Commercial 
Bank Ltd, (ii) BCP Bank (Mauritius) 
Ltd, (iii) CIEL Limited and (iv) MCB 
Registry and Securities Ltd, within 48 
hours of service of the Order, to declare 
in writing to the Applicant the nature and 

source of all moneys, shares and dividends 
so attached; and

(d) prohibiting (i) The Mauritius 
Commercial Bank Ltd, (ii) BCP Bank 
(Mauritius) Ltd, (iii) CIEL Limited and
(iv) MCB Registry and Securities Ltd 
from transferring, pledging or otherwise 
disposing of the moneys, shares and/or 
dividends so attached respectively, except 
by an Order of the Honourable Judge upon 
good cause shown to his/her satisfaction.

THE said Order has been filed in the Registry 
of the Supreme Court of Mauritius.

THE attention of all banks, financial institutions, 
cash dealers and any other person who may hold 
or be vested with property belonging to or held on 
behalf of the abovenamed person, is hereby drawn 
to the above Order so that they may take note 
thereof and govern themselves accordingly.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Le Reduit, this 14th day of October, 
2019.

Mrs Mahejabeen Chatoo 
of ICAC Headquarters, Reduit Triangle, Moka 

Applicant’s Attorney

General Notice No. 1787 of 2019

INDEPENDENT COMMISSION AGAINST CORRUPTION 
(ICAC)

(established under Section 19(1) of Prevention of 
Corruption Act 2002 as subsequently 

amended PoCA 2002)

NOTICE PUBLISHED UNDER SECTION 
56(3)(a) OF (PoCA 2002)

NOTICE is hereby given that, on an application 
made by the Independent Commission Against 
Corruption (ICAC), an Order has been made on 
20th September 2019 by the Honourable Judge at 
Chambers, as follows:-

(a) attaching in the hands of (i) Jet 
Seven Rental Ltd, (ii) Mrs Desiree 
Veronique Belus, bom Duval, NID 
D150177300365E and (iv) Mrs Marie 
Christelle Isabelle Bibi, born Labonne, 
NID L0510893043056, the apartment 



19 October 2019 4835

being Lot G1 situated at the ground 
floor of Residence Regalia, Avenue 
Radar, Morcellement Safeland, Flic en 
Flac, in the district of Black River, the 
whole morefully described in Vol. 8722 
No 23;

(b) attaching in the hands of Oumeshlall 
Ramsarran, NID R090480400055C, the 
building made in concrete cement under 
slab existing on a portion of land of the 
extent of 150.67m2 situate at Royal Road, 
La Rosa, in the district of Grand Port, the 
whole morefully described in Vol. 7989 
No.6;

(c) requiring (i) Jet Seven Rental Ltd,
(ii) Mrs Desiree Veronique Belus, bom 
Duval and (iv) Mrs Marie Christelle 
Isabelle Bibi, bom Labonne, and 
(v) Oumeshlall Ramsarran, to declare in 
writing to the Applicant, within 48 hours of 
service of the Order, the nature and source 
of the funds used for the purchase of the 
apartment and the building so attached; 
and

(d) prohibiting (i) Jet Seven Rental Ltd,
(ii) Mrs Desiree Veronique Belus, 
bom Duval and (iv) Mrs Marie 
Christelle Isabelle Bibi, bom Labonne, 
NID and (v) Oumeshlall Ramsarran, 
from transferring, pledging or otherwise 
disposing of the properties so attached 
except in such manner as may be specified 
in the Order.

THE said Order has been filed in the Registry 
of the Supreme Court of Mauritius.

THE attention of all banks, financial institutions, 
cash dealers and any other person who may hold 
or be vested with property belonging to or held 
on behalf of the abovenamed persons, is hereby 
drawn to the above Order so that they may take 
note thereof and govern themselves accordingly.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Le Reduit, this 14th day of October, 
2019.

Ms Deepti Nawjee
of ICAC Headquarters, Reduit Triangle, Moka 

Applicant’s Attorney

General Notice No. 1788 of 2019

INDEPENDENT COMMISSION AGAINST CORRUPTION 
(ICAC)

(established under Section 19(1) of Prevention of
Corruption Act 2002 as subsequently 

amended PoCA 2002)

NOTICE PUBLISHED UNDER SECTION 
56(3)(a) OF (PoCA 2002)

NOTICE is hereby given that, on an application 
made by the Independent Commission Against 
Corruption (ICAC), an Order has been made on 
18th September 2019 by the Honourable Judge at 
Chambers, as follows

(A) (a) attaching into the hands of
Keshwin Manish Seewoochurn, 
NID S241186304567E (lessee) 
and CIM Finance Ltd (lessor), 
a motor vehicle of the make 
“Mitsubishi Lancer Evolution” 
bearing registration mark K2410,

(b) attaching into the hands 
of Mrs Carolle Sophie 
Marie Seewoochurn, NID 
M060290300727B (lessee) and 
Showa International Ltd (lessor), 
a motor vehicle of he make 
“Toyota Vitz” bearing registration 
mark K2406,

(B) requiring the abovenamed parties within
48 hours of service of the Order, to declare 
in writing to the Applicant the nature and 
source of purchase of the motor vehicles, 
so attached; and

(C) prohibiting the abovenamed parties 
from transferring, pledging or otherwise 
disposing of the motor vehicles so attached, 
except by an Order of the Honourable 
Judge upon good cause shown to his/her 
satisfaction.

THE said Order has been filed in the Registry 
of the Supreme Court of Mauritius.

THE attention of all banks, financial institutions, 
cash dealers and any other person who may hold 
or be vested with property belonging to or held on 
behalf of the abovenamed person, is hereby drawn
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the above Order so that they may take note Dated at Le Reduit, this 14th day of October,
ereof and govern themselves accordingly. 2019.

Under all legal reservations. Ms Deepti Nawjee 
of ICAC Headquarters, Reduit Triangle, Moka 

Applicant’s Attorney

eneral Notice No. 1789 of 2019

NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF COMPANY FROM REGISTER UNDER SECTION 310(l)(a)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that pursuant to section 309(1) (b) of the Companies Act 2001, the Registrar of 
ompanies intends to remove the following company/ies from the register as there is reason to believe that:

(i) the company has ceased to carry on business and there is no other reason for the company to continue 
in existence; or

(ii) the company has failed to pay its registration fees; or

(iii) the company has not filed its annual return as required under section 223(2)

Objection to the removal, if any, shall be notified to the Registrar in writing not later than 
5 November 2019.

Unless the company satisfies the Registrar by notice in writing that the company is still carrying on 
isiness and there is no other reason for it to continue its existence, the Registrar shall remove the company 
om the register.

'ile No Sub Category Company Registered Address

H28620 GBC2 INTERNATIONAL FITNESS
TRAINING

ST DENIS AND BADEN POWELL STREETS, 
SUITE 315, ST JAMES COURT, PORT LOUIS

Date: 11/10/2019
for Registrar of Companies 

One Cathedral Square, 
Jules Koenig Street, 

Port-Louis.

'eneral Notice No. 1790 of 2019

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 310(l)(c) 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given pursuant to 
action 309(l)(b) of the Companies Act 2001 that 
le companies listed below are to be removed 
om the register as there is reason to believe that 
lese companies have ceased to carry on business 
id there is no other reason for these companies 
> continue in existence/ have failed to pay the 
:gistration fees/ have not filed the annual return 
s required under Section 223(2) of the Act.

Objection, if any, shall be delivered to 

the Registrar of Companies not later than 
13 November 2019.

File No. Name of Company

Cl07467 FINE SAND
(GOLD) LTD

Cl07468 FINE SAND
(WHITE) LTD

Cl07565 ONE WEB LTD

Cl07575 Island Meisters
Company LTD

Registered Office

62B AVENUE 
JOHN KENNEDY 
VACOAS

62b avenue johne 
kennedy vacoas

7 B CHAW1CK 
STREET CUREPIPE

89 RAYMOND
RIVET STREET 
MONT ROCHES
BEAU BASSIN
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File No. Name of Company Registered Office

Cl07591 AU CROISSANT 
DORE LIMITED

116HUGNINRD
ROSEHILL

Cl07637 LDK
CONTRACTING
LTD

LADERCHAND 
ROAD CAMP 
THOREL

Cl07647 LIFESAVING
SERVICES
LIMITED

AVE DES 
ESPADONS MORC 
CHAZAZ ALBION

Cl07739 GNA LAJOIE 
COMPANY LTD

MORC LARCHER 
MALARTIC ROAD 
ROSE HILL

Date: 09/10/2019
Registrar of Companies

One Cathedral Square
Jules Koenig Street

Port Louis

General Notice No. 1791 of 2019

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 310(l)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given pursuant to 
section 309(1 )(b) of the Companies Act 2001 that 
the companies listed below are to be removed 
from the register as there is reason to believe that 
these companies have ceased to carry on business 
and there is no other reason for these companies 
to continue in existence/ have failed to pay the 
registration fees/ have not filed the annual return 
as required under section 223(2) of the Act.

Objection, if any, shall be delivered to the 
Registrar of Companies not later than 19 November 
2019.

File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C12414 G.I.V. LTD. C/O Mrs Patrick
Cambier Le Mome

C13198 ALIRADWA CO LTD 1 Dr Joseph Riviere 
St Port Louis

C13226 TEXTO LTEE C/N Bemardin De St
Pierre And Marjolin
Streets Port Louis

Cl 17809 KEANE TRANSPORT
CO LTD

Savanne Road 
Nouvelle France

Cl 17822 SPACE FACTOR CO
LTD

Royal Road Camp De
Masque

C117858 YAMY'S AVENUE &
CO LTD

Melanie Road
D’Epinay

File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C117865 CARCURE LTD 25, Panchoo Road 
Stanley Rose Hill

Cl 17944 PINKESTREL LTD 32 Dr Joseph Riviere 
Street Port Louis

Cl 17980 Mikachi Electronics
Ltd

Saint Paul (Next To
Cwa)

Cl 18007 Island Bag Limited 19 Avenue L'unite
Monte S Petite
Riviere

Cl18028 JEMIDA HOLDINGS
LTD

Bras D'eauPoste
Lafayette

Cl 18032 SPHERE GARMENTS 
LTD

6 Ave Des Manguier
Quatre Bomes

C118137 RAV MARKETING 
LTD

8 Appayah Lane 
Castel Curepipe Road

C118160 RAYAAN SECURE 
CO LTD

C/O Haulkory 
Atmanandsingh 47A 
Impasse Dansant 
Avenue Berthaud 
Quatre Bomes

Cl 18228 DAY LOGISTICS LTD 209 Tulipes Avenue 
Morcellement 
Beerjeeraz Albion

C122910 OBJECT1F SANTE 
CO LTD

8 Rue Pope Henessy 
ISt Floor Curepipe

Cl22990 JANICE SECURITY
LTD

Edc Housing Estate 
Trou D'eau Douce

C123018 NPL
CONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LTD

71 Ferriere St Appt
69 Stanley Rose Hill

C123088 RB FILMS LTD Plaines De Gersigny
Street Central Flacq
Flacq

C123135 AD MARKETING 
DISTRIBUTION LTD

Avenue Des Nandous 
1A More Sodnac 
Quatre Bomes

C123140 AUTOBIZ LIMITED Virginie Street
Savanne Road 
Nouvelle France

C123182 BEEHARRY 
CONSTRUCTION 
LIMITED

33 Caroline Road 
Vallee Des Pretres 
Port Louis

C123262 MONT MASCAL
INVESTMENT LTD

E 102 Rue Solitaire
Ebene

C123312 AURELIEN CAR Stevenson Road Les
RENTAL LTD Casernes Curepipe

C123333 Gr8
COMMUNICATIONS
LTD

Sunny Hill More Rey
Pointe-Aux-Sables

C123576 VILLA COCO 
BEACH LTD

Residence La
Rochelle Lot 21 
Chemin La Plaine 
Notre Dame
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File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C123762 MADACY LTD Route Royale Flic En
Flac

C123806 DKS FREIGHT 
SERVICES LTD

5-7 Renganaden 
Seeneevassen St Lai 
Wan Chut Bldg 
Port Louis

C123858 STUDIO HANUMAN 
LTD

Allee Brillant Vacoas

Cl23962 EVIEWS FOOD 
LIMITED

6 Avenue Corps De 
Garde Rose Hill

C124035 MISS 
SUPRANATIONAL 
PAGEANT LIMITED

11 Boyragee Lane
Loreto Convent 
Street Curepipe

C124047 SFER Ocean Indien 
Ltee

13 Avenue Des
Geais Sodnac Quatre 
Bomes

C124069 HIMALAYA 
AYURVEDIC CO LTD

Market Road, Eastern 
College Lane Opp 
Eastern College
Central Flacq

Cl24089 GERMANIA LTD 76, Jacmin Street 
Mamode Khan 
Roches Brunes

Cl24096 VANILLA 
PROPERTIES 
LIMITED

Level 3, Ebene House
Hotel Avenue, 33 
Cybercity Ebene, 
72201

C124106 FRESH & SAFE Co.
Ltd

17 Bis Jemmapes 
Port Louis

C124317 V&S GOBARDHAN 
LTD

Avenue Des 
Colombes Mont Ida

Cl24365 EXCLUSIVE WORLD
LTD

Les Casernes
Curepipe

Cl24381 IMOVE AMP LTD 89 Avenue Edgar 
Quirin Phoenix

Cl24424 ASWANI HURKHOO 
CO LTD

Eski Road Pailles
Port Louis

C124449 GNFA Indian Ocean 
Ltd

57 Royal Road Belle 
Etoile Coromandel

C124458 RYV OPERATIONS
LTD

Royal Road Pte Du
Diable Bambous
Virieux

Cl24482 ABDUL RAFAY 
MADINA CO LTD

Professor Hassan 
Rafa Street Phoenix

Cl24499 BLUE LIGHT
INVESTMENT LTD

Cnr Silicon Ave & 
Bank St, 9* Floor, 
Maeva Tower Ebene 
Cybercity, 72201

C124503 Leo's Farm Ltd Cemetry Road Riche
Mare Central Flacq

C124536 GREENWICH 
ALBANY LTD

5IB Cybercity Ebene

File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C124558 Ile-6-Reve Ltee Villa Illona Saint 
Geran Avenue Albion

Cl 24560 MD TOUR LTD Claire Fonds Vacoas
Cl24601 EMERALD 

IMPORTERS & 
DISTRIBUTORS 
COMPANY LTD

Royal Road Phoenix

Cl24681 SURYA FOODS Co
Ltd

Francois Miterand 
Street Flacq Coeur 
De Ville Central 
Flacq

Cl 24682 INTEGRATED 
HOSPITALITY 
SOLUTIONS LTD

297 Palma Road
Quatre Bomes

Cl 24753 VISS BHOYROO &
CO LTD

Graunum Road
Vacoas

Cl 24782 AGHI DECORS 
COMPANY LTD

Mission Cross Road 
Lallmatie

C124792 PNK
MANUFACTURING
CO LTD

Avenue Co-Operative
Nehru Road Quatre 
Bomes

C124812 FRUITYZ LIMITED Petit Verger St Pierre
Cl24869 DAVE CONCIERGE 

& HOSPITALITY 
SERVICES LTD

House No.6 
Clemencia Rd More 
La Cheminee Bel Air

Cl24930 YATACOLTD 28 F Lenepveu Street 
Port Louis

Cl 24941 PIMENTEX LTD Allee Des Mouettes,
22 More Swan
Pereybere

Cl24952 FOUR S FINANCE 
LTD

Cybercity 7th Floor,
Tower 1, Nexteracom
Ebene 72201

Cl24953 FOURS
MANAGEMENT CO
LTD

Cybercity 7th Floor,
Tower 1, Nexteracom
Ebene 72201

Cl24954 FOUR S PROPERTIES 
LTD

Cybercity 7th Floor,
Tower 1, Nexteracom
Ebene 72201

Cl24955 FOURS
CONSTRUCTION
LTD

Cybercity 7th Floor,
Tower 1, Nexteracom
Ebene 72201

Cl24956 FOUR S WEB TV
LTD

Cybercity 7th Floor,
Tower 1, Nexteracom
Ebene 72201

Cl24957 FOUR S LEISURE CO
LTD

Cybercity 7lh Floor,
Tower 1, Nexteracom
Ebene 72201

Cl25029 FOUR S HOLDINGS
LTD

Cybercity 7th Floor,
Tower 1, Nexteracom
Ebene 72201
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File No. Name of Company Registered Office File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C125121 L'ETOILE ET LACLE 12 Intendance Street C126049 JOB LINE SERVICE Petit Paquet Road
LTEE 5th Floor, Belmont LTD Dautal Building

House Port Louis Montagne Blanche
C125131 EASTERN BOAT Eastern Filing Station C126088 SAVEURS Balkan Road,

MAINTENANCE & Royal Road Caroline TROPICALES LTEE Goodlands
SERVICES LTD Bel Air Riviere Seche C126113 Step Up Consulting Ltd Unit 109 Block A The

C125186 EBENE JUNCTION 3rd Floor 38 Royal Junction Business
2 LTD Street Port Louis Hub Calebasses

Cl25220 BOMA GLOBAL La Barrack Road C126136 LE CHATEAU DE Royal Road
LIMITED Riviere Des Anguilles CHAMARELLTEE Chamarel

Cl 25223 SOCIETE PRIVEE DE Lot A69 Lotissement Cl 26237 Voice Communications 7lh Floor Cyber Tower
GERANCE LTEE Le Beau Vallon Beau Limited Wing A Ebene

Vallon Cl26262 TEKBOTIC Parisot Lane Mesnil
C125243 SAFIA BAWREE Royal Road Rose Hill ENTERPRISE LTD

FASHION LTD Cl26292 WONDERFUL 15 Sir Colville
C125394 NAZBRAKE Imam Bacosse DREAM LTD Deverel Residence La

TRADING LTD Sobdar Street 16 Port Cure - Port - Louis
Louis Cl26392 S & F INVESTMENT Comer Ssr & La

C125474 FJZ DESIGNS & Kalimaye Road CO LTD Paix Streets La Paix
CONSTRUCTION Lallmatie Square Port Louis
LTD C126468 MEJ PAYROLL LTD 20 Palmerstone Street

C125691 PARVO LTD Apartment No 8 Mon Phoenix Phoenix
Choisy Court Mon C126491 Psy Services Ltd C/O Kisnasamy
Choisy Mootoo Mariammen

C125738 INCREDIBLE C/O Chrysus Ltd 37, Temple Rd
HOLIDAYS CO LTD Dr Auguste Rouget Cap Malheureux

Street, Port Louis C126514 CLASSIAWEB Toussaint Lane 2’d
Cl25776 YTM BEAUTY SHOP Raquette Road Grand DEVELOPMENT LTD Floor Allock Building

HAIR & CO LTD Bay Vacoas
C125786 BEST DEAL New Mosque Road C126572 JANICE No 7 Edc Housing

CONSTRUCTION CO Chemin Grenier LANDSCAPING LTD Estate Trou D'eau
LTD Douce

Cl25846 SUNZEE TOURS LTD Avenue Dodo 1 C126630 INFOGRAPHIA LTD C/O Jean Michel
Morcellement Jerome Desire
Raflray Coastal Road Pointe

C125856 WATERSPORT 10 Antonio St Port D’Esny Mahebourg
SEEKERS LTD Louis C126683 OCEAN WIDE LTD 21 Karikal St Port

C125912 Quattrovecchi Ltd Suite 208 La Louis
Croisette Grand Bay Cl26689 SPORTS CONCEPTS 5 Villa Du Golf Belle

C125921 HARSHKUNTAL LTD More Plaines De LTD Mare Poste De Flacq
Gersigny Lot 259 Cl26742 HD CONSULT LTD 5 Noelville Street
Central Flacq Curepipe

Cl25923 TANZANITE Bel Etang Camp De Cl26772 Synergie Lithographic C/O Best Choice Ltd
INTERNATIONAL Masque Business Ltd NPF Building Pope
INVESTMENT LTD Hennessy Street Port-

C125941 TRAVENZA TOURS 10-12 Jacinthes Louis
(MAURITIUS) LTD Avenue Quatres C126814 LE MATINAL LTD 34, Avenue Des

Bomes Rosiers Quatre
Cl25992 RUSSIAN Grannum Road Bomes

INVESTMENT Vacoas C126851 Anived Co Ltd Dr Benedict Road
(MAURITIUS) LTD L'esperance Piton
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ile No. Name of Company Registered Office

127028 MAXAR
COMPAGNIE LTEE

B06 Residence
Baillache Montagne
Blanche Montagne
Longue

127084 Gas & Infrastructure
Development Company 
Limited

Care Of Finworx 
International Limited, 
3rd Floor, Barkley 
Wharf, Caudan, Port 
Louis

127386 INFINITE LOOP LTD Boulet Rouge Central
Flacq

:127387 CIVIL ENTERPRISE 
LTD

2 Chebel Road Beau 
Bassin

:127417 SP CONSULTING, 
MARKETING
& TRAINING 
INSTITUTE LTD

Royal Road Moka

: 127464 GENIRA VENTURES 
PRIVATE LIMITED

51 Farquhar Street 
Curepipe Road 
Curepipe

3127508 THINKWEB CO LTD Bois Cheri Road 
Moka

2127589 B&G L1GNALTD C/O Joran
Technologies Ltd 10 
Remy Ollier Street 
Port Louis

C127816 SAB ENTERPRISES 
COMPANY LTD

Block DI3 Daffodil 
Street Residence 
Atlee, Forest Side 
Curepipe

Cl 27937 EDEN VOYAGE
COMPANY LIMITED

Ebene Heights 24
Cybercity Ebene 
72201

Cl 27996 STAR SECURITY
SERVICES LTD

Morcellement 
Dookun Candos 
Qbomes Quatre 
Bomes

C128025 SKR Equine Limited Office 113 2Nd 
Floor Medine Mews 
Chaussee Street 
Port Louis

C128131 ZNS YOUR 
furniture EXPERT 
LTD

Royal Road Union
Park

C128134 HOLIDAY TOURS
LTD

C/O Critanand Atmah
Palma Road Quatre 
Bomes

Cl 28221 DUVlVIER 
enterprise ltd

Lot No.l, 
Morcellement 
Constance Argy 
Central Flacq

C128281 CHIC EADY ltd Royal Road 
Demingham Triolet

File No. Name of Company Registered Office

Cl28294 STAR CHEMICALS 
CO LTD

Rue De Rochecouste
Forest Side Curepipe

C128331 EINAI GREEN LTD 8 Madhoo Lane St 
Jean Quatre Bomes

C128376 DGS SECURITY & 
SERVICES LTD

5 Rue Nicholson 
Vacoas

C128381 ROYAL CASH LTD Clairfonds No 1
Vacoas

Cl28492 GROSS MECHANIC 
& CIVIL WORKS CO 
LTD

C/O Chrysus 
Associates Ltd 2nd 
Floor, 39/41, St 
Georges Street Port 
Louis

Cl 28599 H&A PROPERTY LTD Jemingham Street
Curepipe Road
Curepipe

Cl 28665 THE FIRST 
GUARDIAN LTD

Lislet Geofifroy Street
507, Chancery House
Port Louis

Cl 28765 CNAM CREATION 
LTEE

54 Abbattoir Street
Roche Bois

Cl28895 PRESTIGE
BUSINESS SCHOOL
LTD

Clairfonds Road No 3 
Vacoas

C128955 FABRIC 
WAREHOUSE LTD

C/O Corrine
Grasselli, No. 3 
Residence Zees, Ave 
Des Toutereaux, Flic 
En Flac

C131782 Creditinfo (Mauritius) 
Limited

44 Avenue Des 
Orchidees Quatre 
Bomes

C131842 ENM ENGINEERING
LTD

Avenue Berthaud
Vacoas

C131879 Hydrapearl IO 
Company Limited

Old Mills Road 
Mo Residence 
Appartement 
Pereybere

C131885 MEGA 
DEVELOPMENT 
ASSOCIATES LTD

Becasses Avenue
Sodnac Quatre
Bomes

C131912 PHOENIX COURT 
LTD

18 Floreal Road
Vacoas

C131936 KEEP COOL CLIM 
LTD

13, Avenue De La
Paix Candos Quatre 
Bomes

C131966 ITC CO LTD Cite Road Tyack
Cl 32074 BAIN CONSULTING 

LTD
Becasses Avenue
Sodnac Quatre
Bomes

Cl32075 NOSTALGIC 
BLESSING LTD

Barah Residence
Trois Boutiques
Union - Vale
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File No. Name of Company Registered Office

Cl 32094 THE SECRET 
CAFETARIALTD

C/O Mauritius
Institute Of Education
Reduit Moka

C132113 KHEWANTEE 
RAMKORUN LTD

Riche Mare Central
Flacq Flacq

C132168 AS U WISH EVENTS 
PRODUCTION LTD

Block D-19 Palm
Court, Palma Quatre 
Bomes

C132179 DESTINY FISHING
LIMITED

C/0 Rhumerie De 
Chamarel, Royal 
Road Chamarel, 
90408

Cl 32240 EFFI SUPPLY LTD 5 E Francois Street 
Flat Ganesh Rose Hill

Cl 32367 PRESTIGE
CONSULTANCY LTD

Clairfonds Road No 3
Vacoas

Cl 32390 FAST797&COLTD Dr Roux Residence 
Montmartre Rose Hill

C132392 DELIBISK LTD Village Council Road
Petit Raffray

Cl 32439 Yoga House Ltd Allee des Lauriers 
Pointe aux 
Cannoniers

Cl 32452 KOP TOURS LTD Royal Road Tyack
Tyack

Cl 32490 RYAN-ALICE CO. 
LTD

44, M.Gandhi Lane 
Trefles, Rose Hill

Cl 32643 JMD PRINTING 
SOLUTION LTD

6 Belle Rose Avenue
Quatre Bomes

Cl 32668 CLICK-IT SERVICES 
LTD

Kalimaye Road La 
Rosa New Grove

Cl 32693 TC PRIVATE CLUB
LTD

Circle Square 
Forbach

Cl32700 Baz Chic Ltd 57 Ave L Conte D 
Lisle Quatre Bomes

Cl 32726 QUINCAILLERIE 
STAR L'OCEAN LTEE

Royal Road 16cmc 
Mille Coriolis Road 
Forest-Side

Cl 32734 CAP TENNIS LTD 5A Celadon Route
Cotiere Azuri Haute
Rive

C132788 Summerside Limited Prince Of Wales
Street Cinema Casse
Triolet

Cl 32848 GENESIS STUDIO
LTEE

No 8 Tranquille
Avenue Vacoas

C132891 KA-DEERIMPEX
LTD

School Lane Grand 
Baie

C132892 ENTREPRISE
VITALE
TORRICELLALTEE

Baie Du Tombeau Rd 
Le Goulet Baie Du 
Tombeau

File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C132910 POWER GUARD LTD 37 Mon Desir Vacoas

Date: 15/10/2019

Registrar of Companies 
One Cathedral Square, 

Jules Koenig Street, 
Port-Louis.

General Notice No. 1792 of 2019

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 310(l)(c) 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given pursuant to 
section 309(l)(b) of the Companies Act 2001 that 
the companies listed below are to be removed 
from the register as there is reason to believe that 
these companies have ceased to carry on business 
and there is no other reason for these companies 
to continue in existence/ have failed to pay the 
registration fees/ have not filed the annual return 
as required under Section 223(2) of the Act.

Objection, if any, shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies not later than 
08 November 2019.

AUX SABLES

File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C10108 DIALOGUE LTEE C/O CATHERINE 
MERVEN RICHE EN 
EAU ST HUBERT

C097185 LILI
DISTRIBUTORS CO
LTD

18 HUGNIN ROAD
ROSE HILL.

C097366 FORSIGHT
ENGINEERING
SERVICES CO LTD

MELLE JEANNE
GOODLANDS

C097383 M.B VIGNESH
ENTERPRISE LTD

82 EDC RIAMBAL

C097417 PMV Refrigeration 
Spare Parts Co Ltd

AVENUE
L’lNDISCRET
ALBION

C097587 CLIQUE
PHOTOGRAPHY
(MAURITIUS) LTD

2 POIVRE AVE 
Q BORNES

C097702 Bluenet Marketing 
Ltd

AVENUE TECOMA, 
MORC REY POINTE
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File No. Name of Company Registered Office File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C097888 L. Pasteur 3 LOUIS PASTEUR C099952 JULMI LTD 1F2 MOORGATE
Commercial Ltd PORT LOUIS HOUSE SIR W

NEWTON ST
C097957 AG Fiduciary MOUNT ORY PORT LOUIS

Solutions Limited ROAD 11AMOKA
BUSINESS CENTRE C099963 MANSTA TRADE ROYAL ROAD MON
MOKA LTD DESIR VACOAS

C097960 GRANINDECO LTD RIVIERE BAPTISTE C100164 Excel Contractor Co C/O MARIMOOTOO
ROAD ROSELYNE Ltd ALIAMBEN, NO. 10
COTTAGE SAINT AVENUE TULIP ST-
PIERRE PIERRE

C098075 Copper and Spice Co
Ltd

SILVER CLOUDS 
APPTS KING

C100174 AUTOGRAPH LTD 15 EUGENE 
SERRET STREET

GEORGE AVE ROSE HILL

UBIQUITOUS LTD

FLOREAL

C/O JEAN PIERRE

C100214 SAFIR FOOTWEAR 
CO LTD

4 CARPENTER 
LANE MALAKOFF

C098493

Cl00279

ST PORT LOUIS

ROBERT EDWARD
HART Q BORNES

TOSTEE ROUTE DU
VIEUX MOULIN 
PEREYBERE 23

Kadelec Co. Ltd

STEIN ST
BEAU BASSIN Cl00428 Griitli Ltee AVENUE 

PALMIERS
C098566 PromoMu Ltd 23 STEIN ST CAMP GARREAU

BEAU BASSIN CENTRAL FLACQ

C098671 N S POISSON CLAIRFONDS NO3 Cl00431 Geranium Tours ROYAL ROAD
FRAISCOLTD PHOENIX Pointe Aux POINTE AUX

Canonniers Co Ltd CANONNIERS
C098682 PATEJACK LTD EBENE WAY GRAND-BAIE

COMMERCIAL
CENTRE EBENE Cl00465 LD Distribution Ltd ROYALROAD 

CHATEAU
C098780 Clamshell Limited ILOT BRANCH BENARES RIVIERE

ROAD D’EPINAY DES ANGUILLES

C098803 NuevoTech Solutions B17 HAVEN HOUSE Cl 00534 RAM & SAM CO C/O MR '
Ltd. SSR AVENUE Q LTD RAMSEWAK

BORNES HEMRAJ ROYAL 
ROAD TERRE

C098804 Travel Retail B17 HAVEN ROUGE
Synergies Ltd. HOUSE SSR AVE Q

BORNES C100818 ATLANTIC 36 DR SUN YAT
MARINE & CARGO SEN STS

C098937 K.O.I.A Ltee ROYAL ROAD 
CHEMIN 20 PIEDS

INSPECTION LTD PORT LOUIS

PEREYBERE Cl00826 BEL PIEDI & CO 64 DR
LTD BEAUGEARD

C099006 Nurodeli Ltd C/O Chrysus Ltd 37, PORT LOUIS
Dr Auguste Rouget 
Street, Port Louis Cl00859 New Voice Mobile CORNER 41

Ltd PAMPLEMOUSSES
C099057 Perye Properties AVENUE VICTOIRE &AMBROISINE

Agency Ltd BEL AIR RIVIERE STS PORT LOUIS
SECHE

C101059 LINLEY TRITON MORCELLEMENT
C099342 SOLUTEC 148 ALLEE LTD COOMBES LES

EQUIPMENT BRILLANT CASTEL CASERNES
LEASING LTD PHOENIX CUREPIPE
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PORT LOUIS

File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C101068 OceanTex Ltd BADAMIER ROAD 
CALEBASSES

C101360 ARD Petrol Services
Limited

64 NICOLAY ROAD
PORT LOUIS

C101375 MON CHAMPLAIN 
LTEE

188 ROYAL ROAD 
BEAU BASSIN

C101430 F&RL SCRAP 
METAL CO LTD

DINAH ST 
STANLEY
ROSE HILL

C101556 IMAGE CONCEPT 
LTD

ROSHAN ROAD 
PAILLES

C101605 PACIFIC
TRANSPORT CO
LTD

ROYAL ROAD
LESSUR
SEBASTOPOL

C101632 QSS OCEAN 
INDIEN LTD

12 FRERE FELIX 
DE VALOIS ST

Date: 04/10/2019
Registrar of Companies

One Cathedral Square
Jules Koenig Street 

Port Louis

General Notice No. 1793 of 2019

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 310(l)(c) 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given pursuant to 
section 309(1 )(b) of the Companies Act 2001 that 
the companies listed below are to be removed 
from the register as there is reason to believe that 
these companies have ceased to carry on business 
and there is no other reason for these companies 
to continue in existence/ have failed to pay the 
registration fees/ have not filed the annual return 
as required under Section 223(2) of the Act.

Objection, if any, shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies not later than 
15 November 2019.

File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C110681 IL S AGIATTORE
ENTERPRISE LTD

QUEEN ELIZABETH
RD 7EME MILE 
TRIOLET

File No. Name of Company Registered Office

Cl 10752 BAZANE Ltee 5TH FLOOR, C
& R COURT, 49, 
LABOURDONNAIS 
STREET,
PORT LOUIS

Cl 10769 KAPADIA MOBILE 
LTD

LOTN1 IMMEUBLE 
TOORAWA SIR 
SEEWRAMGOOLAM 
ST PORT LOUIS

Cl 10776 Al Nizam Co. Ltd 39 RAMLOCHUN 
LALLAH STREET 
(EX FARQUHAR 
STREET), CUREPIPE

Cl 10987 PIPELINE SURF
SHOP LTD

SCORE BUILDING
COASTAL ROAD 
TOMBEAU BAY

Cl 10988 J-BAY SURF SHOP
LTD

SCORE BUILDING 
COASTAL ROAD 
TOMBEAU BAY

Cl 11024 SOUL SURF SHOP 
LTD

SCORE BUILDING 
COASTAL RD 
TOMBEAU BAY

C111266 FACODIS LTD C/O MR DEWIT
ROBERT H.M, 260 
BARACUDA DRIVE 
TROU AUX BICHES

Cl12003 OPTISENSE LTD MORCELLEMENT 
BHEENICK TELFAIR 
MOKA

Cl12090 KS Bags Co Ltd CAMP FANNY 
CHEMIN GRENIER

C112190 Raphael Consultancy 
Ltd

4TH FLOOR, POPE 
HENESSY TOWER, 
POPE HENESSY 
STREET PORT LOUIS

Cl 12372 Global Incorp 
Limited

OFFICE 113, 2ND
FLOOR MEDINE 
NEWS CHAUSEE ST

Cl 12470 ZONNEBLOEM Ltd C/O PALM BEACH 
CAFE ROYAL ROAD 
PEREYBERE

C112513 Krigeeja Ltd 212 AVE DES 
PEUPLIERS 
RESIDENCE ST 
JACQUES FLIC EN 
FLAC

Cl12527 Anjalay The Movie
Ltd

2 Avenue Poivre, 
Quatre Bomes
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File No. Name of Company Registered Office File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C112567 TWIST AND SAINT ANTOINE C113419 HOLIDAYS C/O POORUN
SHOUT LTD SUGAR ESTATE EVERYDAY COM. KOOLWANT 33

GOODLANDS LTD. SOLFERINO NO 3
VACOAS

C112582 RK BON ESPOIR ROAD
MobilEverywhere RIVIERE DES C113638 MARANTON c/o PlusQo Solutions
Ltd CREOLES INVESTMENTS Ltd Mahant Kabir

LIMITED Street, Mahant Kabir
Cl 12688 Jefresa Co Ltd ANSE AUX ANGLAIS Lane 1 Vacoas

RODRIGUES
Cl 13674 NETQUEST LTD 105, CRETIN

Cl 12744 NORTHERN NORTHERN AVENUE CAMP
CREATIVA BOUNDARY LEVIEUX ROSE
LIMITED QUATRE BORNES HILL

C112756 HEALTHY DOGS ROYALRD C113831 TOYESH FRUITS CAROLINE ROAD
FOOD LTD PAMPLEMOUSSES AND FOODS VALLEE DES

VIS A VIS CEB COMPANY PRETRES PORT
(MAISON DE LIMITED LOUIS
MATELAS) Cl 14046 One Ocean Property 2ND FLOOR SUITE

Cl 12792 DYNATRADE SEENEEVASSEN Developers Ltd 2IJ RAFFLES TOWER
GENERAL ROAD 19 CYBERCITY
TRADING DERNINGHAM EBEE
COMPANY LTD.

Valliere Ltd

TRIOLET

VILLA OASIS

C114145 ONVGO LTD GONGAH LANE 
BELLE ROSECl 12979 ROSE HILLAVENUE DES

DAHLIAS C114194 MONT OREB LEVEL 4, MAX
MORCELLEMENT BUNGALOWS LTD. TOWER JUMMAH
BEERJEERAZ MOSQUE STREET
ALBION PORT LOUIS

C113038 LD AUTOPARTS ROYAL ROAD Cl 14201 ORASOFT Co LTD LE PARKLANE
DISTRIBUTION CHATEAU BENARES AVENUE BUSWELL
LTD RIVIERE DES QUATRE BORNES

AINGUILLES C114291 THREE BLIND C/O BELVEDERE
C113188 MELDRUM PLACE 15 SIR WILLIAM MICE LIMITED MANAGEMENT

CO LTD NEWTON ST LIMITED 7A, 7TH
CUREPIPE FLOOR EBENE

MEWS 57 EBENE
Cl 13234 LFDC TRADING CHEMIN 20 PIEDS, CYBERCITY,EBENE

CO LTD PEREYBERE
Cl14344 Little Sweet Hearts 21 Marcel Ducasse

Cl 13246 J.BOUCARY DODOS STREET, Co Ltd Street Beau Bassin
DISTRIBUTION MORC.ZENITH,
LTD TOMBEAU BAY C114382 M.EMAMDEEN ROYAL ROAD

SCAFFOLDING IMPASSE
C113279 VR PUBLICATIONS EXCEL RD, TRES & PAINTING RAMKISSOON

LTD BON NO. 1, VACOAS ENTERPRISE CO. SURINAM

Cl 13350 TURQUOISE C/O LE PETIT
LTD

COTTAGE LTD PRINCE ROYAL C114417 NEW ARC 7 CROISEE TROU
ROAD MONT OREB, SERVICES LTD D’EAU DOUCE
PEREYBERE C114621 CITY ALUMINIUM LA BRASSERIE

C113416 VISION & HAJEE HALAMAN CO LTD ROAD CUREPIPE
CULTURE EVENT STREET PLAISANCE Cl14650 HG Arts Ltd LAPEYROUSEPRODUCTION CO
LTD

ROSE HILL AVENUE BELLE 
ROSE ROSE HILL
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File No. Name of Company Registered Office File No. Name of Company Registered Office

Cl 14673 ROYAL JOHN KENNEDY Cl 15368 PARTNERS 12 AVENUE DE
ENGINEERING AVE 1ST FLOOR PRINTING & LA PAIX CANDOS
AND PADARUTH STATIONERY LTD VACOAS
ARCHITECTURE 
LTD

COMPLEX VACOAS
Cl 15428 MANSUKATMA VALTON RD LONG

UNITED LTD MOUNTAIN
Cl14720 PURE KNITWEAR ROYAL ROAD

LTD MAPOU LECLEZIO C115527 First ME-A POPE HENNESSY
GOODLANDS Resources Ltd 4TH FLOOR

HENNESSY TOWER
C114881 DB CHANGE CHAUSSEE C/O PORT LOUIS

COMPANY LTD DEVELOPMENT
BANK OF C115531 ENDLESS AVENUE SODNAC
MAURITIUS PORT LOGISTICS SODNAC QUATRE
LOUIS COMPANY LTD BORNES

Cl14998 Y & Z MOORADUN 100 LA PAIX STREET C115687 INTERACTIVE 30 BANK ROAD
& CO LTD PORT LOUIS BUSINESS 

SOLUTIONS
GOODLANDS

C115114 BLISSFUL Ebene Tower- Suite LIMITED
CONCEPTLTD 14 Ebene Cybercity,

72201 Ebene Tower C115714 THE BIG NEAR MOSQUE
Ebene WATERFUN CO ROAD TROU D’EAU

LTD DOUCE
C115181 GROW GREEN CIRCONSTANCE

FERTILIZERS LTD. SAINT PIERRE Cl15775 LEXKRON LTD AVE DES VERGUES
GLEN PARK

C115184 RESTAURANT LE ROYAL RD ARCADE VACOAS
BOIS NOIR LTD NENUPHAR 

FLIC EN FLAC C115787 MIRORA LTD ST JEAN ROAD 
DISCOVERY

C115189 SAFE DEVICE HOLLYHOCK LA HOUSE 2ND FLOOR
COMPANY TOUR KOEWIG LES QUATRE BORNES
LIMITED COQUILLAGE NHDC 

FO2 POINTE AUX C115913 LACHARMANTE NO. 16 CAMP
SABLES LIMITED BENOIT PETITE

RIVIERE PETITE
Cl 15209 GLORY TRAVEL MAHOO LANE RIVIERE

LTD PLAINE MAGNIEN

C115211 HPO SERVICES 44 AVE DES Date: 11/10/2019
LIMITED ORCHIDEES 

QUATRE BORNES
Registrar of Companies

One Cathedral Square
Jules Koenig Street

Port Louis

General Notice No. 1794 of 2019

NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF COMPANY FROM REGISTER UNDER SECTION 310(l)(a) 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given pursuant to section 309(1 )(b) of the Companies Act 2001 that the companies listed 
below are to be removed from the register as there is reason to believe that these companies have ceased to 
carry on business and there is no other reason for these companies to continue in existence/ have failed to 
pay the registration fees/ have not filed the annual return as required under section 223(2) of the Act.

Objection, if any, shall be delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later than 05 November 2019.
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File No Name of Company

C066140 SHAFICK EXECUTIVE SECURITY AGENCY LTD

C066338 AGAM MULTI ENTERPRISES CO LTD

C066348 Hakenkreuz Informatics Co Ltd

C067445 Global Logistics Solutions Ltd

C067601 S.O.S PRIDE CO LTD

C067701 OCTAGON ENGINEERING
COMPANY LIMITED

C067731 PINUCCIA CO LTD

C068741 MAXGELATO LTD

C068783 Scorpion Entertainment LTD

C069514 D.l.P.C & CO LTD

C069533 SKAN COMPANY LTD

C069716 BricoLand Ltd

C069953 KRESH CO LTD

C070408 SUN VISION CO LTD

C070494 PALANGRIERS (ILE MAURICE) LIMITEE

C070638 Resicent - one Ltd

C070640 Resicent - two Ltd

C070897 LAKAZ DELUX PROPERTY LTD

C071062 CAT CLEANING SERVICES LTD

C071690 D-FLOOR LIMITED

C071875 DEEMZILA LTD

C072011 Soc K. Jaddoo & Sons Ltd

C072080 EYECITY LTD

C072639 AUTO PALACE CO LTD

C072721 Tattoo Shop Ltd

Registered Office Address Of Company

8B Me Irvine Street Beau Bassin Mauritius

Royal Road, Long Mountain Mauritius

Royal Road Plaine Des Papayes

2nd Floor, United Docks Building New Caudan 
Road Port Louis
Domaine Du Moulin Saint Antoine Goodlands 
Mauritius
Royal Road 8th Mile Triolet Mauritius

39 George Guibert Street Floreal

Hibiscus Way Pointe Aux Canonniers

Allee Des Manguiers, Pailles Mauritius

Chemin Vingt Pieds Harchets Pereybere

Royal Road Petite Riviere Mauritius

140 Ollier Ave Quatre Bomes Mauritius

32 Trotter St Beau Bassin Mauritius

Lail Bahadoor Shastri Road Candos
Quatre Bomes
C/O Pelagil Process Ltd Quay C, Harbour
Peninsula
Port Louis Mauritius
Appt 21 Residence Du Platane Georges
Guibert Ave Floreal Mauritius
Appt 21, Residence Du Platane Georges
Guibert Ave Floreal Mauritius
Royal Rd Grand Gaube Mauritius

Bk C27 Residence Mhc Roches Brunes
Rose Hill Mauritius
Royal Road (Near J.kalachand) 
Pamplemousses
Ave Perdrix 2 More Guibies Pailles Mauritius

Royal Road Rose Belle Mauritius

65 I Sainte Marie Street Sainte Croix
Port Louis
151 Vblcy De Senneville St Camp Chapelon 
Pailles Mauritius
Lot No 13,Oasis Complex Coastal Road
Flic En Flac C/O Mr Clifford Ladouce
Mauritius
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C072996 UN-LOCK YOUR BEAUTY CO LTD C/O Soonainah Moheetah Ramcharan 
Ariane Street Roche Brunes Mauritius

C073231 HONEY BEE'S CO LTD 102 Belle Rose Ave Quatre Bomes Mauritius

C073305 S.E.B.P CO LTD Avrillon Lane Curepipe C/O Mr Nayna

C073465 ACCESS LOGISTICS (MAURITIUS) LIMITED. 30 Louis Pasteur Street 2nd Floor
Shehnaz Tower Port Louis

C073541 EYEDYACOLTD Temple Road Belle Vue Maurel Mauritius

C073728 THUNNAN CREATIONS LTD Royal Road Poste De Flacq

C073762 TANG DISTRIBUTIVE RODRIGUES LTD Victoria St Port Mathurin Rodrigues Mauritius

C074013 H. I. B Company Limited 7 Rue Maharatta St Port Louis Mauritius

C074236 SALAZAR TRAVEL LIMITED Royal Road Grand Bay

C074313 Fine Construction Co. Ltd 10 Hajee Issac Daureeawoo St Port Louis 
Mauritius

C074415 SACTEX CO LTD 12 Conal St Beau Bassin Mauritius

C074540 ELAURA LIMITEE Gidson Road Floreal

C075051 JET SKI VILLAGE (ILE MAURICE) LTD Carangues Street Blue Bay Mahebourg 
Mauritius

C076279 MATALA PROPERTIES LTD Industrial Zone Pont Fer Phoenix

C076748 Mani Rathnam Ltd C/O Shree Krishna Veerapen Route Grannum 
Vacoas

C076995 THAMIIGEH DWYENACO LTD 2nd Floor Fon Sing Bldg Edith Cavell St 
Port Louis

C077023 NEQ COMPANY LIMITED C/O F & M Professional Services Ltd 
Robinson Street Rose Hill

C077275 S. GHOORA MOTORS CO LTD. Pierre Arthur Rayroux St, Camp Chapelon, 
Port Louis

C077352 YULAN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED Aryan Kumar Atlas Road Goodlands

C077500 Alizier Jaune Ltee Royal Road New Grove

C077955 ESAG LTEE C/O Wybiwa Ltd, 5th Floor Discovery House 
St Jean Road, Quatre Bomes

C078223 BLACK LINE CO LTD 17, Chateau D'eau Port Louis

C078372 PROFIX BUILDING AND RENOVATION CO. LTD 200 Morcellement Pousson La Marie Vacoas

C078425 PADMAJA&COLTD Royal Road lb4™ Mille, Forest Side

C078473 SUNDARAM SPICES ROCHE-CARRI LTD Riche Mare Dhalia Rd Central Flacq

C078564 VIJAY BUNDHUN & SONS CONSTRUCTION LTD Royal Road Bon Accueil

C078670 GENERAL COLD STORAGE LTD Hillcrest Sodnac Quatre Bomes
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378754 SHANICE CO LTD 102 Royal Rd Phoenix

378769 Waterworld Co. Ltd 3 Coastal Road Trou Aux Biches

078788 Harmony Art Decor & Co Ltd More Nouvelle Industrie Long Mountain

078822 FRONTERA GROUP LTD Edith Cavell Street Fonsing Building Level 2
Port Louis

078826 K- CUBE ENTERPRISE LTD C/R Royal Road & Walter Basant Beau Bassin

078927 Luxmi CAR RENTAL Co. Ltd Royal Road Long Mountain

079100 MINERALS AND NATURAL ELEMENTS CO. LTD. 11 Chady Lane Belle Rose Rose Hill

Date: 01/10/2019

Registrar of Companies 
One Cathedral Square, 

Jules Koenig Street, 
Port-Louis.

I eneral Notice No. 1795 of 2019

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 310(l)(c) 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given pursuant to 
ection 309(1 )(b) of the Companies Act 2001 that 
he companies listed below are to be removed 
rom the register as there is reason to believe that 
hese companies have ceased to carry on business 
nd there is no other reason for these companies 
o continue in existence/ have failed to pay the 
egistration fees/ have not filed the annual return 
is required under Section 223(2) of the Act.

Objection, if any, shall be delivered to 
he Registrar of Companies not later than 
.1 November 2019.

File No. Name of Company Registered Office

Cl0272 CAR RENTAL GRAND BAIE
(RODRIGUES) RODRIGUES
LTD

Cl01981 Espace Ecologik 
Architecte Ltee

35 ROYAL ROAD
GOODLANDS

C101999 Blueday Concepts
& Projects Ltd

AVE BROWN 
SEQUARD VACOAS

File No. Name of Company Registered Office

Cl02242 PERFECT 
SOLUTIONS LTD

KEBLA LANE LA 
MARIE VACOAS

Cl02263 Shivam Textiles Ltd ALLEE BRILLANT
CASTEL

C102526 i - Five Ltd MORC PETIT
VILLAGE ST
ANTOINE LOT NO28
GOODLANDS

C102680 Alize Portant Ltee AVENUE COLINE 
GUIBIES PAILLES

Cl02862 HEAVENSTAR CO
LTD

34 AVENUE DOYEN
QUATRE BORNES

Cl02941 Shivali Fashion Ltd ALLE BRILLANT
CASTLE

C103178 Paoma Hospitality
Ltd

SAYED HOSSEN 
ROAD SOCOTA 
BUSINESS PARK 
PHOENIX

Cl03200 HOUSE CARE
IMP/EX LTD

COMMUNITY LANE
BON ACCUEIL

C103236 Mehmoude & 
brother Trading Co 
Ltd

TAMIL TEMPLE RD 
SURINAM

Cl03407 SURYA INTERIOR
& EXTERIOR 
DESIGNING LTD

407 B. DE ST PIERRE 
VALLEE DES 
PRETRES
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File No. Name of Company Registered Office File No. Name of Company Registered Office

Cl03476 Faya Partners Ltd CARDINAL 1 Cl04548 Universal Stone LISLET GEOFFROY
MORCELLEMENT Ltd. CUREPIPE

Cl03496
RAFFRAY PAILLES

C104556 ROVINE ROYAL RD, BOULET
GARDEN ROYAL RD CONSTRUCTION ROUGE, CENTRE DE
ATTITUDE LTD NOUVELLE 

DECOUVERTE ST
CO LTD FLACQ

PIERRE Cl04835 KPR GARAGE KALIMAYE
Cl03561 WESTERN NO 9 GF FLORA LTD RD, CAMP DES

FRAPPUCINO PARK ST JEAN RD PECHEURS GRSE
LTD QUATRE BORNES Cl04933 S.P BAR LTD 49A, SIRABDOOL

Cl03563 WESTERN NO 9 GF FLORA RAJACK MOHAMED
FRAGRANCE LTD PARK BLG ST 

JEAN RD QUATRE
STREET PORT LOUIS

BORNES Cl05089 GLOBAL CHEMINLAGARE •
HEIGHTS LTD MARE D’ALBERT

Cl03689 RC HOBBY LTD BLOCK D12
POLICE QUARTERS C105146 SAWMY . ST JOHN LANE
MONTREAL 2 ENGINEERING TYACK
COROMANDEL GROUP LTD

Cl03703 UNITY MOSQUE RD C105173 BRANDING KAYLRAY
MIGRATION 2 HENRIETTA CONCEPTORS BUILDING, ROYAL
CONSULTANT CO VACOAS LIMITED ROAD POINTE AUX
LTD CANONNIERS

Cl03747 EDEN FASHION 34 AVE Cl05285 NOVAMANNING ROYAL RD AMAURYLIMITED ABERCROMBIE SERVICES LTD BELLE VUE
RESIDENCE
BRIQUETTRIE ST MAUREL

CROIX C105535 SEGINUS LTD 1F2 MOORGATE
C103914 Ravin & Son’s ROYAL ROAD HOUSE SIR

Company Ltd MONTAGNE WILLIAM NEWTON
BLANCHE ST PORT LOUIS

C103969 GUEST STAR LTD EASTERN FILLING Cl05541 FRIGOR BOX ALLOUETTE
STATION ROYAL REFRIGERATION QUATRE BORNES
ROAD BELAIR LTD
RIVIERE SECHE

Cl05799 Boulevard West JACARANDAS
C103985 ROSES DES TRES BON NO 1 Agency Ltd STREET

CHAMPS LTEE VACOAS TERRASSON POINTE
Cl04334 Maxibat Limited Unit 109 Block A The AUX SABLES

Junction Business Hub 
Calebasses C105825 POWERZONE CO 28 RUE DES

LTD ANDREANUMS
Cl04408 ALTITUDE AVE DES MONTREAL 1

IMPORTS & CAPITAINES COROMANDEL
EXPORTS LATOURELLE
(MAURITIUS) TAMARIN Cl05864 P&L HIRE CARS 19 AVE ES
LTD LTD ORCHIDEES 

QUATRE BORNES
C104419 NEW 13 BRABANT ST

GENERATION PORT-LOUIS Cl05872 REDFIRM LTD 113 TRIANON 1
MEDIA CO LTD QUATRE BORNES

Cl04462 Sheevohum 44 AVENUE DES C105915 LIUTRUS LTD 1F2 MOORGATE
Holdings ORCHIDEES HOUSE SIR
Investment Venture QUATRE BORNES WILLIAM NEWTON
Limited ST PORT-LOUIS
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File No. Name of Company Registered Office

Cl06040 WHITEAGLE 
COMPANY LTD

5A MORC
BUNNIFACE 15 
CANTONS VACOAS

C106117 Cofracy Ltd c/o SOUS LE
BADAMIER, X-CLUB
RD, GRAND BAY

Cl06220 Sotravic 
Environment Ltd

INDUSTRIAL ZONE
LA TOUR KOENIG

Cl06252 ASHLEY TRAVEL
TOURS LTD

MGR LEEN QUATRE 
BORNES

Cl06325 L & V Stationery 
Limited

23 ROYAL RD BELLE 
ROSE

Cl 06438 HIGHWAY WASH 
N CLEAN LTD

ROYAL RD TYACK

Cl06478 HARBOUR 
AGENCIES 
(MAURITIUS) 
LTD

TOMBEAU BAY 
ROUND ABOUT 
MOTORWAY M2 
PORT-LOUIS

Cl06489 ClearFrontier
Limited

17 AVE DADA
SODNAC QUATRE
BORNES

Cl06498 Rion Investment
Furniture Ltd

LAMIVOIERD 
BLACK RIVER

C106537 OTWO
MANAGEMENT
LTD

ROYAL RD 9TH 
MILES TRIOLET

Cl 06578 Expo International 
(Mauritius) Ltd

LA MIVOIE RD
BLACK RIVER

Cl 06605 TABJEANJEAN
LTD

5TH FLOOR 
LABOURDONNAIS 
COURT CNR 
LABOURDONNAIS 
AND ST GEORGES 
STREETS PORT 
LOUIS

Cl 06654 Akros Footwear Ltd 20 KWAI TEE ST LES
SALINES PORT­
LOUIS

Cl06677 Auto Partner Ltd 60 DR
O.BEAUGEARD ST
PORT-LOUIS

Cl06743 Hifresh Ltd 45 AVE LAMARQUE
CAMP LE VIEUX
ROSE HILL

C106813 FORET RIVE DE 
B K J LTEE

ROYAL RD RIVIERE 
DU POSTE

Cl 07065 Go Pryde Services 
Ltd

STAFF QUARTERS
SAVANNAH
ESCALIER

File No. Name of Company Registered Office

Cl07071 ADVANCE 
BEAUTY 
TRAINING 
CENTRE LTD

32 BALSAMINE
AVENUE
COROMANDEL

C107101 QVC Engineering 
Solutions Limited

11 AVE BOIS NOIR
ARGU CENTRAL
FLACQ

C107185 Upshot Visual
Communication Ltd

83 TRIANON NO 1 
MORCELLEMENT 
ST JEAN QUATRE 
BORNES

Cl07282 AVENIR DE
L’ESTHETIQUE
LTEE

C/O TC&TC -OFFICE 
243-BLOCK C
THE JUNCTION 
BUSINESS HUB 
CALEBASSES

C107387 Impleo Ltd COASTAL ROAD 
POINTE DESNY 
MAHEBOURG

Cl07404 ARGO SUPPLIES 
LTD

138 ROUTE
ABATTOIR ROCHE 
BOIS

C107413 LEVERTIGO 
(MAURITIUS) 
LIMITED

C/O CORPORATE
& CHANCERY 
CHAMBERS 7TH 
FLOOR NEW 
CAUDAN DIAS PIER 
LE CAUDAN WATER 
FRONT P.LOUIS

Cl07421 JANICE
CONSTRUCTION
CO LTD

LEMAHO EDC 
07 TROU D’EAU 
DOUCE

Date: 7/10/2019
Registrar of Companies

One Cathedral Square
Jules Koenig Street

Port Louis

General Notice No. 1796 of 2019

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 310(l)(c) 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given pursuant to 
section 309(1 )(b) of the Companies Act 2001 that 
the companies listed below are to be removed 
from the register as there is reason to believe that 
these companies have ceased to carry on business 
and there is no other reason for these companies 
to continue in existence/ have failed to pay the 
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registration fees/ have not filed the annual return 
as required under Section 223(2) of the Act.

Objection, if any, shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies not later than 
18 November 2019.

File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C11646 GRASSHOPPER
SERVICES LTD

C/O NAVITAS 
CORPORATE 
SERVICES LTD 
NAVITAS HOUSE 
ROBINSON ROAD 
FLOREAL

Cl 15964 BEAUTIFLO LTD 207, Pinewood
Gardens, Wooton

C115991 KALAI
SMOOTHLINE
COMPANY LIMITED

RESIDENCE 
TELFAIR MOKA

C116011 GLD
CONSTRUCTION
LTEE

BHUGOWON 
LANE VIEUX 
GRAND PORT
MAHEBOURG

Cl 16088 GWEG (MAURITIUS) 
LTD

4, Broad Avenue 
Belle Rose

C116114 HYPER WASH LTD SIR WILLIAM
CHURCH HILL
STREET CUREPIPE

C116186 MASLAMANEY 
TRADING LTD

ROYAL ROAD ST 
JULIEN DHOTMAN

C116217 Skillz and Talentz
Development Ltd

c/o PlusQo Solutions 
Ltd Mahant Kabir 
Street, Mahant Kabir 
Lane 1 Vacoas

Cl 16245 KREPA TRAINING 
CENTRE LIMITED

8 SARAN VILLA 
BELLE ETOILE 
COROMANDEL

Cl 16246 KREPA 
CONSULTING
& TRAINING 
SERVICES LIMITED

8 SARAN VILLA 
BELLE ETOILE 
COROMANDEL

Cl 16282 RICE N SPICE LTD MOSQUE ROAD 
BRISEE VERDIERE

Cl 16296 GO STUDIO 
IMMOBILLIER 
GIULIANO 
OLTRAMARI LTD

LABOURDONNAIS 
7TH FLOOR C & 
R COURT PORT 
LOUIS

Cl 16304 SQUAREGRAM 
LIMITED

HANOOMANJEE 
LANE ALLEE 
BRILLANT 
FLOREAL

File No. Name of Company Registered Office

Cl 16349 SQUAREGRAM
LIMITED

6 A RAOUL RIVET 
STREET
PORT LOUIS

Cl 16377 TWELVE STARS 
CAR CENTRE LTD

NO 19 
MORCELLEMENT
ROU1LLARD CAP
MALHEUREUX

Cl 16482 KAVI TOURS CO
LTD

ROYAL ROAD ST 
HUBERT

Cl 16599 DRUPATTY CO LTD. 28 AVENUE S.S.R
SODNAC QUATRE
BORNES

Cl 16608 FEDORA TRADING 
LTD

C/O NO 6 MORC
DARUTY FOREST
SIDE

Cl 16656 LES
BOUGAINVILLIERS
DE RIVIERE NOIRE
LTEE

GEOFFROY ROAD 
CMA BUILDING 
BAMBOUS

- Cl 16770 MANTRA
INTERNATIONAL
LTD

18 FLOREAL ROAD
VACOAS

Cl 16771 EXOMED Ltd C/O NUNKOOMAR 
BALLOO NEW 
ROAD QUARTIER 
MILITAIRE

Cl 16841 Millenium Archademia 
Ltd

INDEPENDANCE 
ST 1ST FLOOR 
MATIKOLA BLDG 
VACOAS

C116916 NORMA MARY
JOYCE KUIJT
COMPANY LTD

LOT15A154
ROYAL ROAD, PTE
AUX SABLES

Cl 16955 HOSPITALITY AND 
HOME SUPPLIES 
LTD

NO 1 RESIDENCE 
DU NORD CA 
RESIDENCE
DU NORD CAP 
MALHEUREUX

Cl 16976 RESHKUR TRADING
LTD

56 PAUL ET
VIRGINIE ST PORT
LOUIS

Cl 17013 EUCOMAQ LTD 6TH FLR ORBIS 
COURT ST JEAN 
QUATRE BORNES

Cl17093 MEDIA SUPPLIES
LTD

ROYAL ROAD LA 
PRENEUSE LA 
TOURELLE VIEW 
BLACK RIVER
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; No.

17271

17328

17348

17464

17513

17584

18384

18423

18457

18460

18466

18490

18573

18617

Name of Company Registered Office File No. Name of Company Registered Office

BLACK PEPPER 162 AVE ST C118735 COSCOCART LTD JUMMAH MOSQUE
COMPANY LIMITED JACQUES FLICEN STREET MAX

AFRICA 2.0

FLAC TOWER PORT­
LOUIS

LEVEL 6 TOWER.
INTERNATIONAL A 1 CYBERCITY Cl 18775 ONE TO TWELVE GERANIUM
LTD EBENE LTD LANE D’EPINAY 

PAMPLEMOUSES
ORIENTAL GLOBAL Industrial Zone C118837 ISMAILIYAH & CO 22 INKERMANAFRICA LID Plaine Lauzun Port 

Louis LTD ROSE HILL

Cl 18949 L’INSTANT BIO NEXTERACOM
RELEARN 24 AVENUE DES COMPANY LIMITED LEVEL 1, TOWER
SOLUTIONS LTD COLOMBES, 2, CYBERCITY

SODNAC QUATRE EBENE
BORNES

Cl 18956 AJIXO LTD CAMP LEVIEUX
KAWAKAMI 40 LEES STREET LANE CUREPIPE
ENTERPRISE CO CUREPIPE ROAD CUREPIPE
LTD

C118957 BLOOMINGFELD ROYAL ROAD
IDENTITI STUDIO 113 AVENUE (MAURITIUS) LONG MOUNTAIN
LTD TRIANON 1 LIMITED

QUATRE BORNES Cl 19020 AA FLORAL LA MARIE
D-PharMED LTD Royal Road Bonne SUPPLIES LTD VACOAS

Terre Vacoas c/o Cl19027 Atrium Management LES GORGES
Chetan Rambans (Mauritius) Ltd ROAD UNIT 3
Dookun RIVERVIEW

TRIPLE HOLLYWOOD COMMERCIAL
CENTRE BLACK
RIVERCONSTRUCTION STREET

& RENOVATION BOIS ROUGE
WORKS LTD PAMPLEMOUSSES C119061 carateam ltd 29, MORC. 

SOCIETE LES
THE ELECTRIC C/O MIKASH FLAMBOYANTS
DODO LTD HASSAMAL ST

DENIS STREET
SOREZE PAILLES

RIVER COURT C119150 BATTERY LETORD ROAD
PORT LOUIS DIAGNOSTICS AND 

REGENERATION
ROSE BELLE

HANSRINE BEAUTY SOLFERINO CENTRE LTD
TOUCH AND
HANDICRAFT LTD

VACOAS VACOAS
C119167 BRAEBURN LTD 4 STEIN STREET

BEAU BASSIN
J.K.V Trans Island ALLEE BRILLANT Cl 19494 DHANRAJ SSR AVE
Tours Ltd CASTEL FLOREAL RAJCOOMAR CO OOGARAHCUREPIPE LTD LANE CARREAU
OMNIPLUS CREMATION LALIANE VACOAS
ENTERPRISE LTD ROAD POSTEDE Cl 19533 MTMG.OI CATHEDRAL

FLACQ DISTRIBUTION SQUARE 9TH

SERVIMER La Plaine, Le Hochet, LTEE FLOOR, LES

COMPANY LTD Terre Rouge BACHA PORT 
LOUIS

LUCK PROPERTIES 39 AVENUE GUY Cl 19602 LAKSHMI & SONS WATSONIAlimited ROZEMONT
TREFLES CONTRACTING CO STREET
ROSE-HILL LTD BEAU VALLON

MAHEBOURG
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File No. Name of Company Registered Office File No. Name of Company Registered Office

Cl 19643 GUIZMO SALAD C/O LAZY DODO Cl20575 FIVE STEPS 7 AVENUE
BAR LTD LA SALETTE BUILDING PANCHOO,

ROAD GRAND AND CIVIL STANLEY,
BAY CONSTRUCTION 

LTD
ROSE HILL

Cl19800 SH LANDSCAPE LTD IMPASSE 
HI JMRFRT Cl 20605 IMSHA COIFFURE SIR WILLIAM
AVENUE OLLIER 
QUATRE BORNES

COMPANY LIMITED NEWTON ARC 
BUILDING PORT 
LOUIS

Cl 19827 ALL PURPOSE TENT
SERVICES LTD

3 RAMBURRAN
LANE HENRIETTA
VACOAS

Cl 20640 SANA HARDWARE 
CO LTD

AVENUE DES 
FLAMBOYANTS 
BLK B6 CITE CHA

C119912 FIVE STARS C/O MR VALLEE DES
MARKETING LTD MAMADE SALIM PRETRES

LALLMAHOMED Cl 20644 ELITE KIDS CLUB 52 ODETTE
JINNAH STREET LTD ERNEST AVENUE
STANLEY ROSE QUATRE BORNES
HILL

Cl 20649 Ayodhya Jewellers Ltd 367 ROYAL ROAD
Cl 19997 LEO JEANS LTD CEMETRY ROAD ROSE HILL

RICHE MARE
CENTRAL FLACQ

Cl 20688 HAWAIA VILLAS
LTD

B. R NIJELL 
PEREYBERE

Cl20093 JDV QUALITY 8 ROYAL ROAD Cl 20740 NF NOMINEES LEVEL 5 TOWER
POWER SUPPLIES BEAU BASSIN LIMITED 111 NEXTERACOM
LTD TOWER

C120163 I.B.S.M. REAL Beach Lane,
CYBERCITY
EBENE

HOLIDAY LIMITED Pereybere
C120805 CESIRALTD AVENUE CUTTY

C120213 KGO GARDEN ROYAL ROAD LA SARK ALBION
CENTRE LTD ROSA NEW GROVE

Cl 20837 BLUE NUAGE 34. ROSIERS
Cl 20290 CAP IMMOBILIER BAIN BOEUF (AFRICA) LTD AVENUE QUATRE

LTEE RD CHEM1N BORNES
MACUMBA 
PEREYBERE 
GRAND BAIE

Cl 20896 NEXIM TRADING
CO LTD

27A CANAL 
BATHURST 
STREET PORT

Cl 20344 SEXTANT LTD 128 RUE LOUIS
L’ASTROLABE Cl 20926 PERFECT GIFTS CO 24 ROGERS LANE
DOMAINE DE LTD MORC ROGERS
MONT CALM ROSE HILL
TAMARIN

C121003 DAMO’S 03 RUISSEAU
Cl 20485 ESSEBEE LTD SCHOOL ROAD GENTLEMAN’S CREOLE LA

QUEEN VICTORIA EMPORIUM LTD MIVOIE BLACK
FLACQ RIVER

C120510 FINAL CLEANING 
LTD

MORCELLEMENT 
GUNGADIN, 
CANDOS 
QUATTRE BORNES

C121098 D.BEEKHUN 
ENTERPRISE LTD

MORC NEW 
GOODLANDS
LOT M0285 
ST ANTOINE 
GOODLANDS

Cl 20522 V KANHYE HEALTH
FOODS CO LTD

MELLE JEANNE
GOODLANDS C121205 UNFORGETTABLE 

LTD
C/O STEPHANE 
HART DE KEATING

Cl 20574 JPC PRO DHUNNY LANE ST CITE DALAIS LEES
CONTRACTING LTD PAUL PHOENIX STREET CUREPIPE
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File No. Name of Company Registered Office File No. Name of Company Registered Office

C121234 GENIRA PRIVATE 51 FARQUHAR C121887 CAFE DE GRAND ROYAL ROAD
LIMITED STREET CUREPIPE BAIE PLAGE LTEE GRAND BAY

RD CUREPIPE
C121903 LE BILIMBI LTD AVE DAUPHINS

C121282 FRUIZION EXPORT ROSHAN KUMAR 6 POINTE AUX
LTD SOHUN MAHATMA SABLES

GANDHI ROAD 
L’ESPERANCE C121917 J.A COOLER LTD MORC MAHADOO
TREBUCHET C/O AZA LOUIS 

JOSEPH TOMBEAU
C121303 ALEKSI CO LTD TRES BON NO 2 BAY

VACOAS
C121945 BIG FARM CO LTD NO 36, ROUTE

C121338 T&V CAR RENTAL EBONY COURT DESBOUCHERS
LTD APPARTMENT B19 ROCHE BOIS PORT

PHOENIX LOUIS

C121435 Andronik Consulting VIEUX CONSEIL Cl22008 ZIFALLY EXPRESS 5, MAMELON
Limited STREET 2ND CO LTD VERT STREET

FLOOR, LES VALLEE PITOT
JAMALACS 
BUILDING PORT

PORT LOUIS

LOUIS Cl 22025 ARSHAD OLD SCHOOL
MAINTENANCE ROAD CAMP

C121446 ML GERMAN GRANNUM RD TRADING LTD DIABLE
AUTOMOTIVE LTD VACOAS

C122044 YES BRANDING & 23, AVE
C121516 ANYTIME COVER JUGDAMBI ROAD DESIGN CO LTD ROSSIGNOLS

LTD GOODLANDS MORC SODNAC
QUATRE BORNES

C121554 STERLING 50, BASSIN RD
MARKETING LTD QUATRE BORNES C122119 Dominique & Marina NO 4, ERNEST

Cie Ltee HAREL AVENUE
C121568 MSKTW SERVICES 20 DAUPHINE QUATRE BORNES

LTD STREET PORT
LOUIS C122216 PNK DIST CO LTD AVENUE CO­

OPERATIVE
C121640 MK SEAFOOD LTD DOMAINE NEHRU ROAD

DU MOULIN QUATRE BORNES
GOODLANDS

Cl 22222 GIHI COMPANY 33, LE CONTE DE
C121659 POSITEUM LTD 45 MORC SWAN LIMITED L’ISLE AVENUE

ALLEE DES QUATRE BORNES
GOELANDS
PEREYBERE Cl22242 WYFCON LTD NO 50 MADRAS

STREET PLAINE
C121695 J’S DELIGHT & CO LIGNE BERTHAUD VERTE PORT

LTD LA FORET BELLIN
LA MARIE
VACOAS Cl22246 APS DISTRIBUTORS

LOUIS

18, PETIT CAMP
LTD BRANCH ROAD

C121748 Burhani Traders Ltd 19, RUE PONT FER
MAREEMOOTOO PHOENIX
AVENUE OLLIER
ROSE HILL C122331 STERNS PRECIOUS reunion

METALS REFINING MAUREL
C121869 LINE UP LTD 29 CHEMIN 

DU BENJOIN
LTD GOODLANDS

KALIMAYE ROADMORCELLEMENT C122356 A J PRAYAG&
CAMBIER LE COMPANY LTD MORCELLEMENT

MORNE STANDRE
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Cl22625 ERIANE SERVS LTD 13DRMAXIME 
REMY STREET 
ROCHES BRUNES 
ROSE HILL

File No. Name of Company Registered Office

Cl22380 RED FLAG
MARKETING LTD

SIR WILLIAM
NEWTON STREET 
C/O MOORE
STEPHENS, 6TH 
FLOOR NEWTON 
TOWER PORT
LOUIS

Cl22443 ISHADOMAH
INTERNATIONAL 
IMPORT/EXPORT 
LIMITED

BRANCH ROAD 
CAMP ITHIER 
CENTRAL FLACQ

Cl22455 R.B SHREE
INVESTMENT LTD

C/R ROYAL/ 
SIVALAROAD 
PLAINE MAGNIEN

C122606 Global Capital Security 
Investment Ltd

49 Labourdonnais 
Street 2nd Floor, 
C&R Court Port 
Louis

Cl22643 ENTREPRISE 
DES TRAVAUX 
PETROLIER 
(MAURITIUS) LTD

AVENUE
LECLEZIO MOKA

Cl22689 NEEV HOSPITALITY
CO LTD

MANOIR ROAD
RIAMBEL

C122744 PROAMICIS MEIS
LTD

22 FRERE FELIX 
DE VALOIS PORT 
LOUIS

Cl22783 IBHIZA4CAKES LTD 118,HUGNIN
STREET ROSE
HILL

Cl22829 VALIHA LTD ROYAL ROAD 
GRAND GAUBE

Cl22870 ZARKAVA 109, LAPAIX
ENTERTAINMENT PLAINE VERTE
LIMITED PORT LOUIS

Date: 14/10/2019
Registrar of Companies

One Cathedral Square
Jules Koenig Street 

Port Louis

General Notice No. 1797 of 2019

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 

Attorney General is please to authorise Mohamed 
Ziad MUNGROO to change his surname 
MUNGROO into that of JOOMUN so that in 
the future, he shall bear the name and surname of 
Mohamed Ziad JOOMUN.

Date: 11th October 2019

K. A. Putchay (Mr) 
Temporary State Counsel

General Notice No. 1798 of 2019

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 

Attorney General is pleased to authorise 
Stephen Dany Young Ken That YOUNG 
CH AUNG SIVE to change his names 
Stephen Dany Young Ken That into that 
of Stephen so that in future he shall bear 
the name and surname of Stephen YOUNG 
CHAUNG SIVE.

Date: 9th October 2019

K. Davay (Ms) 
State Counsel

General Notice No. 1799 of 2019

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 

Attorney General is pleased to authorise 
Yoven Goinden to change his name and 
surname Yoven Goinden into those of Evissen 
GANGADOO so that in future he shall bear the 
name and surname of Evissen GANGADOO.

Date: 15th October 2019

S. Bhoyroo 
Senior State Counsel
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meral Notice No. 1800 of 2019

NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY

Notice is hereby given that the following applications have been received by the Authority and the

Authority will shortly hear the said applications.

APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC ‘A’ CARRIER’S LICENCE

8.N Licence No Name of Applicant Weight of 
Vehicle Base of Operation Description of goods

794 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19920 PERMALL
Adassen

NYP 
32000kg 

GV

Kalimaye Road,
Dagotiere General Goods

795 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19921 DOOLY 
Chandan

NYP Royal Road, 
24390kg Caroline,

GV Bel Air Riviere Seche

General Goods 
& 

Water Tank

NYP
796 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19922 GVS Hardware Co Ltd 8500kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
Quartier Militaire General Goods

797 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19923 SHADOO-BUCCUS 
Inteeyaz

NYP 
3170kg 

GV

Dina Road, 
Plaine des Papayes General Goods

NYP Rue Aldrine,
798 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19924 N-Haulage Ltd 5000kg Petit Verger,

GV Pointe aux Sables
General Goods

NYP
799 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19925 Perfect Logistics Ltd 17300kg

GV

BPML Freeport, 
Zone 6, 

Mer Rouge
Containers

800 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19926 LABONNE
Michael

NYP 
6000kg 

GV

Morcellement
Seetaram, 
Henrietta, 

Vacoas

General Goods

801 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19927 GOBIND
Najendra

NYP 
20000kg 

GV

Richard Mills Brown, 
Sainte Croix

Containers .
& 

General Goods

802 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19928 FOOLMAUN
Rajiv Kumar

NYP 
2500kg 

GV

Royal Road,
Creve Coeur General Goods

803 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19929 VSN Associates Ltd
NYP

10000kg 
GV

Victoria Road, 
Trou D'Eau Douce General Goods
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NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

S.N

804

805

806

807

808

809

810

811

812

813

814

815

Licence No Name of Applicant Weight of
Vehicle Base of Operation Description of goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19930 MK Logistics Ltd
NYP 

25000kg 
GV

Quatre Carreaux 
Street, 

Eau-Coulee
General Goods

NT A/PUB/A/LC/19931 MK Logistics Ltd
NYP 

25000kg 
GV

Quatre Carreaux 
Street, 

Eau-Coulee
General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19932
SHIBNAUTH 

Shobna 
(Bom Alleck)

NYP 
4530kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
Riviere du Poste General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19933 KHOLEEPA
Parvez Hussein

NYP 
7000kg 

GV

Royal Road,
Camp de Masque 

Pave
Water Tank

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19934 Sookharry Brothers 
Poultry Farm Co Ltd

NYP
3305kg-

GV

Abdoul Rashid 
Nawab Street, 
Bois Marchand

Waste

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19935 Don't Waste Ltd
9378DC14 

3000kg 
GV

Avenue Collins, 
Cavalot, 

Roches Brunes
Waste

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19936 AH-KIOON 
Christian Sao Khi

NYP 
7000kg 

GV

Cardinaux Street, 
Baie du Tombeau General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19937
TOM

Marie Paulette 
(Bom Albufera)

1091ZB86
16260kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
Bambous General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19938
TOM

Marie Paulette 
(Bom Albufera)

2120ZF90
17000kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
Bambous General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19939 CARPAYEN
Divanaden

4526ZX05 
6010kg 

GV

Morcellement 
Chavry,

Bois Pignolet,
Terre Rouge

General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19940 Moneswar & Ritesh 
Transport Co Ltd

NYP 
12000kg 

GV

Avenue S. Seechum, 
Route Bassin, 
Quatre Bomes

General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/19941 Kyson Tech Ltd
NYP 

23000kg 
GV

Tres Bon No.l,
Vacoas

Effluents 
& 

Waste
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NATIONAL TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

S.N Licence No Name of Applicant

816 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19942 CAULLOO
Rishideo

817 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19943 Truck-It Transport Ltd

818 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19944
ARMANCE 

Marie Elodia Julie 
(Bom Louis)

Weight of
Vehicle Base of Operation Description of goods

NYP 
32000kg 

GV

Allee Roussailles, 
Gros Cailloux, 
Petite Riviere

General Goods

NYP 
40700kg 

GV

Residence Panchoo, 
Terre Rouge Containers

5164ZV02 
3070kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
Queen Victoria General Goods

Any person legally entitled to do so may set out his/her objection/s or other representation/s together with 
his/her name and address and must give the reasons thereof in writing so that these may reach the Secretary 
to the Board, National Land Transport Authority, MSI Building, Royal Road, Cassis, Port Louis not later 
than on the seventh day of publication of this notice, in the Government Gazette. Any objection, that 
reaches the Secretary to the Board after the prescribed time limit will not be entertained.

MSI Building
Les Cassis
Port Louis
15 October 2019
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General Notice No. 1801 of 2019

THE PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 
(Regulation 41(6))

Notice is hereby given that the following Industrial Designs have been renewed for a 
period of 5 years under the provisions of the Patents, Industrial Designs & Trademarks Act 2002 
in the name of Vecto Trade 461 Proprietary Limited of Lasher Building, 3 Sigma Road, 
Industries West Germiston, 1401, Gauteng Province, Republic of South Africa'.

Description of 
Design

Registration No. & 
Date

Classes/Products Expiry Date

CUTTING
TOOLS

00122/2015 of 04
November 2014

Class No: 8
Products: (putting Tools

04 November, 
2024

HANDLES FOR 
HAND 
IMPLEMENTS

00123/2015 of 04
November 2014

Class No: 8-99
Products: Handles For
Hand Implements

04 November, 
2024

Date: 17 October 2019
The Controller

Industrial Property Office

General Notice No. 1802 of 2019

CORRIGENDUM
TRADEMARK NOTICE

Further to the General Notice No. 1670 of 2019 published in the Government Gazette 
No. 101 of 05 October 2019 in respect of the mark “Hapag-Lloyd” bearing reference 
number MU/M/2019/29820 in the name of Hapag-Lloyd Aktiengesellschaft of Germany, 
to read Classes 09, 35 & 39 (511) instead of 35 & 39 only.

Date: 18 October 2019 Ag. Controller 
Industrial Property Office
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Legal Notices and Advertisements
Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Seewoo 

"YDELINGUM C/o Ms Ciivy Desiree 
Jeorgette ROSE of 39, Florida Lane, Cite 
'allejee, Port Louis has applied to the Honourable 
attorney General for leave to change his surname 
YDELINGUM into that of FARVACQUE 

o that in the future he shall bear the name and 
umame of Seewoo FARVACQUE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
f the office of the Attorney General within a period 
f 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
ie said notice in the Gazette.

Date: 30 September 2019

tec. No. 18/145088)

Mr Seewoo Vydelingum
Applicant

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Lovish 

IOGHOOAH of Pont Bon Dieu Road, Belvedere, 
as applied to the Honourable Attorney General 
or leave to change his name Lovish into those 
f Luvish Singh so that in the future he shall 
ear the names and surname of Luvish Singh 
IOGHOOAH.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
f the office of the Attorney General within a period 
f 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
ae said notice in the Gazette.

Date: 30 September 2019

Mr Lovish Roghooah 
Applicant 

tec. No. 18/145090)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Ms Jamie 

/YDELINGUM C/o Ms Clivy Desiree 
Georgette ROSE of 39, Florida Lane, Cite 

Vallejee, Port Louis has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney General for leave to change her surname 
VYDELINGUM into that of FARVACQUE 
so that in the future she shall bear the name and 
surname of Jamie FARVACQUE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the Gazette.

Date: 30 September 2019

Ms Jamie Vydelingum 
Applicant

(Rec. No. 18/145088)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Gerard 

Michel Patrice MARRIER-D’UNIENVILLE 
of C/o Mr. R. Bemey, Royal Road, Belle Vue 
Maurel, Riviere Du Rempart have applied to the 
Honourable Attorney General for leave to change 
his names and surname of Gerard Michel Patrice 
MARRIER-D’UNIENVILLE into those of 
Patrice Michel Gerard MARRIER so that in 
the future he shall bear the names and surname of 
Gerard Patrice Michel MARRIER.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the Gazette.

Dated this 16 September 2019.
Mr Gerard Michel Patrice 

MARRIER-D’UNIENVILLE 
(Rec. No. 18/145085) Applicant

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Essa'i Finley 

FRANQOIS and Mrs Dominique Rebecca 
ARECKSAMY of 15, Avenue Mozart, Cite 
Vallijee, Port Louis, have applied to the Honourable 
Attorney General for leave to change the names 
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of their minor daughter Mhelynaa Azalea Kyana 
into that of Mhelelynaa Azalea Kyana so that in 
the future she shall bear the names and surname of 
Mhelelynaa Azalea Kyana FRANCOIS.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the Gazette.

Date: 01/10/2019
Mrs Dominique Rebecca ARECKSAMY 

(Rec. No. I8/145101) Applicant

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Taslim 

CULCUTEE and Mrs Chitrasha CULCUTEE 
(bom HEMRAZ) of Geranium Lane, Quinze 
Cantons, Vacoas, have applied to the Honourable 
Attorney General for leave to change the name of 
their minor son Amaan into that of Aman so that 
in the future he shall bear the name and surname of 
Aman CULCUTEE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the Gazette.

Date: 01/10/2019
Mr Taslim CULCUTEE

Applicant 
(Rec. No. 18/145099)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mrs Caroline 

Pamela AWOTARSING of Avenue Rover, Mont 
Fleuri, Circonstance, Saint Pierre, has applied 
to the Honourable Attorney General for leave to 
change the names of her minor daughter Yaksha 
Lakshmi into those of Yashika Lakshmi so that 
in the future she shall bear the names and surname 
of Yashika Lakshmi AWOTARSING.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Dated: 12 September 2019

Mrs Caroline Pamela AWOTARSING
(Rcc. No. 18/145153) Applicant

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Ms Paichaye 

MOONIAH of 75, E.D.C Balance, Plaine 
Magnien has applied to the Honourable Attorney 
General for leave to change her name and 
surname Paichaye MOONIAH into that of 
Ameena JEENATHALLY so that in the future 
she shall bear the name and surname of Ameena 
JEENATHALLY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Dated this 2.10.2019.

Ms Paichaye MOONIAH 
(Rec. No. 18/145131) Applicant

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Mamood 

Hassam KARIMBOCCUS of 33 Maharatta 
Street, Port Louis, has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney General for leave to change his 
names Mamood Hassam into those of Raouf 
Mamood Hassam so that in the future he shall 
bear the names and surname of Raouf Mamood 
Hassam KARIMBOCCUS.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Dated this 3rd October 2019.

Mr Mamood Hassam KARIMBOCCUS

(Rec. No. 18/145132)
Applicant

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Denis Chet

Foon WONG NG of 13, Charles Jolivet,
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Bassin, has applied to the Honourable 
tiey General for leave to change his names 
umame Denis Chet Foon WONG NG into 
of Denis KILIAN-WONG so that in the 

: he shall bear the name and surname of Denis 
AN-WONG.
ejections, if any, should be filed in the 
stry of the office of the Attorney General 
n a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
cation of the said notice in the papers.

ated this 4th October 2019.

Mr Denis Chet Foon WONG NG

Io. 18/145165)
Applicant

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
otice is hereby given that Mr Roshan 
.KHOREE and Mrs Geshma HALKHOREE 
n RAMPERSAD) of Halkhoree Lane, Long 
intain have applied to the Honourable Attorney 
eral for leave to change the name of their 
or son Devyansh into those of Harsh Devansh 
hat in the future he shall bear the names and 
lame of Harsh Devansh HALKHOREE.
)bj ections, if any, should be filed in the 
;istry of the office of the Attorney General 
lin a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
lication of the said notice in the papers.

Dated this 7th October 2019.

Mr Roshan HALKHOREE and 
Mrs Geshma HALKHOREE 

Applicants 
.No. 18/145176)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Roshan 
LLKHOREE and Mrs Geshma HALKHOREE 
>m RAMPERSAD) of Halkhoree Lane, Long 
juntain have applied to the Honourable Attorney 
neral for leave to change the name of their minor 
i Vikshan into those of Shaan Vikshan so that 
the future he shall bear the names and surname 
Shaan Vikshan HALKHOREE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Dated this 7th October 2019.

(Rec. No. 18/145176)

Mr Roshan HALKHOREE and
Mrs Geshma HALKHOREE

Applicants

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Jean Christophe 

DESVEAUX of Calasse Reservoir Road, Roche 
Terre, Grand Gaube, has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney General for leave to change the names 
Jean Christophe into that of Christy so that in 
the future he shall bear the name and surname of 
Christy DESVEAUX.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Dated this 7th October 2019.

(Rec. No. 18/145178)

Jean Christophe DESVEAUX 
Applicant

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Ms Shara HASSAM 

of Camp L’Amour, Grand Baie, has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney General for leave to change 
her name Shara into that of Sarah so that in the 
future she shall bear the name and surname of 
Sarah HASSAM.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Dated this 9th October 2019.
Ms Shara HASSAM 

Applicant

(Rec. No. 18/145212)
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Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mrs Bidwantee 

RAMREEKHEEA (born LALLBUHARRY) 
of Raghoobar Road, Sebastopol, have applied 
to the Honourable Attorney General for leave to 
change her surname LALLBUHARRY into that 
of LALLBEEHARRY so that in the future she 
shall bear the name and surname of Bidwantee 
LALLBEEHARRY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Dated this 16th September 2019.

Mrs Bidwantee RAMREEKHEEA 
(bom LALLBUHARRY) 

Applicant 
(Rec. No. 18/145191)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Ms Marie Natacha 

Isabelle MURTHEN of 5th Mile Belvedere, Beau 
Bassin has applied to the Honourable Attorney 
General for leave to change her names Marie 
Natacha Isabelle into that of Natacha so that in 
the future she shall bear the name and surname of 
Natacha MURTHEN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the Gazette.

Date: 10 October 2019

M. N. I. Murthen 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/145234)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Miss Mouzlehbeen 

Huns Begum MAHAMODALLY of Card Street, 
Camp Chapelon has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney General for leave to change her names

Mouzlehbeen Huns Begum into those of Zareen 
Zoya Beegun so that in the future she shall bear 
the names and surname of Zareen Zoya Beegun 
MAHAMODALLY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the Gazette.

Date: 27 October 2016

Miss Mouzlehbeen Huns Begum 
MAHAMODALLY

Applicant
(Rec. No. 18/145294)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Ms. Neelam 

BAUHADOOR (Lawful wife of Mr. Omduth 
RAMJATUN) of 71, Rue Ambrose, Rose Hill 
has applied to the Honourable Attorney General 
for leave to change her name Neelam into those 
of Hannah so that in the future she shall bear the 
name and surname of Hannah BAUHADOOR.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the Gazette.

Date: 16 October 2019

NEELAM RAMJATUN
Applicant

(Rec. No. 18/145302)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Harish 

LUCHMUN and Mrs Kalianee LUCHMUN 
(bom NILAMBER) of Moulin Casse Lane, 
Pointe aux Piments, has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney General for leave to change the name of 
their minor son Girish into those of Girish Rian 
so that in the future he shall bear the names and 
surname of Girish Rian LUCHMUN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period



:64 The Mauritius Government Gazette

’ 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
e said notice in the Gazette.

Date: 15 October 2019

Mr Harish Luchmun and 
Mrs Kalianee LUCHMUN

Applicants
ec. No. 18/145303)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Harish 

UCHMUN and Mrs Kalianee LUCHMUN 
jom NILAMBER) of Moulin Casse Lane, 
ointe aux Piments, has applied to the Honourable 
ittomey General for leave to change the name of 
leir minor son Hirish into those of Hirish Roan 
o that in the future he shall bear the names and 
umame of Hirish Roan LUCHMUN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
if the office of the Attorney General within a period 
if 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
he said notice in the Gazette.

Date: 15 October 2019

Mr Harish Luchmun and 
Mrs Kalianee LUCHMUN 

Applicants 
Rec. No. 18/145303)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Vicky 

GOKOOL of Blue Lane, Boundary, Quatre Bomes 
has applied to the Honourable Attorney General 
for leave to change his name Vicky into those of 
Shivaaytausingh Vicky so that in the future he shall 
bear the names and surname of Shivaaytausingh 
Vicky GOKOOL.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the Gazette.

Date: 16 October 2019

Vicky Gokool 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/145305)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Teerundass 

AUBEELUCK of Rainbow Lane, Allee Brillant, 
Castel, has applied to the Honourable Attorney 
General for leave to change his name Teerundass 
into those of Teerundass Adish so that in the 
future he shall bear the names and surname of 
Teerundass Adish AUBEELUCK.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
registry of the office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Dated this 15th October 2019.

Mr Teerundass AUBEELUCK 
(Rec. No. 18/145292) Applicant

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Stephane David 

DINALLY of Block C22, Cite Roche Bois, has 
applied to the Honourable Attorney General for 
leave to change the names Stephane David into 
those of Stephanie Laila so that in the future the 
said Applicant shall bear the names and surname of 
Stephanie Laila DINALLY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
registry of the office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Dated this 15th October 2019.

Stephane David DINALLY 
(Rec. No. 18/145293) Applicant

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Yohann 

GEBERT of Flat D, Hesketh Heights, De Chazal 
Lane, Floreal, 74107, has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney General for leave to change his name and 
surname Yohann GEBERT into those of Yohann 
Gebert SEEGOBIN so that in the future he shall 
bear the names and surname of Yohann Gebert
SEEGOBIN.
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Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
registry of the office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Dated this 14th September 2019.

Mr Yohann GEBERT 
(Rec. No. 18/145275) Applicant

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Wachim Bin 

Yacoob RAJABALEE of August Boulle Street, 
More Neewoor, Le Cornu, Ste Croix, has applied 
to the Honourable Attorney General for leave to 
change his names and surname Wachim Bin 
Yacoob RAJABALEE into those of Wachim 
CADERS AIB so that in the future he shall bear the 
names and surname of Wachim CADERSAIB.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the Gazette.

Date: 17 October 2019

Mr Wachim Bin Yacoob RAJABALEE
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/145318)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mrs Madhurbhai 

COOSHNA (bom RAGGOO) ofCamp Rouillard 
Street, Eau Coulee, Curepipe, has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney General for leave to change 
her name Madhurbhai into those of Esther Isha 
so that in the future she shall bear the names and 
surname of Esther Isha RAGGOO.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the Gazette.

Date: 14 October 2019

Mrs Madhurbhai Cooshna
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/145274)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Steeve Jean 

Richard RAMSAMY and Ms Marie Joane 
Vanessa HENRIETTE of No. 5, Cite CHA, 
Bissesur Lane, Camp de Masque, have applied 
to the Honourable Attorney General for leave 
to change the names of their minor daughter 
Maiewen Aureliane Cristal into those of 
Maiewen Aureliane Crystale so that in the future 
she shall bear the names and surname of Maiewen 
Aureliane Crystale RAMSAMY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the Gazette.

Date: 11 October 2019

Mr Steeve Jean Richard RAMSAMY and 
Ms Marie Joane Vanessa HENRIETTE 

Applicants

(Rec. No. 18/145281)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Louis Geneve 

MOREL of 8 Koenig Lane, Rose Hill, has 
applied to the Honourable Attorney General for 
leave to change his surname MOREL into that of 
MAUREL so that in the future he shall bear the 
names and surname of Louis Geneve MAUREL.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the Gazette.

Date: 14 October 2019

Mr Louis Geneve MOREL
Applicant

(Rec. No. 18/145271)

SALE BY LEVY
On Friday the 25th day of October 2019 at 

10.00 of the clock in the forenoon, in the vicinity 
of Vacoas Post Office near Vacoas Market Place, 
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le undersigned Court Usher, will sell by Public 
ction to the highest bidder and for cash the 
lowing movable effects namely:

One Table with four chairs (formica)
One Wardrobe 1 flap
One washing machine make LG
One sofa bed
One microwave LG
One electric oven Trust

ized upon Mr Jean Rene Marmite of Block E 17, 
:e Mangalkhan, Floreal, Curepipe at the request 
J. Kalachand & Co Ltd electing its legal 
micile in the office of Attorney at Law Mr A. 
;owan of Port Louis in virtue and execution of 
Warrant to Levy issued out of the Intermediate 
>urt, dated 6th July 2015, pursuant to a Judgement 
the said Court dated 9th July 2014, bearing Cause 
imber 772/14. The above movable effects can be 
;n prior to the sale.

Dated this 13th day of September 2019.

Sada Seeven Chellapen 
Court Usher in and for the 

Intermediate Court 
■c. No. 18/145263) And in charge of the sale.

Dated this 1st October 2019.

Deenesh Goburdhun
Court Usher

Flacq District Court
(Rec. No. 18/145263)

SALE BY LEVY
Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 

20th day of February, 2020 at 1.30 p.m. shall take 
place before the Master’s Court, Supreme Court 
situate at Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, the 
Sale by Levy of: "Les biens et droits immobiliers 
ci-apres designes et formant partie d’un immeuble 
denomme ‘RESIDENCE DISCOVERY HOUSE’ 
se trouvant sur une portion de terrain de la 
contenance de vingt perches et demie (20V2 p) 
soit huit cent soixante cinq metres carres et vingt 
huit centiemes (865.28 m2 * * S * * * * lo) situee au quartier des 
Plaines Wilhems lieudit Quatre Bomes a I’angle 
de la route Saint Jean A8 et Madhoo Lane, au 
No. 87 (A) 52, route St-Jean d’apres le Cadastre 
Municipal. (PIN Number:- 1721120110) Le dit 
immeuble soumis a un reglement de jouissance 
- reglement de copropriete suivant acte requ 
par Me. Antish Dassyne, notaire, les 23/02/1990 
et 16/04/1990, enregistre et transcrit au Vol. 
TV 2763/60. Du premier cote, par un drain d’un 
metre et vingt centimetre (1.20m) de large, un 
espace parking de deux metres et cinquante- 
cinq centimetres (2.55m) de large, longeant 
Saint Jean A8, sur quarante trois metres et 
soixante dix-huit centimetres (43.78m); Du 
deuxieme cote, par Madhoo Lane [cinq metres et 
quatre-vingt centimetres (5.80m) de large], sur 
trente huit metres et soixante cinq centimetres 
(38.65m); du troisieme cote, par Karmendra Nath 
Varma, survingtneufmetres etvingtneufcentimetres 
(29.29m); Du quatrieme et dernier cote, par Harry 
Madhoo et autres, sur quatorze metres et cinquante 
deux centimetres (14.52m). DESIGNATION Lot 
No. 52: Un local commercial etprofessionnel situe 
au 4eme etage en 5eme position apres le Lot No. 51 
dudit complexe immobilier connu sous le nom de 

“Discovery House ’ ayant une supeificie totale de 
trente quatre metres carres et soixante et onze 
centiemes (34.71m2). L’acces a I’immeuble et en 
particulier au Lot No. 52 se fait comme suit:- (i) 
pour le rez-de-chaussee par les deux corridors 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF FLACQ

SALE BY LEVY
TL 67/16
S 27/2016

On Saturday the 16th of November 2019 at 
).00 hrs in the yard of Flacq District Court, I, 
e undersigned Court Usher will sell by Public 
uction to the highest bidder and for cash, the 
tovable effects of Mr. Dalwhoor Bhanupratab of 
amgutty Road, Bel Air Riviere Seche, viz:

A Computer Sets make Quest

eized by Mr S. Kissoon one of the Court
sher, District Court of Flacq, on the 24th day of 
eptember 2016 at the request of J. Kalachand &
lo Ltd, in virtue and in execution of a Warrant to 
evy issued out by the District Clerk of Flacq on 
le 20th September 2016, pursuant to a Judgement 
elivered by the District Magistrate of the said 
'ourt on the 5th May 2016.

The above mentioned articles may be seen one 
our before the sale of the aforesaid place.
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de trois metres quatre vingt cinq (3m85) et deux 
metres treize (2m 13) de large respectivement; (ii) 
pour les etages superieurs par les deux ascenseurs 
aussi bien que par les escaliers. Avec I’ensemble 
une quote part a concurrence de 10/22000 
milliemes de la propriete du sol et de toutes les 
parties communes y attachees. Together with all 
buildings, constructions and plantations existing 
thereon and all dependencies and appurtenances 
thereof, generally whatsoever, without any 
exception or reservation the whole as morefully 
described in deed drawn up by Mr. Mohammad 
Youssoof Aumjaud, Notary Public, on the 
23/01/2003 and 30/01/2003 and 11/11/2003, 
registered and transcribed on the 19/11/2003 in 
Vol. TV 5353/4.” Location The property is found 
at the comer of St Jean Road and Madhoo Lane at 
approximately 183 metres southwest of its junction 
Poivre Avenue, itself at approximately 200 metres 
southwest of its junction with Avenue des Tulipes 
and at about 401 metres southwest to Trianon 
Roundabout at Quatre Bomes. Site Description 
The site, known as Residence Discovery House is 
constructed over an area of 878.90 square metres 
as described in the reglement de co-propriete 
registered and transcribed at Volume TV 2763/60 
on 16/04/1990 and a Memorandum of Survey 
drawn by Mr. Kadafi Koherattee, sworn Land 
Surveyor on 28/03/2019 registered at Reg:- LS 29 
No. 3861. The site has an irregular shape and an 
even topography with a developed frontage of 
43.78 metres to St Jean Road and 38.65 metres to 
Madhoo Lane. Parking facilities is also available 
at the front of the building with all services 
connected to the site. Unit Description The 
apartment designated as Lot No. 52 is situated on 
the fourth floor of Residence Discovery House. It is 
made of reinforced concrete frames and structures, 
concrete block walls under reinforced concrete 
slab roof. The elevations are fitted with aluminium 
glazed and framed openings. The unit provides an 
approximate gross covered area of 34.71 square 
metres and shares 10/22,000 in common parts. No 
internal inspection was possible.

The whole morefully described in the 
Memorandum of Charges filed in the above matter.

The sale is prosecuted at the request of The 
Mauritius Commercial Bank Ltd against Mrs. 
Mandini Barati HANOOMANSING, the lawful 

wife of Mr. Veyasen PYNEEANDEE, absent 
from Mauritius, duly represented by her agent and 
proxy Mrs. Chandrawtee HANOOMANSING, 
(bom NARRAIDOO), the Widow of Late 
Yogendranath Dey HANOOMANSING.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication failing which they shall 
forfeit such rights.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 15th day of October, 
2019.

Thierry Koenig SA 
ENSafrica (Mauritius) 

of 19, Church Street, 
Port Louis.

Attorney in charge of the sale.
(Rec. No. 18/145330)

SALE BY LICITATION
Notice is hereby given that on the 16th day 

of October 2019, has been filed in the office of 
the Master & Registrar, situate at the Supreme 
Court Building, Jules Koenig St, Port Louis, 
the Memorandum of Charges, containing the 
Conditions, Clauses, under and pursuant to which 
shall take place before the Master’s Bar, the Sale 
by Licitation, of “wwe portion de terrain de la 
contenance de 94 V2 toises soit 358.99m2, situe au 
quartier des Plaines Wilhems, ayant fait partie de 
la propriete Mangalkhan et bornee comme suit:- 
Du premier cote par un chemin commun et mitoyen, 
sur onze metres et quarante six centimetres 
(11.46m); du second cote par Khedun sur trente 
metres et soixante dix huit centimetres (30.78m); 
des 3eme et 4eme cotes, par le surplus du terrain 
du vendeur sur onze metres et quatre vingt neuf 
centimetres (11.89m) et trente metres et soixante 
dix huit centimetres (30.78m) respectivement. The 
whole morefully described in the Memorandum 
of Charges filed in the above matter and in the 
deed transcribed in Volume 924/47. The said 
sale is prosecuted at the request of 1.- Premdeo 
AUCHARAZ 2.- Ramesh AUCHARAZ
3.- Anil Kumar AUCHARUZ 4.- Heirs Gayedeo 
AUCHARUZ namely:- (i) Brinda AUCHARUZ
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i Kiran AUCHARUZ (iii) Viraj AUCHARUZ 
) Indranee JUGGOO, Widow of late Gayedeo 
JCHARUZ and 5.- Heirs of Sakoontala 
JCHARUZ namely:- (i) Chandni KHEDUN 
) Devanand KHEDUN (iii) Maheswaree 
HEDUN (iv) Vinamrata KHEDUN and 
) Amrita BROJOLALL, Widow of late 
lattarjeet KHEDUN against Rajcoomaree 
[JCHARUZ.
All parties claiming a right to take inscription 
legal mortgage upon the said immovable 

operty are warned that they must do so before 
3 transcription of the judgment of adjudication, 
iling which they shall debarred from such right.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port-Louis, this 17th day of October 
)19.

C. SEEBALUCK C.S.K 
Senior Attorney 

of Cathedral Square, 
Lislet Geoffrey Street, 

Port Louis.
Attorney in charge of the sale

ec. No. 18/145334) 

electronic filing under the Court (Electronic Filing 
of Documents) Rules 2012.

The said Petition is registered as Cause Number 
SC/COM/PET/00805/2019 and the returnable 
date is the 30th day of October, 2019. Any creditor 
or contributory of the said Company desirous 
to support or oppose the making of an Order on 
the Petition may do so by making the necessary 
appearance by electronic filing either through a 
legal adviser or in person at the Public Service 
Bureau located at the Commercial Division of the 
Supreme Court, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis. A 
copy of the Petition will be furnished to any creditor 
or contributory of the said Company requiring 
the same by the undersigned, on payment of the 
regulated charge for the same, or may be obtained 
on the electronic filing system.

Dated at Port Louis, this 16th day of October, 
2019.

Thierry Koenig SA 
ENSafrica (Mauritius) 
of 19th Church Street, 

Port Louis. 
Attorney for AfrAsia Bank Limited

(Rec. No. 18/145330)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 117 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009 

PHARMALAB PLASTIC SUPPLIES LTD.

(In Shareholders ’ Voluntary Winding-up)

Notice is hereby given that by virtue of a 
shareholders’ resolution dated 08 October 2019 
at 14.00 hrs, I have been appointed Liquidator 
of the abovenamed company for the purpose of 
its winding up under Sections 139 to 141 of the 
Insolvency Act 2009.

The date of the commencement of Liquidation 
is 08 October 2019.

Mushtaq Oosman 
Liquidator 

Level 9 Orange Tower 
Cybercity 

Ebene 
Telephone: 4036900

(Rec. No. 18/145307)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(COMMERCIAL DIVISION)
? the matter of:

THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009
AND

i the matter of:
BABYLONE LTD

AND

AfrAsia Bank Limited
electing its legal domicile in the office of 

Mr. Thierry Koenig SA, 
of 19th Church Street, Port Louis 

(hereinafter referred to as ‘‘‘‘the Petitioner”) 

Notice is hereby given that a Petition for the 
Jompulsory Winding Up (hereinafter referred to 
is “the Petition”) of the abovenamed Company 
vas, on Tuesday the 15th October, 2019 lodged 
>y The Mauritius Commercial Bank Limited, by
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Kemp Chatteris

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 117 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

EG Shares India Small Cap Mauritius
(In Liquidation)

Notice is hereby given that on 28 June 2019, 
a resolution of the shareholders was passed, 
whereby EG Shares India Small Cap Mauritius 
would be wound up voluntarily under Section 137 
of the Insolvency Act 2009 and Mr Stephen Robert 
Konfortion, FCA, Registered Insolvency 
Practitioner, has been appointed liquidator of the 
company.

Any enquiries should be sent to Mr Stephen 
Robert Konfortion, c/o Kemp Chatteris, 3rd Floor, 
Ceme House, La Chaussee, Port Louis, Mauritius.

Dated this 11 October 2019.

S. Robert Konfortion FCA 
Liquidator

(Rec. No. 18/145314)

(Rec. No. 18/145310)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 151 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

FINAL MEETING AND DISSOLUTION
OAKTECH LTD
(In Liquidation)

Notice is hereby given that in compliance 
with Section 151 of the Insolvency Act 2009, a 
final Meeting of the Company will be held at my 
office, C/o Baker Tilly, 1st Floor, Cyber Tower One, 
Ebene, 72201, Mauritius on 15th November 2019 
at 10:30 AM.

AGENDA:

1. To take cognizance of the acts and dealings of 
the liquidator.

2. To approve the dissolution and disposal of books 
of the Company.

3. Any other business.

Dated this 14th day of October 2019.

MR. SIN CHONG LI
Registered Insolvency Practitioner

Liquidator
(Rec. No. 18/145314)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(BANKRUPTCY DIVISION)
SC/COM/PET/00794/2019

In the matter of-

The Insolvency Act

And in the matter of:

Cyber Properties Investment Ltd

v/s

Weston International Capital Ltd

Respondent

Notice is hereby given that a petition for the 
winding up of the abovenamed Respondent by the 
Court was lodged on 09/10/2019 by the Petitioner 
above named having elected its legal domicile in 
the office of the undersigned Attorney at Law by 
electronic filings tern under the Court (Electronic 
Filing of Documents Rules 2012). 

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 117(l)(a) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

In the matter of:-.

LIVIDUS INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(In Shareholder’s Voluntary Liquidation)

Notice is hereby given that I, Arvin Rogbeer of 
C/o Moore Mauritius, 6th Floor, Newton Tower, 
Sir William Newton Street, Port Louis have been 
appointed as Liquidator of the company as from 
7th October 2019, 11 a.m. (the commencement 
date of the liquidation), following a shareholder’s 
resolution passed under Section 137(l)(b) of the 
Insolvency Act.

All inquiries shall be directed to me at the 
aforesaid address by 28th October 2019.

Port Louis, October 14, 2019.

Arvin Rogbeer FCA, FCCA
Liquidator 

Tel: 211-6535 (office hours) 
Email: moore-mauritius@intnet. mu
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rhe said petition is registered as Cause Number 
COM/PET /00794/2019 and the returnable date 
4th October 2019. Any creditor or contributory 
he said Weston International Capital Ltd (the 
ipany) desirous to support or oppose the 
ting of an order on the said petition may do so 
naking the necessary appearances by electronic 
ng System either through a legal advisor or in 
>on at the Public Advice Bureau located at the 
nmercial Division of the Supreme Court, Jules 
:nig Street, Port Louis. A copy of the petition 
be furnished to any creditor or contributory of 
company requiring same by the undersigned 
)mey at Law on payment of the prescribed fee 
the same or may be obtained on the Electronic 
ag System.

Jnder all legal reservations.

)ated this 14th day of October 2019.

G. Ramdewar (S.A) 
Attorney at Law 

of No. 217, St James Court, 
St Denis Street, 

Port Louis.
No. 18/145301) 

through the Electronic Filing System and any 
creditor or contributory of the said Company, 
desirous to support or oppose the making of an 
order of the petition, by making the necessary 
appearance by electronic filing either through 
a Solicitor or in person at the Public Service 
Bureau located at the Commercial Division of 
the Supreme Court of Mauritius, Jules Koenig 
Street, Port Louis, a copy of the petition will be 
furnished to any creditor or contributory of the said 
Company requiring the same by the undersigned, 
on payment of the regulated charge of the same or 
may be obtained on the electronic filing system.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 14th day of October 
2019.

R. Bucktowonsing SA 
Legis Consult Law Chambers, 

Level 2, Hennessy Court,
Cnr of Pope Hennessy 

and Suffren Streets, 
Port-Louis.

Attorney for the Petitioner
(Rec. No. 18/145335)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(BANKRUPTCY DIVISION)
In the matter of:-

The Insolvency Act 2009
And in the matter of-

TRIOMIX LTD,
a company incorporated in Mauritius, 
having its Registered Office situate at 

Coastal Road, Pointe aux Piments.
Petitioner

Notice is hereby given that a petition for the 
Compulsory Winding-Up of the abovenamed 
Company by the above Court was presented on 
the 11th of October, 2019, to the said Court by 
the undersigned Attorney, by electronic filing 
under the Court (Electronic filing of Documents) 
Rules 2012. And that the said petition is registered 
as Cause Number SC/COM/PET/00798/2019 
and made returnable on Monday the 28th day of 
October, 2019 for the Company to give its stand 

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(BANKRUPTCY DIVISION)
?e matter of:-

The Insolvency Act 2009
in the matter of:-

TRIO DEVELOPMENT LTD, 
a company incorporated in Mauritius, 
having its Registered Office situate at 

Coastal Road, Pointe aux Piments.
Petitioner 

lotice is hereby given that a petition for the 
ipulsory Winding-Up of the abovenamed 
ipany by the above Court was presented on 
11th of October, 2019 to the said Court by the 
irsigned Attorney, by electronic filing under 
Dourt (Electronic filing of Documents) Rules 
’. And that the said petition is registered 
Cause Number SC/COM/PET/00800/2019 
made returnable on Tuesday the 29th day of 
>ber, 2019 for the Company to give its stand
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through the Electronic Filing System and any 
creditor or contributory of the said Company, 
desirous to support or oppose the making of an 
order of the petition, by making the necessary 
appearance by electronic filing either through 
a Solicitor or in person at the Public Service 
Bureau located at the Commercial Division of 
the Supreme Court of Mauritius, Jules Koenig 
Street, Port Louis, a copy of the petition will be 
furnished to any creditor or contributory of the said 
Company requiring the same by the undersigned, 
on payment of the regulated charge of the same or 
may be obtained on the electronic filing system.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 14th day of October 
2019.

R. Bucktowonsing SA 
Legis Consult Law Chambers, 

Level 2, Hennessy Court, 
Cnr of Pope Hennessy 

and Sufifren Streets, Port-Louis. 
Attorney for the Petitioner

(Rec. No. 18/145335) 

creditor or contributory of the said Company, 
desirous to support or oppose the making of an 
order of the petition, by making the necessary 
appearance by electronic filing either through 
a Solicitor or in person at the Public Service 
Bureau located at the Commercial Division of 
the Supreme Court of Mauritius, Jules Koenig 
Street, Port Louis, a copy of the petition will be 
furnished to any creditor or contributory of the said 
Company requiring the same by the undersigned, 
on payment of the regulated charge of the same or 
may be obtained on the electronic filing system.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 14th day of October 
2019.

R. Bucktowonsing SA 
Legis Consult Law Chambers, 

Level 2, Hennessy Court, 
Cnr of Pope Hennessy 

and Suffren Streets, 
Port-Louis.

Attorney for the Petitioner
(Rec. No. 18/145335)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(BANKRUPTCY DIVISION)
In the matter of-

The Insolvency Act 2009
And in the matter of-

TRIO MESHCO LTD,
a company incorporated in Mauritius, 
having its Registered Office situate at 

Coastal Road, Pointe aux Piments.
Petitioner

Notice is hereby given that a petition for the 
Compulsory Winding-Up of the abovenamed 
Company by the above Court was presented on 
the 11th October, 2019, to the said Court by the 
undersigned Attorney, by electronic filing under 
the Court (Electronic filing of Documents) Rules 
2012. And that the said petition is registered 
as Cause Number SC/COM/PET/00796/2019 
and made returnable on Monday the 28th day of 
October, 2019 for the Company to give its stand 
through the Electronic Filing System and any 

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(BANKRUPTCY DIVISION)
In the matter of-

The Insolvency Act 2009
And in the matter of-

TRIO PROTAWELD LTD,
a company incorporated in Mauritius, 
having its Registered Office situate at 

Coastal Road, Pointe aux Piments.
Petitioner

Notice is hereby given that a petition for the 
Compulsory Winding-Up of the abovenamed 
Company by the above Court was presented on 
the 11th of October 2019, to the said Court by the 
undersigned Attorney, by electronic filing under 
the Court (Electronic filing of Documents) Rules 
2012. And that the said petition is registered 
as Cause Number SC/COM/PET/00797/2019 
and made returnable on Monday the 28th day of 
October, 2019 for the Company to give its stand 
through the Electronic Filing System and any
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editor or contributory of the said Company, 
sirous to support or oppose the making of an 
ier of the petition, by making the necessary 
pearance by electronic filing either through 
Solicitor or in person at the Public Service 
ireau located at the Commercial Division of 
; Supreme Court of Mauritius, Jules Koenig 
•eet, Port Louis, a copy of the petition will be 
•nished to any creditor or contributory of the said 
•mpany requiring the same by the undersigned, 
payment of the regulated charge of the same or 

ty be obtained on the electronic filing system.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 14th day of October 
19.

R. Bucktowonsing SA 
Legis Consult Law Chambers, 

Level 2, Hennessy Court, 
Cnr of Pope Hennessy 

and Suffren Streets, Port-Louis.
Attorney for the Petitioner

No. 18/145335)

Dated at Port Louis this 16th October 2019.

Mohammad Shaheer Akhtar Joomun
Land Surveyor 

3rd Floor, Vawda Building 
No. 7 Sir Virgile Naz, Port Louis. 

(Rec. No. 18/145328)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9 SUBSECTION 3 
OF THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011
Notice is hereby given that I, Mohammad 

Shaheer Akhtar Joomun, Land Surveyor, will 
survey a portion of land of an extent of 418.70m2 
situated at Royal Road, Beau Bassin in the 
district of Plaines Wilhems and belonging to 
Mr. Mohamad Beelal Hoossain Saeb by virtue 
of title deed transcribed in Volume 6900 No. 6.

The said survey will start on Wednesday the 
20th day of November 2019 at 13hrs30 in the 
afternoon and will continue on the following days 
if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the said survey on 
the aforesaid day and hour and to bring along 
with them all title deeds, plans and whatever 
like documents concerning their properties so as 
to be enable me to establish correctly the limits 
separating the aforesaid portion of land from the 
adjoining properties.

Under all legal reservation.

Dated at Port Louis this 16th October 2019.
Mohammad Shaheer Akhtar Joomun

Land Surveyor 
3rd Floor, Vawda Building 

No. 7 Sir Virgile Naz, Port Louis.
(Rec. No. 18/145328)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9(3) OF 
THE LAND SURVEYOR’S ACT 1976 AND 

THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011
Notice is hereby given at the request of Societe 

Les Roussailles represented by Mr. Jean Baptiste 
Wiehe, that, I Nicolas d’Hotman de Villiers, Land 
Surveyor will on Friday 15th of November 2019 at 
9.30 am proceed with the survey operations and 
fixing of boundary stones of six portions of land of 
the extent of 2Ha4047m2, lHa6883m2, 8443.31m2, 

)TICE UNDER SECTION 9 SUBSECTION 3 
3F THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011
Notice is hereby given that I, Mohammad 
aheer Akhtar Joomun, Land Surveyor, will 
•vey a portion of land of an extent of 100 Toises 
379.8m2 situated at Les Guibies in the district 
Moka and belonging to Mr. Abdool Aslham 
arika by virtue of title deed transcribed in 
lume 6461 No. 24.

The said survey will start on Wednesday the 
h day of November 2019 at 09hrs30 in the 
>ming and will continue on the following days 
leed be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
[uested to be present at the said survey on 
; aforesaid day and hour and to bring along 
th them all title deeds, plans and whatever 
e documents concerning their properties so as 
be enable me to establish correctly the limits 
>arating the aforesaid portion of land from the 
oining properties.

Under all legal reservation.
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lHa6883m2, 8Ha7072m2 and 7Ha9781m2 located 
at Balaclava in the district of Pamplemousses, 
belonging to the above mentioned as per TV. 8696 
No. 15.

You, the owners of the adjoining neighbours 
are therefore called upon to attend the survey 
operation on the aforesaid day, date and hour and 
to bring along with you all your title deed, plans or 
whatever like documents concerning your property 
and to produce them to me so as to allow me to 
establish correctly the limits of the said property.

Dated this 07/10/2019.

Nicolas d’Hotman de Villiers
Land Surveyor
Merestone ltd 

Eureka 
Moka

(Rec. No. 18/145266)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9(3) OF 
THE LAND SURVEYOR’S ACT 1976 AND 

THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011
Notice is hereby given at the request of Societe 

Brigitte Anne represented by Mr. Bertrand 
Maigrot, that, I Nicolas d’Hotman de Villiers, 
Land Surveyor will on Friday 15th November 2019 
at 9.30 am proceed with the survey operations and 
fixing of boundary stones of four portions of land of 
the extent of 2Ha5324m2, lHa4772m2,3Ha3765m2 
and 2Ha9592 m2 of located at Balaclava in the 
district of Pamplemousses, belonging to the above 
mentioned as per TV. 7923 No. 63 and TV. 8051 
No. 22.

You, the owners of the adjoining neighbours 
are therefore called upon to attend the survey 
operation on the aforesaid day, date and hour and 
to bring along with you all your title deed, plans or 
whatever like documents concerning your property 
and to produce them to me so as to allow me to 
establish correctly the limits of the said property.

Dated this 07/10/2019.

Nicolas d’Hotman de Villiers
Land Surveyor 
Merestone ltd

Eureka 
Moka

(Rec. No. 18/145266)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9 SUBSECTION 3 
OF THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011
Notice is hereby given that I, Mohammad 

Shaheer Akhtar Joomun, Land Surveyor, will 
survey a portion of land of an extent of 2A 84 
Perches or 11,987.27m2 situated at Montagne Ory 
in the district of Moka and belonging to Mr. Yasser- 
El-Ally Edris Cadinouche and Others by virtue 
of title deed transcribed in Volume 1859 No. 20.

The said survey will start on Saturday the 
23th day of November 2019 at 09hrs00 in the 
morning and will continue on the following days 
if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the said survey on 
the aforesaid day and hour and to bring along

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9(3) OF 
THE LAND SURVEYOR’S ACT 1976 AND 

THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011
Notice is hereby given at the request of 

Mr. Marie Theodore Jean Maigrot represented 
by proxy Mrs. Elisabeth Hein that, I Nicolas 
d’Hotman de Villiers, Land Surveyor will on 
Friday 15th of November 2019 at 9.30 am proceed 
with the survey operations and fixing of boundary 
stones of the portion of land of the extent of 
8Ha817m2 of located at Balaclava in the district of 
Pamplemousses, belonging to the above mentioned 
as per TV. 1916 No. 9.

You, the owners of the adjoining neighbours 
are therefore called upon to attend the survey 
operation on the aforesaid day, date and hour and 
to bring along with you all your title deed, plans or 
whatever like documents concerning your property 
and to produce them to me so as to allow me to 
establish correctly the limits of the said property.

Dated this 07/10/2019.

Nicolas d’Hotman de Villiers
Land Surveyor
Merestone ltd 

Eureka 
Moka 

(Rec. No. 18/145266)
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th them all title deeds, plans and whatever 
e documents concerning their properties so as 
be enable me to establish correctly the limits 
jarating the aforesaid portion of land from the 
joining properties.

Under all legal reservation.

Dated at Port Louis this 16th October 2019.

Mohammad Shaheer Akhtar Joomun
Land Surveyor 

3rd Floor, Vawda Building 
No. 7 Sir Virgile Naz, 

Port Louis.

:c. No. 18/145328)

First Publication

APPLICATION FOR
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that We Original 
Confection Ltd have applied to the Central Water 
Authority for renewal of a ground water licence to 
use ground water from SW193 borehole at Baie du 
Tombeau for non domestic purposes.

Any person who wishes to object to the granting 
of the renewal may do so within 21 days from the 
publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing to the authority stating reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Original Confection Ltd 
Applicant

(Rec. No. 18/145319)

First Publication

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that AEL DDS Ltd has 
applied to the Central Water Authority for renewal 
of its Ground Water Licence to use groundwater 
from a borehole at Tamariniers street, Roche Bois 
for industrial purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the granting 
of the renewal may do so within 21 days from the 
publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing within the Authority stating reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor
Royal Commercial Centre
St. Ignace Street,
Rose Hill

AEL DDS Ltd
Applicant

(Rec. No. 18/145329)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9(3)C(ii) 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT

Notice is hereby given that I, Mulkraj 
UCKCHADEE, Land Surveyor shall at the 
quest of Mr. Mohammad Kalil KHAIDOO 
oceed with the survey opening of the boundary 
aes and fixing of the boundary stones of a portion 
f land of the extent of 2,245.54m* i 2 * * 5, situate in 
ie district of Savanne, place called Riviere des 
nguilles and belonging to the abovenamed party
i virtue of TV 201808/000140.

The survey will be carried on Tuesday the
2th day of November, 2019 as from 09.00 a.m. 
ad will continue on the following day if needs be.

All the owners of the neighbouring properties of 
ie plots of land referred to the above are hereby 
jquested to be present at the survey operations and 
) produce to me or to any other Land Surveyor 
eputed by me, in case of impediment, their 
slevant title deeds or whatever documents which 
lay enable me to establish correctly the boundary 
ines separating the plots of land referred to the 
bove from the neighbouring properties.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated this 11th October, 2019.

Mulkraj NUCKCHADEE, 
Land Surveyor 
ARC Building,
5 S.S.R Street, 

Port Louis.
Rec. No. IX/145283)
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NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that we, Phoenix 
Beverages Limited, of Phoenix, have applied 
to the Central Water Authority for the renewal 
of ground water licences in respect of Boreholes 
No. BH 922, BH 964 and BH 1269 situated at 
Nouvelle France. The water from these boreholes 
will be used for industrial purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the granting 
of the licences may do so within 21 days from the 
publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing to the Authority, stating reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at the 
Water Resources Unit, 3rd Floor, Royal Commercial 
Centre, St Ignace Street, Rose-Hill.

This 15th October 2019.

PHOENIX BEVERAGES LIMITED
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/145314)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 84 
INSURANCE ACT 2005

NATIONAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

Notice is hereby given that:

There is an amount due to Mr. Lecordier Jean 
G Karl Joe under policy No. 89500262. The 
amount has been left untouched for more than 
10 years.

Should Mr. Lecordier Jean G Karl Joe not claim 
the amount due within 30 days of the date of this 
Notice, National Insurance Co. Ltd shall, pursuant 
to Section 84 of the Insurance Act 2005, without 
further formality forthwith transfer the amount to 
the Curator of Vacant Estates.

Date: 19th Oct 2019

NATIONAL INSURANCE CO. LTD
(Rec. No. 18/145304)

There is an amount due to Mr. Nunkoo Manoj 
under policy No. 89150872. The amount has been 
left untouched for more than 10 years.

Should Mr. Nunkoo Manoj not claim the 
amount due within 30 days of the date of this 
Notice, National Insurance Co. Ltd shall, pursuant 
to Section 84 of the Insurance Act 2005, without 
further formality forthwith transfer the amount to 
the Curator of Vacant Estates.

Date: 19*0012019

NATIONAL INSURANCE CO. LTD
(Rec. No. 18/145304)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that MINDEX Spot 
Limited has by special resolution changed its name 
to MINDEX Marketplace Limited, as evidenced 
by a certificate given under the seal of the office of 
the Registrar of Companies dated 14 May 2019.

Dated this 19th day of October 2019.

(Rec. No. 18/145316)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that A & S JOB 
CONTRACTORS LTD has by special resolution 
changed its name into A & S FAST PRINT LTD, 
as evidenced by a certificate given the seal of 
the office of the Registrar of Companies dated 
10 October 2019.

Dated this 17th day of October 2019.
(Rec. No. 18/145338)s

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “Bitumen Supplies 
and Services (Mauritius) Limited” has by a 
special resolution passed on 26 September 2019 
changed its name to “Global Road Binders 
(Mauritius) Ltd” as evidenced by a Certificate 
given under the seal of the Registrar of Companies 
dated 4th October 2019.

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 84 
INSURANCE ACT 2005

NATIONAL INSURANCE CO. LTD

Notice is hereby given that:
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Dated this 10 October 2019.

GMG Trust Ltd
Company Secretary

.No. 18/145272)

Dated this 14th October 2019.

Toukan Corporate Services Limited 
Company Secretary

(Rec. No. 18/145288)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “Barak African 
lance Limited” has by way of a special 
olution passed on 18th June 2019 changed its 
me to “Barak EU Security Agent Limited” 
evidenced by a certificate given under the hand 
d seal of the Registrar of Companies on the 
‘h day of June 2019.

Dated this 27th September 2019.

AcuFin Corporate Limited 
Company Secretary

:c. No. 18/145277)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “Origin 8 Limited” 
is by way of a special resolution passed on 
5th August 2019 changed its name to “Strateia 
td” as evidenced by a certificate given under the 
and and seal of the Registrar of Companies on the 
3th of September 2019.

Dated this 1st of October 2019.

Director
tec. No. 18/145277)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that TOWERS GLOBAL 
LIMITED (the “Company”), an Authorised 
Company, having its registered office at c/o Venture 
Corporate Services (Mauritius) Limited, Level 3, 
Tower I, Nexteracom Towers, Cybercity, Ebene, 
Mauritius, has by way of a special resolution 
passed on 25 September 2019 changed its name 
to Mayfair Holdings Limited as evidenced by 
a certificate given under the hand and seal of 
office of the Registrar of Companies dated the 
3rd October 2019.

Dated this 11th October 2019.

Venture Corporate Services 
(Mauritius) Limited 

Registered Agent
(Rec. No. 18/145298)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Shaheel Car 
Rental Ltd has, by special resolution passed on 
9th September 2019, changed its name to Rifa Car 
Rental Ltd as evidenced by a certificate issued by 
the Registrar of Companies on 3rd October 2019.

Dated this 12th October 2019.

Muhammad Ijaz Bussuruddy
Director

(Rec. No. 18/145297)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

In the matter of:
LEGIS & PARTNERS LTD

Notice is hereby given that LEGIS & 
PARTNERS LTD, a private company limited 
by shares, has by a special resolution dated

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “Horse forex”, 
. Global Business Company holding the FSC 
icence bearing number Cl 18023277 and having 
ts registered address at c/o Toukan Corporate 
services Limited, 5th Floor, The Core, 62 Ebene 
Sybercity, 72201, Mauritius, has by way of a 
Special Resolution passed on 20th September 2019, 
changed its name to “Horse Financial Ltd” as 
evidenced by a certificate issued by the Registrar 
■»f Cnmnanies on 4th October 2019.
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03 October 2019 changed its name into LEGIS 
and Partners Ltd in accordance with Section 36 
of the Companies Act 2001.

A certificate to that effect has been issued by the 
Registrar of Companies.

Dated this 10 October 2019.

Legis Corporate Secretarial Services Ltd 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/145295)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that ANAIS Trading 
& Consulting Cie has by special resolution 
changed its name to ANAIS LTD as evidenced by 
a certificate given under the seal of office of the 
Registrar of Companies dated 4th October 2019.

Mauritius International Trust 
Company Limited 

Company Secretary 
(Rec. No. 18/144322)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given -

That TANTALUM HOLDING (MAURITIUS) 
LTD, a Category 1 Global Business Licence 
Company, having its registered office at 8th Floor, 
Ebene Tower, 52 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius 
has by special resolution changed its name to 
“Reenova Holding (Mauritius) Limited”, as 
is evidenced by the Certificate of Incorporation 
on Change of Name issued by the Registrar of 
Companies on 08 October 2019.

Date: 10 October 2019

Anex Management Services Ltd 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/145320)

written resolution of its sole shareholder dated 
10 September 2019, changed its name to “VIKASA 
Global Fund PCC” as witnessed by a certificate 
delivered under the hand and seal of the Registrar 
of Companies dated 30 September 2019.

Dated: 15 October 2019

APEX FUND SERVICES 
(MAURITIUS) LTD

Secretary 
(Rec. No. 18/145325)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 302 & 304 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Sunstone 
Consultancy Services Limited, a Category 2 
Global Business Company having its registered 
office at C/o FinAegis Ltd, 5th Floor, Atchia 
Building, Cnr Suffren & Eugene Laurent Streets, 
Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius is applying to 
the Registrar of Companies for the transfer of 
incorporation under Section 302 of the Companies 
Act 2001 for the Company to be removed from the 
Register of Companies for the purpose of becoming 
incorporated under the law force in Seychelles.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 
should be filed with the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days from the date of publication 
of this notice.

Dated this: 8th of October 2019

By order of the Board
(Rec. No. 18/145296)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 304 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Toprope 
International Limited (the “Company”), having 
its registered address at c/o Anex Management 
Services Ltd, 8th Floor Ebene Tower, 52 Cybercity, 
Ebene, Republic of Mauritius has, by special 
resolution of its shareholder passed on 27 June 
2019, resolved that 28 days after the date of this 
notice, an application be made with the Registrar 
of Companies under Section 302 of the Companies 
Act 2001 for the Company to be removed from the 

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

(the “Act”)

Notice is hereby given that the public 
company “IDS Growth Fund PCC” has by a
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Register for the purpose of becoming incorporated 
mder the laws of the Republic of Seychelles as an 
International Business Company (IBC).

Dated this 17 October 2019.
;Rec. No. 18/145321)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 309 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
Protectdocs Co Ltd, having its registered office 
at Level 2, Standard Chartered Tower, Cybercity, 
Ebene, Republic of Mauritius, is applying to the 
Registrar of Companies, for the removal of the 
company from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309 of the Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased its activities and has 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its creditors.

Objections to the removal if any, should be filed 
with the Registrar of Companies not later than 
28 days from the date of publication of this notice.

Dated this: 7th October 2019

Director

Dated this 10 October 2019.

Secretary
(Rec. No. 18/145260)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that LE PAVILLON 
FIT CLUB LTD a domestic Company and having 
its Registered Office at More. Beau Manguier, 
Cap Malheureux, Mauritius is to be removed from 
the Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001. That the Company has 
ceased to carry on business, has discharged in full 
its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with 
the Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under 
Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later 
than 28 days after the date of the notice.

Dated this 11th October 2019.

Director
(Rec. No. 18/145261)

(Rec. No. 18/145311)

NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF
THE COMPANY UNDER SECTION 311 OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT 2001
Notice is hereby given that the Company 

“CHISLEHURST HOLDINGS”, a Global 
Business Category Two company having its 
registered office at c/o MATCO LIMITED, 
11th Floor, NeXTeracom Building, Tower 1, Ebene 
Cybercity, Mauritius, is applying to the Registrar of 
Companies for its removal from the Register under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the companies Act 2001 
should be delivered to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days of the date of this notice. .

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

1. Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“Varde Mauritius Ltd.” having its registered 
office at IFS Court, Bank Street TwentyEight, 
Cybercity, Ebene 72201, Mauritius, is applying 
to the Registrar of Companies for its removal 
from the Register under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

2. Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged 
in full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and 
has distributed its surplus assets in accordance 
with its Constitution and the Companies Act 
2001.

3. Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 
2001 should be delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies not later than 10 November 2019.
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Dated this: 11 * October 2019.

(Rec. No. 18/145264)
Registered Agent

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

1. Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“M-Web Intelprop Holdings Limited” 
having its registered office at IFS Court, Bank 
Street TwentyEight, Cybercity, Ebene 72201, 
Mauritius, is applying to the Registrar of 
Companies for its removal from the Register 
under Section 309(1 )(d)(i) of the Companies 
Act 2001.

2. Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged 
in full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and 
has distributed its surplus assets in accordance 
with its Constitution and the Companies Act 
2001.

3. Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 
2001 should be delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies not later than 14 November 2019.

Dated this 14 October 2019.

Secretary
(Rec. No. 18/145286)

(3) That any objection to the removal under 
Section 312 shall be delivered to the Registrar 
of Companies within 28 days from the date of 
the notice.

Date: 11th October 2019

Kross Border Business Solutions Ltd
Secretary

(Rec. No. 18/145299)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“ELOTIMA LTEE” holding a Category 1 Global 
Business Licence, having its registered office 
at 29 Bis, Mere Barthelemy Street, Appavoo 
Business Centre, Port Louis is on this 18 October 
2019 applying to the Registrar of Companies to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the company 
has ceased to carry business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by not later than 28 days from the date of the notice.

Dated this 18 October 2019.

Appavoo International Ltd
Secretary

(Rec. No. 18/145323)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “Kingdom Rest Co 
Ltd” (File No 135962) a Domestic Company and 
having its registered office at 49 Gladstone street 
Rose Hill is on this 15th of October 2019 applying 
to the Registrar of Companies to be removed from 
the Register of Companies under Section 311 of 
the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

KAMNA INDUSTRIES LTD

(the “Company”)

Notice is hereby given
(1) That the above Company having its registered 

office address at 3B-3rd Floor, Citius Building, 
31, Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius is to be 
removed from the Register of Companies 
under Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies 
Act 2001.

(2) That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors and distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Companies 
Act 2001.
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full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by latest on the 30th of November 2019.

(Rec. No. 18/145324) Directors

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Turtle Ridge Holdings
(the “Company”)

Notice is hereby given that the Turtle Ridge 
Holdings, having its registered office at 5th Floor, 
Ebene Esplanade, 24 Cybercity, Mauritius, is 
applying to the Registrar of Companies to remove 
the Company from the register of companies, 
in accordance with Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with its constitution and the Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objections to the removal under Section 
312 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be made with 
the Registrar of Companies, 1 Cathedral Square, 
Pope Hennessy Street, Port Louis, Mauritius, not 
later than 28 days from the date of this notice.

Dated this 09 October 2019.

International Proximity 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18145262)

The Company has ceased to carry on business 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

Objections, if any, should be lodged with the 
Registrar of Companies, 1 Cathedral Square 
Pope Hennessy Street, Port Louis, Mauritius, not 
later than 28 days from the date of the notice.

Dated this 9th day of October 2019.

International Proximity 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/145262)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given:

That Shankar Import & Export Ltd, a 
Category 2 Global Business Licence Company, 
having its registered off ice at C/o IQ EQ Corporate 
Services (Mauritius) Ltd, 33 Edith Cavell Street, 
Port-Louis 11324, Mauritius is to be removed from 
the Register of the Registrar of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

That pursuant to Section 312 of the Companies 
Act 2001, any objection to the removal of the 
Company shall be delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies not later than 28 days from the date of 
this notice.

Dated this 10th October 2019.
For and on behalf 

IQ EQ Corporate Services 
(Mauritius) Limited 
Company Secretary

(Rec. No. 18/145273)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“ENDOUME COMPANY LTD” having its 

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Veddis Ventures
Notice is hereby given that Veddis Ventures, 

having its registered office at Fifth Floor, 
Ebene Esplanade, 24 Bank Street, Cybercity, 
Ebene, Mauritius, is applying to the Registrar of 
Companies to remove the Company from the 
Register of Companies, in accordance with 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.
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Registered Office at 6th Floor Newton Tower, Sir 
William Newton Street, Port Louis is applying 
under Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 
2001 to the Registrar of Companies for its removal 
from the register of companies on the grounds that 
the Company has ceased to carry on business, has 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with its constitution and the Companies 
Act 2001.

Objections if any should be filed with 
the Registrar of Companies at latest on the 
14th November 2019.

Dated this 14th October 2019.

Director

(Rec. No. 18/145310)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “CONSULTANCY 
COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES LTD”, a 
Category 1 Global Business Licence Company 
of 9th Floor, Standard Chartered Tower, 19 
Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius is applying to the 
Registrar of Companies for its removal from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001 on the grounds that 
the company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its 
known creditors and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection under Section 312 of the 
Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to the 
Registrar of Companies within 28 days of the date 
of this notice, at latest by 12th November 2019.

Dated this 15th day of October 2019.

Knights & Johns Management Ltd
Secretary

(Rec. No. 18/145300)

That Petrocorp Inc (previously MWAMBAO 
ENERGIES LTD) (the “Company”), a Category 
2 Global Business Licence Company, having its 
Registered Office at C/o Acutus Management Ltd, 
24 St Georges Street, Port Louis 11324, Mauritius 
is to be removed from the Register of Companies 
under Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 
2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

That pursuant to Section 312 of the Companies 
Act 2001, any objection to the removal of the 
Company shall be delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies not later than 28 days from the date of 
this notice.

Dated this 15th day of October 2019.

Acutus Management Ltd
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 18/145308)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given:

That STERIFAR LTD (the “Company”), a 
Category 2 Global Business Licence Company, 
having its Registered Office at C/o Acutus 
Management Ltd, 24 St Georges Street, Port Louis 
11324, Mauritius is to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

That pursuant to Section 312 of the Companies 
Act 2001, any objection to the removal of the 
Company shall be delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies not later than 28 days from the date of 
this notice.

Dated this 15th day of October 2019.

Acutus Management Ltd 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 18/145308)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given:
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Les Jamalacs 
Ltd (“Company”) having its registered office at 
9-15 Sir William Newton Street, MCB Centre, 
Port Louis, is applying to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001 (“Act”) on the ground 
that the Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Act.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Act shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies not later than 28 days 
from the date of this notice.

Dated this 17th October 2019.

MCB Group Corporate Services Ltd
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/145333)

Dated this 2nd day of October 2019.

JTC Fiduciary Services (Mauritius) Limited 
Secretary

(Rec. No. 18/145317)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001 OF 

THE REPUBLIC OF MAURITIUS
In the matter of:

“Montana Investments Limited”
Notice is hereby given:

That “Montana Investments Limited”, a 
Category 2 Global Business Licence Company, 
having its registered office at C/o JTC Fiduciary 
Services (Mauritius), Suite 2004, Alexander 
House, 35 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius is to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001 of 
the Republic of Mauritius;

“That the removal is on the grounds that the 
Company has ceased to carry on business has 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets 
in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001 ”

That any objection to the removal under 
Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later 
than 28 days from the date of this notice.

Dated this 2nd day of October 2019.

JTC Fiduciary Services (Mauritius) Limited
Secretary

(Rec. No. 18/145317)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given:
That Square Feet Properties Ltd, a domestic 

Company, having its registered office at Lot 63 
Domaine de Belle Isle Bambous, is applying 
to the Registrar of Companies for the removal 
of the Company from the Register under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001:

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001 OF 

THE REPUBLIC OF MAURITIUS
In the matter of:

“Idea Power Investment Limited”
Notice is hereby given:

That “Idea Power Investment Limited”, a 
Category 2 Global Business Licence Company, 
having its registered office at C/o JTC Fiduciary 
Services (Mauritius), Suite 2004, Alexander 
House, 35 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius is to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001 of 
the Republic of Mauritius;

“That the removal is on the grounds that the 
Company has ceased to carry on business has 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets 
in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.”

That any objection to the removal under 
Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later 
than 28 days from the date of this notice.
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“Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
constitution and Companies Act 2001.”

Any objection to the removal, if any, should be 
lodged with the Registrar of Companies not less 
than 28 days after the date of this notice.

Dated this 16 October 2019.

Mr Harry Krishna Ganapathee 
Director

(Rec. No. 18/145315)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given:

That Watermark International Ltd, a 
domestic Company, having its registered office 
at C/o Business Financial Services, 4th Floor, 
Goliva Court, St Jean Road, Quatre Bomes is 
applying to the Registrar of Companies for the 
removal of the Company from the Register under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001:

“Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
constitution and Companies Act 2001.”

Any objection to the removal, if any, should be 
lodged with the Registrar of Companies not less 
than 28 days after the date of this notice.

Dated this 15 October 2019.

Mr Sivalingum Amagherry
Secretary

(Rec. No. 18/145315) 

discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets 
in accordance with the Companies Act 2001 and 
therefore intends to apply to the Registrar of 
Companies to be removed from the register under 
Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days of the date of this notice.

Dated this 11th October 2019.

Mauritius International Trust 
Company Limited 

(Rec. No. 18/145322) Registered Agent

NOTICE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 
311(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that VNL Global 
Systems Ltd, a Category 2 Global Business 
Licence Company, of 3rd Floor, 355 NEX, Rue 
Du Savoir, Cybercity, Ebene 72201, Mauritius is 
applying to the Registrar of Companies, for the 
removal of the Company from the Register under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001, on 
the following ground:

“The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all known 
creditors and has distributed its assets in accordance 
with its constitution/ the Companies Act 2001.”

That any objection to the removal under 
Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later 
than 28 days from the date of the publication of 
this notice.

Date: 17 October 2019

Vistra (MAURITIUS) Limited 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 18/145327)

NOTICE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 
311(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that VNL Global 
Services Ltd, a Category 2 Global Business 
Licence Company, of 3rd Floor, 355 NEX, Rue 
Du Savoir, Cybercity, Ebene 72201, Mauritius is 

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that SHELDON 
MANAGEMENT LIMITED, a Category 2 Global 
Business Company having its registered office at 
4th Floor, Ebene Skies, Rue de ITnstitut, Ebene, 
Mauritius has ceased to carry on business, has
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applying to the Registrar of Companies, for the 
removal of the Company from the Register under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001, on 
the following ground:

“The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all known 
creditors and has distributed its assets in accordance 
with its constitution/ the Companies Act 2001.”

That any objection to the removal under 
Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later 
than 28 days from the date of the publication of 
this notice.

Date: 17 October 2019

Vistra (MAURITIUS) Limited 
(Rec. No. 18/145327) Registered Agent

NOTICE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 
311(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that VNL Global 
Systems Ltd, a Category 2 Global Business 
Licence Company, of 3rd Floor, 355 NEX, Rue 
Du Savoir, Cybercity, Ebene 72201, Mauritius is 
applying to the Registrar of Companies, for the 
removal of the Company from the Register under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001, on 
the following ground:

“The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all known 
creditors and has distributed its assets in accordance 
with its constitution/ the Companies Act 2001.”

That any objection to the removal under 
Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later 
than 28 days from the date of the publication of 
this notice.

Date: 17 October 2019

Vistra (MAURITIUS) Limited 
Registered Agent

Rec. No. 18/145327) 

office at 2nd Floor, Sicom Tower Wall Street, 
Ebene is applying to the Registrar of Companies 
for removal from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is also given that the Company has 
ceased to carry on business, has discharged in full 
its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with 
the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection or claim should be lodged with 
the Registrar of Companies within 28 days of the 
date of this notice.

Dated this 15 October 2019.

Prime Partners Ltd
Company Secretary

(Rec. No. 18/145313)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that CLEMBY Holding 
Ltd, a domestic company having its registered 
office at 4th Floor, Ebene Skies, Rue de 1’Institut, 
Ebene, Mauritius has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001 and 
therefore intends to apply to the Registrar of 
Companies to be removed from the register under 
Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal should be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies by latest 
the 18th November 2019.

Dated this 17th October 2019.

MITCO Corporate Services Ltd
Corporate Secretary

(Rec. No. 18/145322)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that BENIBY Holding 
Ltd, a domestic company having its registered 
office at 4th Floor, Ebene Skies, Rue de 1’lnstitut, 
Ebene, Mauritius has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

National Water Development Company Ltd
Notice is hereby given that National Water 

development Company Ltd, having its registered
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creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001 and 
therefore intends to apply to the Registrar of 
Companies to be removed from the register under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal should be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies by latest 
the 18th November 2019.

Dated this 17th October 2019.

MITCO Corporate Services Ltd 
(Rec. No. 18/145322) Corporate Secretary

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Presios Ltd a 
domestic company having its registered office at 
4th Floor, Ebene Skies, Rue de L’Institut, Ebene, 
Mauritius has ceased to carry on business, has 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001 and 
therefore intends to apply to the Registrar of 
Companies to be removed from the register under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal should be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies by latest 
the 15 November 2019.

Dated this 15 October 2019

MITCO Corporate Services Ltd 
(Rec. No. 18/145322) Corporate Secretary 

Beau Vallon, Beau Vallon to The Beau Vallon 
Shopping Mall, Beau Vallon, Mahebourg.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets Port Louis within 
21 days from date published in the Gazette.

(Rec. No. 18/145276)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART HI OF THE EXCISE ACT

CLAYVIO LORIE TRADING CO LTD of 101 
Ste Marie Road, St Croix, Port Louis has applied 
to the Director General of the Mauritius Revenue 
Authority for the issue of a new licence of Retailer 
of liquor and alcoholic Products - off in respect of 
premises situated at 101 Ste Marie Road, St Croix, 
Port Louis.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets Port Louis within 
21 days from date published in the Gazette.
(Rec. No. 18/145326)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs Marie Maureen Ameer of No. 7, 
Cite EDC, G.R.S.E have applied to the Director 
General of the Mauritius Revenue Authority for 
the issue of a new licence of Retailer of Liquor and 
Alcoholic Products - Off in respect of premises 
situated at No. 7, Cite EDC, G.R.S.E.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Mrs Marie Maureen Ameer
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/145287)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

King Savers Ltd of C/R Ave. Des Flamboyants 
Bois Noirs, Morcellement Beau Vallon, Beau 
Vallon have applied to the Director General of 
the Mauritius Revenue Authority for the transfer 
of licence of Retailer of liquor and alcoholic 
Products - off in respect of premises situated at C/R 
Ave. Des Flamboyants Bois Noirs, Morcellement
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<jMCB Leasing MCB Leasing Limited (formerly Finlease Company Limited)
Summary Financial Statements - Year ended June 30,2019

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Deposits with financial institutions
Net lease receivables
Investment Securities
Plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Current tax assets
Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers
Borrowings
Shareholders' loan
Current tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital
General risk reserve
Statutory reserve
Retained earnings
Total equity
Total equity and liabilities

30-Jun-19 W 30-Jun-18 30-Jun-17
Rs. Rs.__________________ Rs.

98,801,232 394,406,948 284,000,203
110,931,181 228,057,667 220,802,804

3,479,176,558 3,503,306,982 3,792,741,571
198,704,604 - -

B 694,910,041 592,372,209 600,288,462
fe' 24,706,330 26,048,834 30,077,916

7,387,534 - -
62,235,315 43,210,642 62,143,183

4,676,852,795 4,787,403,282 4,990,054,139

3,772,427,151 3,718,723,176 3,801,998,230
158,343,883 324,460,586 562,294,258

- 105,571,251
8,126,179 296,181

16,232,862 18,011,193 21,903,197
79,779,747 102,317,454 105,161,754

4,026,783,643 4,171,638,588 4,597,224,871

400,000,000 400,000,000 200,000,000
- 19,657,776 19,657,776

109,177,409 95,584,347 86,144,034
140,891,743 100,522,571 87,027,458
650,069,152 615,764,694 392,829,268

4,676,852,795 4,787,403,282 4,990,054,139

MCB Leasina MCB Leasing Limited (formerly Finlease Company Limited)
Summary Financial Statements - Year ended June 30, 2019

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Share General Risk Statutory Retained

Capital Reserve Reserve Earnings Total
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance at July 1, 2016 200,000,000 19,657,776 79,254,260 47,985,224 346,897,260
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - 45,932,008 45,932,008
Statutory appropriations of retained earnings - - 6,889,774 (6,889,774)
Balance at June 30, 2017 200,000,000 19,657,776 86,144,034 87,027,458 392,829,268

Balance at July 1,2017 200,000,000 19,657,776 86,144,034 87,027,458 392,829,268
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - 62,935,426 62,935,426
Transactions with owner of the Company
- Dividends - - (40,000,000) (40,000,000)
Issue of non-cumulative preference shares 200,000,000 - 200,000,000
Statutory appropriations of retained earnings - - 9,440,313 (9,440,313)
Balance at June 30, 2018 400,000,000 19,657,776 95,584,347 100,522,571 615,764,694

Balance at July 1, 2018 400,000,000 19,657,776 95,584,347 100,522,571 615,764,694
Impact of adopting IFRS 9 w®-.'
- Expected Credit Losses - ■ - (16,315,956) (16,315,956)
- Reversal of General Risk Reserve - (19,657,776) • 19,657,776
Restated Balance at July 1,2018 400,000,000 - 95,584,347 103,864,391 599,448,738
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - 90,620,414 90,620,414
Transactions with owner of the Company If
- Dividends - (40,000,000) (40,000,000)
Statutory appropriations of retained earnings • - 13,593,062 (13,593,062)
Balance at June 30, 2019 400,000,000 - 109,177,409 140,891,743 650,069,152
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MCB Leasinci MCB Leasing Limited (formerly Finlease Company Limited)
Summary Financial Statements - Year ended June 30,2019

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
30-Jun4$#f3S 30-Jun-18 30-Jun-17

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Profit before income tax 97,365,759 J 76,063,058 50,596,412
Adjustments for:
LossZ(profit) on disposal of plant and equipment 367,355 i 185,332 1,203,656
(Profit)Zloss on disposal of repossessed leased assets 2,763,632 (423,084) 6,235,461
Amortisation 3,617,510 4,029,082 4,000,602
Depreciation V' ' 135,449,666 , 132,564,038 117,364,586
Write off of plant and equipment - -
Net impairment of financial assets 6,104,672 17,846,039 42,792,687
Increase in interest receivable 16,906,406 (7,254,863) (8,161,439)
lncrease/(Decrease) in interest payable 35,828,745 ■ 2,987,136
Decrease/(lncrease) in other assets (36,160,107)1 13,088,234 (30,916,701)
(Decrease)/lncrease in other liabilities life' (25,449,745) ' (2,844,300) 66,048,825

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Net decreaseZ(increase) in investment in finance leases 10.745,081 271,588,550 44,170,660
Net (decrease)/increase in deposits 17,875,230 (83,275,054) 361,701,025
Cash generated from operations 265,414,204 421,567,032 658,022,910
Tax paid (20,693,627) (9,189,638) (9,527,777)
Net cash generated from operating activities 244,720,577 412,377,394 648,495,133

Cash flows from investing activities
Deposits with financial institutions 100,000,000 - -
Investment in Securities (198,726,783) - -
Proceeds from sale of repossessed leased assets 5,345,000 6,267,390 17,267,447
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 67,436,475 63,273,568 39,444,073
Purchase of intangible assets (2,275,006) - (244,783)
Purchase of plant and equipment (305,791,328) (188,106,686) (285,604,550)
Net cash used in investing activities (334,011,642) (118,565,728) (229,137,813)

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid (40,000,000) (40,000,000) (50,000,000)
Payments on long term borrowings (205,859,350) (237,833,670) (266,493,141)
Payment on shareholders’ loan - (145,571,251) -
Proceeds from short term borrowings (420,000,000) - 450,000,000
Proceeds from long term borrowings - - 41,629,282
Proceeds from shareholders’ loan - 40,000,000 -
Proceeds from issue of preference shares - 200,000,000 -
Payments on short term borrowings 459,742,647 - (450,000,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (206,116,703) (183,404,921) (274,863,859)

IncreaseZ(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (295,409,708) 110,406,745 144,493,461

Movement in cash and cash equivalents
At July 1, 394,406,948 284,000,203 139,506,742
Effect of adoption of IFRS9 on Cash and Cash Equivalents (196,008) - -
IncreaseZ(Decrease) (295,409,708) 110,406,745 144,493,461
At June 30, 98,801,232 394,406,948 284,000,203

CfMCB Leasing MCB Leasing Limited (formerly Finlease Company Limited)
Summary Financial Statements - Year ended June 30, 2019

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income

Operating lease income
Processing fees
Other operating income

Operating income

Net impairment of financial assets
Personnel expenses
(Loss)/Profit on disposal of assets
Depreciation and amortisation
Other expenses

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

30-Jun-19
Rs.

30-Jun-18 
Rs.

30-Jun-17
Rs.

274,377,522 288,681,080 297,296,204
(176,293,044) (200,944,451) (206,549,800)

98,084,478 87,736,629 90,746,404

185,213,740 175,695,996 155,115,678
9,348,269 7,606,012 9,995,888

16,964,246 11,700,438 22,080,864
211,526,255 195,002,446 187,192,430

309,610,733 282,739,075 277,938,834

(6,104,672) (17,846,039) (42,792,687)
(38,502,579) (30,670,568) (28,567,013)

■' ■ (3,130,987) 237,752 (7,439,117)
■ (139,067,176) (136,593,120) (121,365,188)

(25,439,560) (21,804,042) (27,178,417)

97,365,759 76,063,058 50,596,412
(6,745,345) (13,127,632) (4,664,404)

90,620,414 62,935,426 45,932,008
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<Tmcb Leasing MCB Leasing Limited (formerly Finlease Company Limited)
Summary Financial Statements - Year ended June 30, 2019

Note 1:

The accompanying summary financial statements, without reference to the detailed notes, are derived from the audited financial statements of MCB Leasing Limited (the “Company”) for the 
year ended 30 June 2019. These audited financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the Mauritian 
Companies Act 2001 ,the Mauritian Banking Act 2004 and guidelines issued by the Bank of Mauritius, are available at 9-15 Sir William Newton Street, Port-Louis and can be viewed on our website: 
http://www.finlease.mu/en/

Where necessary, comparative figures have been amended to conform with changes in presentation or in accounting policies.

Note 2:

The Board of Directors of MCB Leasing Limited accepts full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this communique.

15% of the profit after tax is transferred to the Statutory Reserve in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritian Banking Act 2004.
The General Risk Reserve consists of amounts set aside in respect of impairment of the lease portfolio, in addition to the specific and portfolio provision.

Approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 September 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Bernard D'Hotman De Villiers Anju Unrowsing-Ramtohul
Chairman Director

Raj Gungah 
Managing Director

<Tmcb Leasing MCB Leasing Limited (formerly Finlease Company Limited)
Summary Financial Statements - Year ended June 30, 2019

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF FINLEASE COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the Summary Financial Statements
Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying summary financial statements of MCB Leasing Limited (the “Company”) are consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements, in 
accordance with note 1.

The summary financial statements
The Company's summary financial statements derived from the audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 comprise:
• the summary statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019;

• the summary statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;

• the summary statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
• the summary statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

• the related notes to the summary financial statements.

The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by International Financial Reporting Standards. Reading the summary financial statements and auditor's report 
thereon, therefore, is not a substitute for reading the audited financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon.

The audited financial statements and our audit report thereon

\Ne expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the audited financial statements in our report dated 26 September 2019. That report also includes the communication of key audit matters. Key audit 
matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current year.

Responsibilities of the directors for the summary financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the summary financial statements in accordance with note 1.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the summary financial statements are consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements based on our procedures, 
which were conducted in accordance with International Standard on Auditing 810 (Revised), ‘Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Statements’.

Other Matter
This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company's shareholders in accordance with Section 34(6)(b) (ii) of the Mauritian Banking Act 2004 and for no other 
purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where 
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Gilles Beesoo, licensed by FRC

26 September 2019

(Rec. No. 18/145126)
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of Village Councils under jurisdiction of The District Council of 
Pamplemousses for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Arsenal

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Arsenal for 
the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14,h Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/ 211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Opinion

my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Arsenal for the six-month period ended 
30 June 2016 m accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius and in 
compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Baie Du Tombeau

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Baie du 
Tombeau for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14,h Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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opinion

O my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
^the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Baie du Tombeau for the six-month 
period ended 30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Calebasses

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Calebasses 
for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance -with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14,h Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230)211 0880
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Opinion

In my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Calebasses for the six-month period 
ended 30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius 
and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Congomah

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Congomah 
for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14"' Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
TeL: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax:(230) 211 0880



4900 The Mauritius Government Gazette

Opinion

In my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Congomah for the six-month period 
ended 30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius 
and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Creve Coeur

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Creve 
Coeur for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance 'With International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

I411' Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/ 211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Opinion

In my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Creve Coeur for the six-month period 
ended 30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius 
and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of D’Epinay

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of D’Epinay 
for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14lh Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Opinion

In my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of D’Epinay for the six-month period 
ended 30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius 
and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Fond Du Sac

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Fond du 
Sac for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14th Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Opinion

In my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Fond du Sac for the six-month period 
ended 30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius 
and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah 
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Le Hochet

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Le Hochet 
for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14,h Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/ 211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Opinion

In my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a hue and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Le Hochet for the six-month period 
ended 30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius 
and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah 
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Long Mountain

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Long 
Mountain for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14,h Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Opinion

In my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Long Mountain for the six-month period 
ended 30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius 
and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah 
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Morcellement Saint Andre

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of 
Morcellement Saint Andre for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14lh Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Opinion

In my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Morcellement Saint Andre for the 
six-month period ended 30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Notre Dame

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Notre 
Dame for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14'1' Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Opinion

In my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Notre Dame for the six-month period 
ended 30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius 
and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah 
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Pamplemousses

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of 
Pamplemousses for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14,b Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/ 211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Opinion

In my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Pamplemousses for the six-month period 
ended 30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius 
and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah 
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14. Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Plaine des Pap a yes

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Plaine des 
Papayes for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is io express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14"’ Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Opinion

In my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Plaine des Papayes for the six-month 
period ended 30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Pointe aux Piments

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Pointe aux 
Piments for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

. Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Paymerits. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14lh Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Opinion

In my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Pointe aux Piments for the six-month 
period ended 30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah 
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Terre Rouge

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Terre 
Rouge for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

I411’ Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Opinion

In my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Terre Rouge for the six-month period 
ended 30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius 
and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah 
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Triolet

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Triolet for 
the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14"' Floor, Air Mauritius Centre. John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Opinion

In my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Triolet for the six-month period ended 
30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius and in 
compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Trou aux Biches

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Trou aux 
Biches for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14,h Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Opinion

In my opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Trou aux Biches for the six-month 
period ended 30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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NAW0MAL OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Ville Bague

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Ville 
Bague for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14"' Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/ 211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Opinion

In my opinion,, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view of 
the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Ville Bague for the six-month period 
ended 30 June 2016 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius 
and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

2 October 2019
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HIE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF ARSENAL
Statement of Receipts and Payments for period 01 January 2016 to 30 June 2016

Receipts Rs Payments Rs
Opening Balance (01 Jan. 2016) 59,775.70 1.1/; Allowances to Chairperson & 155,731.00

Councillors
Subsidies received: 1.4 Bonus
04 February 2016 30,000.00 2.1 Rent - Village Hall -
05 March 2016 50,000.00 2.2 Rent - Sub Hall -
02 April 2016 75,000.00 3.1 Water Charges 3,622.00
28 May 2016 75,000.00 3.2 Electricity 1,805.00

3.3 Telephone -
3.4 Newspaper 1,320.00
3.5 Furniture & Equipment -
3-6 Sundry Expenses 397.00
4.1 Maintenance of Assets 5,693.00
4.2 Maintenance of Cremation Ground -
5.1 National Day Celebrations 15,000.00
5.2 Sports Activities 15,000.00
5.3 Christmas/End of Year Celebrations -
5.4 Socio-Cultural & Welfare Activities 45,000.00
5.5 Village Council Function 4,700.00

Balance at 30 June 2016 41,507.70
Total 289,775.70 Total 289,775.70

District Council Office
Pamplemousses
Date: 04 August 2016

Mis S. KISTO
Ag. Assistant Chief Executive
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THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF BAIE DU TOMBEAU
RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS FOR Period 01 January 2016 to 30 June 2016

RECEIPTS PAYMENTS
DATE DETAILS AMOUNTfRs) DATE DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs)
01.01.16 OPENING BALANCE 58,297.80 COUNCILLORS ALLOWANCE 142,975.00
04.02.16 GRANT FROM DC 30,000.00 WATER CHARGES 2,863.00
05.03.16 GRANT FROM DC 50,000.00 ELECTRICITY CHARGES 5,940.00
02.04.16 GRANT FROM DC 75,000.00 SUNDRY EXPENSES 177.00
28.05.16 GRANT FROM DC 75,000.00 NATIONAL DAY CELEBRATION -

SPORT ACTIVITIES 4,704.00
SOCIO CULTURAL & WELFARE 
ACTIVITIES 29,430.00
VILLAGE COUNCIL FUNCTION 4,828.00

30.06.16 CLOSING BALANCE 97,380.80
288,297.80 288,297.80

30.06.16
CLOSING BALANCE AS
PER Cash book 97,380.80

Mrs R Manee Date Q.U.‘....’&'J.^..

Ag Asst Chief Executive '

The District Council office
Pamplemousses
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THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OFC ALEBASSES
Statement of Receipts and Payments for period 01 January 2016 to 30 June 2016

Receipts Rs Payments Rs

Opening Balance (01 Jan. 2016) 217,103.25 1.1/: Allowances to Chairperson & 114,804.00
Councillors

Subsidies received: 1.4 Bonus -
04 February 2016 30,000.00 2.1 Rent - Village Hall -
05 March 2016 50,000.00 2.2 Rent - Sub Hall -
02 April 2016 75,000.00 3.1 Water Charges 2,424.00
28 May 2016 75,000.00 3.2 Electricity 2,419.00

3.3 Telephone -
3.4 Newspaper 1,560.00
3.5 Furniture & Equipment 15,000.00
3.6 Sundry Expenses 171.00
4.1 Maintenance of Assets 1,046.00
4.2 Maintenance of Cremation Ground -
5.1 National Day Celebrations 24,192.00
5.2 Sports Activities 25,000.00
5.3 Christmas/End of Year Celebrations -
5.4 Socio-Cultural & Welfare Activities 40,607.50
5.5 Village Council Function 1,770.00

Balance at 30 June 2016 218 109.75
Total 447,103.25 Total 447,103.25

District Council Office
Pamplemousses
Date: 04 August 2016

Mrs S. KISTO
Ag. Assistant Chief Executive
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THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF CONGOMAH

RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS FOR Period 01 January 2016 to 30 June 2016

RECEIPTS PAYMENTS

DATE DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs) DATE
Exp
Code DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs)

01.01.16 OPENING BALANCE 96,824.65 1.1
COUNCILLORS
ALLOWANCE 154,333.00

04.02.15 GRANT FROM DC 30,000.00 3.1 WATER CHARGES 2,807.00

05.03.16 GRANT FROM DC 50,000.00 3.2 ELECTRICITY CHARGES 1,030.00
02.04.16 GRANT FROM DC 75,000.00 3.6 SUNDRY EXPENSES 192.00

28.05.16 GRANT FROM DC 75,000.00 4.1
MAINTENANCE OF
ASSETS -

4.2
MAINTENANCE OF
CREMATION GROUND

5.1
NATIONA DAY 
CELEBRATION 2,160.00

5.2 SPORT ACTIVITIES 3,750.00

5.4
SOCIO CULTURAL &
WELFARE ACTIVITIES 33,372.25

5.5
VILLAGE COUNCIL
FUNCTION -

30.06.16 CLOSING BALANCE 129,180.40
326,824.65 326,824.65

Mrs R Manee
Ag Asst Chief Executive

..... ..................... Date

The District Council office
Pamplemousses
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THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF CREVE COEUR :
Statement of Receipts and Payments for period 01 January 2016 to 30 June 2016

Receipts Rs Payments Rs
Opening Balance (01 Jan. 2016) 106,719.15 1.1/: Allowances to Chairperson & 

Councillors
147,880.00

Subsidies received: 1.4 Bonus -
04 February 2016 30,000.00 2.1 Rent - Village Hall -
05 March 2016 50,000.00 2.2 Rent - Sub Hall -
02 April 2016 75,000.00 3.1 Water Charges 2,495.00
28 May 2016 75,000.00 3.2 Electricity 3,091.00

3.3 Telephone -
3.4 Newspaper -
3.5 Furniture & Equipment 9,999.00
3.6 Sundry Expenses 156.00
4.1 Maintenance of Assets 3,487.80
4.2 Maintenance of Cremation Ground -
5.1 National Day Celebrations 24,614.80
5.2 Sports Activities 17,420.00
5.3 Christmas/End of Year Celebrations -
5.4 Socio-Cultural & Welfare Activities 22,419.60
5.5 Village Council Function 3,080.00

Balance at 30 June 2016 102,075.95
Total 336,719.15 Total 336,719.15

■Shiite
Mrs S. KISTO
Ag. Assistant Chief Executive

District Council Office
Pamplemousses
Date: 04 August 2016
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THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF D’EPINAY

RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS FOR Period 01 January 2016 to 30 June 2016

RECEIPTS PAYMENTS

DATE DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs) DATE
Exp 
Code DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs)

01.01.16 OPENING BALANCE 96,669.54 1.1
COUNCILLORS
ALLOWANCE 153,998.00

04.02.16 GRANT FROM DC 30,000.00 3.1 WATER CHARGES 2,406.00

05.03.16 GRANT FROM DC 50,000.00 3.2 ELECTRICITY CHARGES 10,988.00
02.04.16 GRANT FROM DC 75,000.00 3.6 SUNDRY EXPENSES 192.00

28.05.16 GRANT FROM DC 75,000.00 4.1
MAINTENANCE OF
ASSETS 2,265.00

STALE CHEQUE sbm No 
8388 of 27.01.15 1,820.00 4.2

MAINTENANCE OF 
CREMATION GROUND 1,000.00

STALE CHEQUE sbm No 
8394 of 27.03.15 950.00 5.2 SPORT ACTIVITIES

5.4
SOCIO CULTURAL & 
WELFARE ACTIVITIES 46,109.00

5.5
VILLAGE COUNCIL 
FUNCTION 1,293.00
CREDITORS YR 15 704.00

30.06.16 CLOSING BALANCE 110,484.54
329,439.54 329,439.54

Mrs R Manee ...... Date
Ag Asst Chief Executive '

The District Council office
Pamplemousses
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF PAMPLEMOUSSES

RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING 30th JUNE 2016

VILLAGE: FOND DU SAC

RECEIPTS PAYMENTS
DATE DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs) DATE DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs)
01.01.16 OPENING BALANCE 119,183.22 1/1-3 COUNCILLORS ALLOWANCE 152,842.00
04.02.16 GRANT FROM DC 30,000.00 2/2 RENT -
05.03.16 GRANT FROM DC 50,000.00 3/1 WATER CHARGES 2,454.00
02.04.16 GRANT FROM DC 75,000.00 3/2 ELECTRICITY CHARGES 2,036.00
28.05.16 GRANT FROM DC 75,000.00 3/3 TELEPHONE -

3/4 NEWSPAPERS -
3/5 FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT -
3/6 SUNDRY EXPENSES 312.00
4/1 MAINTENANCE OF ASSET -
4/2 CREMATION GROUND -
5/1 NATIONAL DAY CELEBRATION 12,000.00
5/2 SPORT ACTIVITIES 17,250.00
5/3 CHRISTMAS/ENDOFYEAR -

5/4
SOCIO-CULTURAL & WELFARE 
ACTIVITEIS 63,000.00

5-May VILLAGE COUNCIL FUNCTION 3,816.00

30.06.16 CLOSING BALANCE 95,473.22
349,183.22 349,183.22

30.06.16
CLOSING BALANCE AS
PER Cash book 95,473.22

Mrs R Manee Date
Ag Asst Chief Executive

The District Council office
Pamplemousses
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THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF LE HOCHET
Statement of Receipts and Payments for period 01 January 2016 to 30 June 2016

Receipts Rs Payments Rs
Opening Balance (01 Jan. 2016) 54,907.04 1.1/; Allowances to Chairperson & 142,975.00

Councillors
Subsidies received: 1.4 Bonus -
04 February 2016 30,000.00 2.1 Rent - Village Hall -
05 March 2016 50,000.00 2.2 Rent - Sub Hall -
02 April 2016 200,000.00 3.1 Water Charges 2,454.00
28 May 2016 75,000.00 3.2 Electricity 4,764.00

3.3 Telephone -
3.4 Newspaper -
3.5 Furniture & Equipment 4,250.00
3.6 Sundry Expenses 177.00
4.1 Maintenance of Assets 5,093.95
4.2 Maintenance of Cremation Ground -
5.1 National Day Celebrations 13,191.90
5.2 Sports Activities 80,000.00
5.3 Christmas/End of Year Celebrations -
5.4 Socio-Cultural & Welfare Activities 154,333.00
5.5 Village Council Function 1,818.80

Balance al 30 June 2016 849.39
Total 409,907.04 Total 409,907.04

District Council Office
Pamplemousses
Date: 04 August 2016

Mrs S. KISTO
Ag. Assistant Chief Executive
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THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF LONG MOUNTAIN
Statement of Receipts and Payments for period 01 January 2016 to 30 June 2016

Receipts Rs Payments Rs
Opening Balance (01 Jan. 2016) 145,686.74 1.1/: Allowances to Chairperson & 151,258.00

Councillors
Subsidies received: 1.4 Bonus
04 February 2016 30,000.00 2.1 Rent - Village Hall -
05 March 2016 50,000.00 2.2 Rent - Sub Hall -
02 April 2016 75,000.00 3.1 Water Charges 2,472.00
28 May 2016 75,000.00 3.2 Electricity 1,532.00

3.3 Telephone -
3.4 Newspaper -
3-5 Furniture & Equipment -
3.6 Sundry Expenses 156.00
4.1 Maintenance of Assets 165.00
4.2 Maintenance of Cremation Ground -
5.1 National Day Celebrations 3,224.00
5.2 Sports Activities 11,560.00
5.3 Christmas/End of Year Celebrations -
5.4 Socio-Cultural & Welfare Activities 53,295.00
5.5 Village Council Function 1,270.00

Balance at 30 June 2016 150,754.74
Total 375,686.74 Total 375,686.74

District Council Office
Pamplemousses
Date: 04 August 2016

Mrs S. KISTO
Ag. Assistant Chief Executive
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THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF MORC. ST ANDRE
Statement of Receipts and Payments for period 01 January 2016 to 30 June 2016

f Receipts Rs Payments Rs
(opening Balance (01 Jan. 2016) 159,507.46 1.1/: Allowances to Chairperson & 155,731.00

Councillors
Subsidies received: 1.4 Bonus -
04 February 2016 30,000.00 2.1 Rent - Village Hall -
05 March 2016 50,000.00 2.2 Rent - Sub Hall -
02 April 2016 75,000.00 3.1 Water Charges 2,442.00
28 May 2016 75,000.00 3.2 Electricity 2,320.00

3.3 Telephone -
Other Revenue: 3.4 Newspaper -
06 April 2016 2,175.00 3.5 Furniture & Equipment -

3.6 Sundry Expenses 556.00
4.1 Maintenance of Assets 690.00
4.2 Maintenance of Cremation Ground -
5.1 National Day Celebrations 15,000.00
5.2 Sports Activities 34,823.00
5.3 Christmas/End of Year Celebrations -
5.4 Socio-Cultural & Welfare Activities 59,750.00
5.5 Village Council Function 4,865.00

Balance at 30 June 2016 115,505.46
Total 391,682.46 Total 391,682.46

District Council Office
Pamplemousses
Date: 04 August 2016

Mrs S. KISTO
Ag. Assistant Chief Executive
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THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF NOTRE DAME
Statement of Receipts and Payments for period 01 January 2016 to 30 June 2016

Receipts Rs Payments Rs
Opening Balance (01 Jan. 2016) 131,520.67 1.1/1 Allowances to Chairperson & 155,731.00

Councillors
Subsidies received: 1.4 Bonus
04 February 2016 30,000.00 2.1 Rent - Village Hall -
05 March 2016 50,000.00 2.2 Rent - Sub Hall -
02 April 2016 75,000.00 3.1 Water Charges 2,424.00
28 May 2016 75,000.00 3.2 Electricity 1,254.00

3.3 Telephone -
3.4 Newspaper -
3.5 Furniture & Equipment -
3.6 Sundry Expenses 156.00
4.1 Maintenance of Assets 2,263.00
4.2 Maintenance of Cremation Ground -
5.1 National Day Celebrations 6,230.00
5.2 Sports Activities -
5.3 Christmas/End of Year Celebrations -
5.4 Socio-Cultural & Welfare Activities 41,000.00
5.5 Village Council Function -

Balance at 30 June 2016 152,462.67
Total 361,520.67 Total 361,520.67

District Council Office
Pamplemousses
Date: 04 August 2016

Mrs S. KISTO
Ag. Assistant Chief Executive
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THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF PAMPLEMOUSSES
Statement of Receipts and Payments for period 01 January 2016 to 30 June 2016

Receipts Rs Payments Rs
Opening Balance (01 Jan. 2016) 63,961.98 1.1/: Allowances to Chairperson & 155,731.00

Councillors
Subsidies received: 1.4 Bonus -
04 February 2016 30,000.00 2.1 Rent - Village Hall -
05 March 2016 50,000.00 2.2 Rent - Sub Hall -
02 April 2016 100,000.00 3.1 Water Charges 4,451.10
28 May 2016 90,000.00 3.2 Electricity 1,721.00

3.3 Telephone -
3.4 Newspaper -
3.5 Furniture & Equipment 8,500.00
3.6 Sundry Expenses 186.00
4.1 Maintenance of Assets 2,070.00
4.2 Maintenance of Cremation Ground 1,160.00
5.1 National Day Celebrations 24,951.00
5.2 Sports Activities 34,906.60
5.3 Christmas/End of Year Celebrations -
5.4 Socio-Cultural & Welfare Activities 53,044.00
5.5 Village Council Function 7,775.00

Balance at 30 June 2016 39,466.28
Total 333,961.98 Total 333,961.98

District Council Office
Pamplemousses
Date: 04 August 2016

Mrs S. KISTO
Ag. Assistant Chief Executive
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THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF PLAINE DES PAPA YES
Statement of Receipts and Payments for period 01 January 2016 to 30 June 2016

Receipts Rs Payments Rs
Opening Balance (01 Jan. 2016) 78,679.78 1.1/: Allowances to Chairperson & 155,731.00

Councillors
Subsidies received: 1.4 Bonus •
04 February 2016 30,000.00 2.1 Rent - Village Hall -
05 March 2016 50,000.00 2.2 Rent - Sub Hall -
02 April 2016 75,000.00 3.1 Water Charges 2,454.00
28 May 2016 75,000.00 3.2 Electricity 2,581.00

3.3 Telephone -
3.4 Newspaper -
3.5 Furniture & Equipment 4,150.00
3.6 Sundry Expenses 192.00
4.1 Maintenance of Assets -
4.2 Maintenance of Cremation Ground -
5.1 National Day Celebrations 8,438.20
5.2 Sports Activities 26,000.00
5.3 Christmas/End of Year Celebrations -
5.4 Socio-Cultural & Welfare Activities 18,950.00
5.5 Village Council Function -

Balance at 30 June 2016 90,183.58
Total 308,679.78 Total 308,679.78

District Council Office
Pamplemousses
Date: 04 August 2016

Mrs S. KISTO
Ag. Assistant Chief Executive
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THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF POINTE AUX PIMENTS

RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS FOR Period 01 January 2016 to 30 June 2016

RECEIPTS PAYMENTS
DATE DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs) DATE DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs)

01.01.16 OPENING BALANCE 124,836.62
COUNCILLORS
ALLOWANCE 155,731.00

04.02.16 GRANT FROM DC 30,000.00 WATER CHARGES 2,005.00

08.03.16 GRANT FROM DC 50,000.00
ELECTRICITY 
CHARGES 4,750.00

04.04.16 GRANT FROM DC 75,000.00 SUNDRY EXPENSES 2,497.50
30.05.16 GRANT FROM DC 75,000.00 NEWSPAPERS 360.00

FURNITURE & 
EQUIPMENT 18,151.00
MAINTENANCE OF
ASSETS 8,334.00
NATIONAL DAY 
CELEBRATION 10,000.00
SPORT ACTIVITIES 30,000.00

SOCIO CULTURAL & 
WELFARE ACTIVITIES 64,439.65
VILLAGE COUNCIL 
FUNCTION 3,703.70
CREDITORS YR 15 28,225.00

30.06.16 CLOSING BALANCE 26,639.77
354,836.62 354,836.62

30.06.16
CLOSING BALANCE AS
PER Cash book 26,639.77

Mrs R Manee Date
Ag Asst Chief Executive

The District Council office
Pamplemousses
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF PAMPLEMOUSSES

RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING 30th JUNE 2016
VILLAGE: TERRE ROUGE

RECEIPTS PAYMENTS
DATE DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs) DATE DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs)
01.01.16 OPENING BALANCE 57,224.59 1/1-3 COUNCILLORS ALLOWANCE 155,731.00
04.02.16 GRANT FROM DC 30,000.00 2/2 RENT -
06.02.16 GRANT FROM DC 45,000.00 3/1 WATER CHARGES 4,451.00
10.02.16 GRANT FROM DC 45,000.00 3/2 ELECTRICITY CHARGES 1,236.00
05.03.16 GRANT FROM DC 75,000.00 3/3 TELEPHONE -
02.04.16 GRANT FROM DC 75,000.00 3/4 NEWSPAPERS -
28.05.16 GRANT FROM DC 75,000.00 3/5 FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 13,500.00

3/6 SUNDRY EXPENSES 2,102.00
4/1 MAINTENANCE OF ASSET -
4/2 CREMATION GROUND -
5/1 NATIONAL DAY CELEBRATION 24,043.75
5/3 CHRISTMAS/END OF YEAR
5/2 SPORT ACTIVITIES 53,255.00

5/4
SOCIO-CULTURAL & WELFARE 
ACTIVITEIS 72,438.00

5-May VILLAGE COUNCIL FUNCTION 560.00

30.06,16 CLOSING BALANCE 74,907.84
402,224.59 402,224.59

30.06.16
CLOSING BALANCE AS
PER Cash book 74,907.84

Mrs R Manee
Ag Asst Chief Executive

Date .....

The District Council office
Pamplemousses
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|the district council of pamplemousses
RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING 30th JUNE 2016
VILLAGE: TRIOLET

RECEIPTS PAYMENTS
DATE DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs) DATE DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs)

01.01.16 OPENING BALANCE 104,557.69
1/1-3 COUNCILLORS ALLOWANCE 142,975.00

04.02.16 GRANT FROM DC 30,000.00 2/2 RENT
09.02.16 GRANT FROM DC 235,000.00 3/1 WATER CHARGES 2,189.00
10.02.16 GRANT FROM DC 235,000.00 3/2 ELECTRICITY CHARGES 8,217.00
18.03.16 GRANT FROM DC 100,000.00 3/3 TELEPHONE 1,350.00
04.04.16 GRANT FROM DC 75,000.00 3/4 NEWSPAPERS 1,470.00

STALE CHEQUES 3/5 FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT -
Cno:0646 6,500.00 3/6 SUNDRY EXPENSES 2,098.50
Cno:0672 3,600.00 4/1 MAINTENANCE OF ASSET 1,320.00
Cno:0708 5,250.00 4/2 CREMATION GROUND -
Cno: 0707 8,625.00 5/1 NATIONAL DAY CELEBRATION -
Cno: 0713 1,336.00 5/2 SPORT ACTIVITIES -
Cno: 0723 4,125.00 5/3 CHRISTMAS/END OF YEAR -

5/4
SOCIO-CULTURAL & WELFARE 
ACTIVITEIS 142,767.00

5/5 VILLAGE COUNCIL FUNCTION
VILLAGE COUNCIL FUNCTION

5-May VILLAGE COUNCIL FUNCTION -
30.06.16 CLOSING BALANCE 297,491.81

704,436.00 704,436.00

30.06.16
CLOSING BALANCE 
AS PER Cash book 297,491.81

Mrs R Manee ....... Date .....Y^.'‘..5..?A................................................................................................

Ag Asst Chief Executive

The District Council office
Pamplemousses
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THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF TROU AUX BICHES

RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS FOR Period 01 January 2016 to 30 June 2016

RECEIPTS PAYMENTS
DATE DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs) DATE DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs)

01.01.16 OPENING BALANCE 491,794.50
COUNCILLORS
ALLOWANCE 155,731.00

04.02.16 GRANT FROM DC 30,000.00
NATIONAL DAY 
CELEBRATION 10,775.00
SPORT ACTIVITIES 7,180.00
SOCIO CULTURAL &
WELFARE ACTIVITIES 18,863.00
VILLAGE COUNCIL 
FUNCTION 1,605.85
CREDITORS YR 15 35,891.50

30.06.16 CLOSING BALANCE 291,748.15
521,794.50 521,794.50

30.06.16
CLOSING BALANCE AS
PER Cash book 291,748.15

Mrs R Ma nee ..... Date ...........................................................................................
Ag Asst Chief Executive

The District Council office
Pamplemousses
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(Rec. No. 18/145340)

RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING 30th JUNE 2016
VILLAGE: VILLE BAGUE

RECEIPTS PAYMENTS
DATE DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs) DATE DETAILS AMOUNT(Rs)
01.01.16 OPENING BALANCE 82,945.90 1/1-3 COUNCILLORS ALLOWANCE 155,731.00
04.02.16 GRANT FROM DC 30,000.00 2/2 RENT -
05.03.16 GRANT FROM DC 50,000.00 3/1 WATER CHARGES 3,050.00
02.04.16 GRANT FROM DC 75,000.00 3/2 ELECTRICITY CHARGES 816.00
28.05.16 GRANT FROM DC 45,000.00 3/4 NEWSPAPERS 2,100.00

3/5 FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT -
3/6 SUNDRY EXPENSES 237.00
4/1 MAINTENANCE OF ASSET -
4/2 CREMATION GROUND -
5/1 NATIONAL DAY CELEBRATION 18,143.00
5/3 CHRISTMAS/END OF YEAR -
5/2 SPORT ACTIVITIES 18,950.00

5/4
SOCIO-CULTURAL & WELFARE 
ACTIVITEIS 7,960.00

5/5 VILLAGE COUNCIL FUNCTION -

30.06.16 CLOSING BALANCE 75,958.90
282,945.90 282,945.90

30.06.16
CLOSING BALANCE AS
PER Cash book 75,958.90

Mrs R Manee Date ..^..'..£>...1/1...........

Ag Asst Chief Executive

The District Council office
Pamplemousses
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REPORT OF THE

DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

On the Financial Statements
of the District Council of Riviere du Rempart 
for the year ended 31 December 2015 ,

----------------- NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Council of

The District Council of Riviere du Rempart

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the financial statements of The District Council of Riviere du Rempart which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, the statement of financial 
performance and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. 
I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions. 
Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risks assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to The District Council of Riviere du Rempart’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of The District Council of Riviere du Rempart’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

14lh Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius 
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax:(230)2110880
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1 believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my qualified audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
<•

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements were prepared on the basis of data generated from an accounting 
package which was reported to have been crashed. Hence several transactions and 
balances were not supported by schedules. The accuracy of these figures could not be 
ascertained.

Property, Plant and Equipment - Rs 202,595,316

The ex-Pamplemousses/Riviere du Rempart District Council was split between The District 
Council of Pamplemousses and The District Council of Riviere du Rempart with effect from 
1 January 2013. Property, Plant and Equipment allocated to each District Council totalled 
Rs 258,592,970. As no Fixed Assets Register was available at The ex-Pamplemousses/Riviere du 
Rempart District Council, expenditure on assets prior to 2008 was estimated to be fully 
depreciated. Expenditure incurred thereafter net of depreciation has resulted in a balance of 
Rs 45,121,428 as at 1 January 2013. This excluded land, roads, drains and street networks.

No periodical survey of assets was performed to ascertain the existence and condition of assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalent - Rs 59,290,337

No cash books were maintained and no bank reconciliations were performed for the year ended 
31 December 2014. Hence, the completeness and accuracy of opening balance of Cash and Cash 
Equivalent could not be ascertained.

Contingent Liabilities

No confirmation of any pending litigation, claim, judgments, settlements, or any transactions or 
charges that could affect the accounts as of 31 December 2015 has been obtained from the Legal 
Advisers of The District Council of Riviere du Rempart.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion paragraph, the attached financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of The District Council of Riviere du Rempart as at 31 December 2015 and of its 
statement of financial performance for the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles in Mauritius.
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Emphasis of Matter

I draw attention to Notes 32 and 33 to the financial statements wherein it is reported that the 
Arbitrator has issued four interim awards for a total sum of Rs 107,777,983 in favour of a 
Contractor from August 2015 to October 2016. The awards were paid by the Central 
Government and the District Council.

The contract for the construction of a market was awarded in February 2003 for an amount of 
Rs 22 million that was increased to Rs 51 million in October 2004. Works were completed on 
22 August 2005 instead of the revised completion date of 21 April 2005. As of September 2005, 
Rs 42,840,859 were paid to the Contractor. An Arbitrator was appointed to settle the dispute 
regarding non-release of retention money, non-payment of claims and application of liquidated 
damages.

A final award was issued on 3 January 2019 for Rs 427,324,630 plus interest on the capital of 
Rs 72.3 million at the legal rate of 3.5 per cent up to date of payment. The District Council has 
lodged a case to set aside the award as it has been issued after the prescribed mandate of 
arbitration.

My opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Management’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
described above, management is also responsible for ensuring that the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the laws 
and authorities which govern them.

Auditor’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility to express an opinion on the financial statements described 
above, my responsibility includes expressing an opinion on whether the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are, in all material respects, in 
compliance with the laws and authorities which govern them. This responsibility includes 
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about whether The District Council of Riviere du 
Rempart's expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes intended by those charged 
with governance. Such procedures include the assessment of the risks of material 
non-compliance.

I believe that the audit evidence 1 have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my opinion.
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Opinion on Compliance

Local Government Act

The financial statements of The District Council of Riviere du Rempart for the year ended 
31 December 2015 were submitted on 6 May 2016. Following examination of the financial 
statements, amendments had to be made. The amended financial statements were submitted on 
17 September 2019.

In my opinion, in all material respects, the activities, financial transactions and information 
reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the Local Government Act.

Public Procurement Act

The District Council of Riviere du Rempart is responsible for the planning and conduct of its 
procurement. It is also responsible for defining and choosing the appropriate method of 
procurement and contract type in accordance with the provisions of the Act and relevant 
Regulations. My responsibility is to report on whether the provisions of Part V of the Act 
regarding the Bidding Process have been complied with.

In my opinion, the provisions of Part V of the Act have been complied with as far as it appears 
from my examination of the relevant records.

C. ROMOOAH
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14,
Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

7 October 2019
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

ASSETS
NOTES 2015

RS
2014

RS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

51,484,014 __________ 55,372,917

Public Infrastructure, Plant and Equipment 4 156,983,920 144,160,516
Land 6 45,611,396 16,899,076
Intangible Assets 5 268,454 -
Investments 15 732,252 732,252
Receivables 8 1,502,742 1,248,493

205,098,764 163,040,337
CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories 7 1,892,059 2,593,405
Receivables 8 11,884,552 10,197,740
Work-in-Progress 30 2,128,728 1,509,634
Cash and Cash Equivalent 9 59,290,337 52,599,292

75,195,676 66,900,071

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payables 10 35,902,374 42,492,757
Borrowings 11 2,224,000 2,224,000
Employee Benefits 12 13,357,641 10,656,160

NET CURRENT ASSETS 23,711,662 11,527,154

LESS: NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Borrowings 11 14,972,000 17,196,000
Employee Benefits 12 50,361,595 46,054,454
Employee Retirement Benefit Obligation 13 219,219,188 198,623,513

284,552,784 261,873,967

NET LIABILITIES (55,742,359) (87,306,476)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Capital Grant 14 87,268,725 78,481,567
Accumulated Deficit (255,162,148 ) ( 248,953,263 )
Reserves 16 112,151,064 83,165,221
TOTAL NET LIABILITIES / EQUITY ( 55,742,359) (87,306,476)

Approved by Council at its meeting of 30 July 2019

Prembhoodas Ellayah
Chairman

The notes 1 to 33 are an integral part of the financial statements.

Dheeraj Gopaul
Chief Executive

1
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART 
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Revenue

Notes 2015
RS

2014
RS

Trade Fees 33,385,700 36,957,830
Government Grant 14 171,523,029 179,764,994
Building & Land Use Permit Fee 7,851,727 15,833,837
Interest Income 848,075 828,204
Rent Income 17 5,605,760 5,299,854
Other Revenue 18 7,609,695 6,333,550

Total Revenue 226,823,986 245,018,269

Expenses by Nature:

Compensation of Employees 19 100,929,630 97,840,581
Utilities 20 23,023,459 23,389,094
Repair and Maintenance 21 7,909,588 4,310,356
Motor Vehicle Expenses 22 4,178,406 4,240,465
Employee Retirement Benefit Obligation 13 1,329,764 -
Employee Benefits 28 16,980,940 16,658,313
Audit and Legal fees 23 2,279,709 2,279,451
Grants and Subsidies 24 8,746,175 8,838,965
Other Goods and Services 25 23,850,155 25,469,335
Finance Cost 27 959,450 12,252,740
Depreciation of Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets 4 23,579,684 19,861,107

Total Expenses 213,766,959 215,140,407

Surplus for the year 13,057,027 29,877,862

Other Comprehensive Income
Passage Fund 273,523 -
Employee Retirement Benefit Obligation 13 (19,265,912) -

Total Comprehensive Income (5,935,362) 29,877,862

The notes 1 to 33 are an integral part of the financial statements.
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS / EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Capital Grant Passage Fund
Revaluation

Reserve
Accumulated Deficit Total

RS RS RS RS RS

Balance as at 01 January 2015 78,481,567 - 83,165,221 ( 248,953,263 ) ( 87,306,475 )

Surplus for the year - - - ( 5,935,362) ( 5,935,362 )

Other Comprehensive Income for 273,523 - ( 273,523 ) -
the year 
Land revaluation - - 28,712,320 - 28,712,320

Capital Grant Received for the year 32,366,843 - - - 32,366,843

Grant Deferred (23,579,685 ) - - - ( 23,579,685 )

Balance as at 31 December 2015 87,268,725 273,523 111,877,540 ( 255,162,148) ( 55,742,359)

NOTE:
These figures relate to ex-PRDC. Upon its wiinding up, all assets, liabilities and reserves were distributed to the newly created district 
council of Riviere du Rempart and district council of Pamplemousses in the ratio agreed between them. All adjustments made to the assets 
and liabilities of the ex-PRDC impact on the general reserve of the district council of Riviere du Rempart.

The notes 1 to 33 are an integral part of the financial statements.
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The District Council of Riviere du Rempart is a corporate body established under the Local Government Act 
2011, Part II Section 3 and 7. The place of management is at Royal Road, Mapou.

The District Council is responsible for overviewing the administration of the Riviere du Rempart District area 
and its 19 villages.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

(a) Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Section 133 of the Local Government 
Act 2011, the Public Procurement Act and the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in 
the accounting policies below.

In current year, the Council has adopted all of the new and amended Standards and Interpretations issued 
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the "IASB") and the International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (the "IFRIC") of the IASB that are relevant to its operations and mandatory for 
application for the financial year. The adoption of these new or amended IFRS and interpretations has not 
resulted in substantial changes to the accounting policies of the Council and have had no material effect on 
the amounts reported for the current or prior financial years. At the date of authorization of these financial 
statements, the following Standards and Interpretations have already been issued but not effective:

Description Issue Date Effective Date Annual periods 
commencing on

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers September 
2015

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

IFRS 16 Leases January 
2016

Annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2019

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures
(Amendments resulting from September 2014 
Annual Improvements to IFRSs)

September
2014

Annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2016

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 
(Amendments resulting from the disclosure 
initiative)

December 
2014

Annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2016

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(Finalised version, incorporating requirements for 
classification and measurement, impairment, 
general hedge accounting and derecognition.)

July 2014 Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018

6
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows 
(Amendments as result of the Disclosure 
initiative)

January 
2016

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment 
(Amendments regarding the clarification of 
acceptable methods of depreciation and 
amortization)

May 2014 Annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2016

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment 
(Amendments bringing bearer plants into the 
scope of IAS 16)

June 2014 Annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2016

IAS 19 Employee Benefits
(Amendments resulting from September 2014 
Annual Improvements to IFRSs)

September
2014

Annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2016

IAS 38 Intangible Assets
(Amendments regarding the clarification of 
acceptable methods of depreciation and 
amortization)

May 2014 Annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2016

The Council anticipates that the adoption of these standards in the future periods will have no material 
effect on the financial statements.

(b) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the District 
Council and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is received.

The general policy of the Council is to recognize revenue on an accrual basis with the substance of the 
relevant agreement.

(i) School fees, advertising fees and bus toll are accounted for as income on an accrual basis unless 
collectability is in doubt.

(ii) Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a 
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or 
loss due to its operating nature.

(iii) Building and land use permit fee, burial and incinerator fees are recognized on and actual basis, 
that is the amount actually received and/or collected.

(iv) Trade fee is due whenever an economic operator or any person carries out a classified trade as 
stipulated by the Local Government Act 2011 Section 122 (2). It is an offence to carry out such 
trade without the payment of the appropriate fees. However, there is a high risk that a trader

7
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

is not operating his trade and has failed to complete the procedure for cessation and thus the 
probability of payment of outstanding trade fee in the following years is improbable. Hence, as 
the collectability of trade fee receivable is not reasonably assured, in accordance with IAS 18 
revenue, the District Council has recognized trade fee as an asset when the trade event has 
actually occurred and all the asset recognition criteria are met.

(v) Interest income arising from investments of the Passage Fund is not accounted in the statement 
of profit or loss but is instead accounted as equity in the statement of financial position.

(c) Government Grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Council will comply with 
the conditions attach to them and that the grants will be received.

(i) Government grants whose primary condition is that the Council should purchase, construct or 
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognized as deferred income in the statement of 
financial position and transferred to the statement of financial performance on a systematic 
and rational basis over the useful economic lives of the related assets.

(ii) Other government grants are recognized as income over the periods necessary to match them 
with the costs for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government 
grant-in-aid that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for 
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Council with no future related costs 
are recognized in the statement of financial performance in the period in which they become 
receivable.

(d) Public Infrastructure, Plant and Equipment, Land and Intangible Assets

(i) Buildings

Buildings held for use in the supply of services and for administrative purposes are stated in the 
financial statements at cost or transfer value, being the fair value at the date of transfer of 
ownership less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment 
losses. No revaluation is carried out unless required.

8
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(ii) Land is maintained at cost and is not depreciated.

Land vested by Morcellement promoters to the Council are in principle transferred to the 
Council at the token amount of MUR 1 per plot and the contract of the deed of sale clearly 
stipulates that the plot of land shall be used only for the purpose for which it has been vested 
to the Council under the Morcellement Act. The land shall be used only as green space or for 
social purpose without the right to dispose. These land have been capitalized.

Land vested to the Council by the Ministry of Housing and Lands are in fact vested to the 
Ministry of Local Government. These land are for community use for the inhabitants of that 
particular region where the development actually took place, however its maintenance and up­
lifting is handed over to Council. The Council has no right to sell it or use for any other purpose. 
These land have been disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements.

(iii) Construction of drains and roads, accommodation of playground and green space, and street 
lighting costs and resurfacing of existing roads are capitalized under public infrastructure. On 
the other hand, cost of patching of roads, cost of traffic signs and names plates, maintenance 
and repairs of public Infrastructures are charged to the income statement as expenses in the 
year they are incurred.

(iv) Computer and Equipment, Furniture, Fixtures, Fittings, Motor Vehicles, Intangibles are stated 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and stated at its 
carrying value.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of fixed assets less the residual value at the annual 
estimated rates over their useful lives, using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives, residual 
value and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate 
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognized in the statement of performance.

The annual rates are used in the calculation of depreciation:

Building 5%
Public Infrastructure 20%
Computer and Equipment 25%
Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings 10%
Motor Vehicles 20%
Intangible Assets 25%

9



1-962 The Mauritius Government Gazette

THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(e) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Inventories are stated at weighted 
average value or weighted average price of lots of items where balance of the lot is greater than zero. Value 
for the item of stock is the cost charged by supplier. The Council practices the first in first out basis (FIFO) 
for the issue of stock items.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus/deficit, loans and receivables, 
held to maturity investments, and the Council determines the classification of its financial assets at initial 
recognition.

(f) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash in hand and short term deposits with financial 
institutions. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

(g) Receivables and Impairment

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market. They are presented as current assets, except for those expected to be realised later than 
12 months after the balance sheet date which are presented as non-current assets.

Receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at carrying value after adjusting 
for impairment loss. Impairment loss is charged to the statement of comprehensive income.

A provision for impairment of fees is established when there is objective evidence that the Council will not 
be able to collect all the amounts according to the original terms of receivables.

(h) Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
and fixed maturities that the District Council has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. If the 
District Council were to sell other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the 
whole category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale. They are presented as non-current 
assets, except for those maturing within 12 months after the balance sheet date which are presented as 
current assets.

10
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at their value through surplus or deficit or loans and 
borrowings, as appropriate and the classification is determined at the initial recognition date. They are 
recognized at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Council's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables.

Financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires.

Financial liabilities and financial assets are offset and the net amount if any is either settled or realize the 
assets.

(i) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are stated at their nominal value. All known trade payables are recognized at its 
cost. They are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year. Otherwise, they are 
presented as non-current liabilities.

(j) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the District Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the 
best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking 
into account the risks and uncertainties required to settle the present obligation. When the economic 
benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is 
recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the 
receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements, but disclosed details of a possible asset whose 
existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Council in the notes to the financial statements. When a contingency asset 
become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the value of 
the asset can be measured reliably, the asset and its related revenue are recognized in the financial 
statements of the period in which the inflow arises.

The Council does not recognized a contingent liability, but discloses details of any contingencies in the notes 
to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources is remote.

11
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(k) Retirement Benefit Costs

(i) State Plan

The Council contributes 6 % of the gross emoluments of part-time employees and employees 
who are not on a permanent and pensionable establishment to the National Pension Fund.

The Council also contributes 2.5% of the gross emoluments of all employees to the National 
Savings Fund.

The above contributions are charged to statement of profit or loss in the year they are due.

(ii) Defined Contribution Plan

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the District Council 
pays fixed contributions (12% of gross emoluments) into another entity, the State Investment 
Company of Mauritius Limited ("SICOM Ltd"), for new full time employees who joined the Local 
Authorities from 1 January 2013 onwards. The district council has no further payment 
obligations once the contributions have been paid. These contributions are charged to 
statement of profit or loss in the year they are due.

(iii) Retirement Pension To Retirees Before 1 July 2008

The Council pays retirement pension to those employees who retired before 1 July 2008. This 
is charged to statement of profit or loss in the year it is due.

(iv) Compassionate Allowance

In accordance with the Local Authority Employees (Allowance) Regulations 1964 (GN 159 of 
1964) the Council also pays Compassionate Allowance to part time employees who have been 
in service for more than 5 years on their retirement. This has been computed based on the 
number of year of services up to the year end, average annual wage for the last 5 years.

The comparative has been restated in the current financial year to account for compassionate 
allowance. The District Council previously did not account for any provision for compassionate 
allowance.

12
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(v) Defined Benefit Plan

The Council operates a defined benefit plan, administered by and invested with SICOM Ltd. The 
pension plan is funded by payment of contribution to the fund (Council: 12% of gross 
emoluments and employee: 6% of gross emoluments) taking account of the recommendations 
of the Pay Research Bureau (PRB) report.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit pension plans other than defined 
contribution plans. Defined benefit plans typically define the amount of benefit that an 
employee will receive on or after retirement, dependent on factors such as years of service and 
compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of a defined benefit pension plan is the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of plan 
assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised past-service costs. The defined benefit 
obligation has been calculated by independent actuaries from SICOM Ltd using the projected 
unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by 
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market yields of high quality corporate 
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and have tenures 
approximating to that of the related post-employment benefit obligations.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period 
when they arise.

Past service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The comparative has been restated in the current financial year to account for the defined 
benefit plan. The District Council did not previously account for the liability in respect of a 
defined benefit pension plan, actuarial gains and losses and past service costs.

(vi) Bank of Sick Leave

Employee entitlements to bank sick leave as defined in the PRB report are recognized as and 
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for the estimated liability for bank sick 
leave.

13
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(vii) Unutilized Vacation Leave

Employee entitlements to vacation leave as defined in the PRB report are recognized as and 
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for the estimated liability for unutilized 
vacation leave.

(l) Nature and Purpose of Reserves

The Council creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements.

Passage Fund

Enacted under Section 81 of the Local Government Act 2011, a passage fund has been created by the Council 
to finance the payment of passage benefit to officers transferred from other Local Authorities, from the 
public service, from a statutory body or from any other institution.

Income derived from investment of the unutilized passage benefit payable to employees of the Council is 
transferred to equity under the item passage fund.

(m) Budget Information

The annual budget is prepared on the cash basis while the financial statements are prepared on the accruals 
basis, and very often the budget is approved with deficit and with under provision for certain items of 
expenditure, while revenue is over-provided. As a result there is no basis that would require reconciliation 
between the actual comparable amounts and the amounts presented as a separate additional financial 
statement in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. Explanatory comments are 
provided in the notes to the annual financial statements for any overspending or underspending and 
variances in the overall budgeted.

(n) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or manufacture of qualifying fixed 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use 
are added to the cost of those fixed assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their 
intended use.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of the specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Otherwise 
all other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of financial performance in the period in which 
they are incurred.

The interest rate payable on the government loan is fixed at 5% throughout the repayment period.

14
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(o) Critical Accounting Estimates, Assumption and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies and 
Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the District Council to make 
certain accounting estimates and judgements that have an impact on the policies and the amounts reported 
in the financial statements. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical 
experiences and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable at 
the time such estimates and judgements are made, although actual experience may vary from these 
estimates.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing adjustment to carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities are discussed below:

(i) Provision for Bad Debts
Provision is made when there is objective evidence that the District Council will not be able to 
collect certain debts. This is made based on detailed analysis and experience of historic bad 
debt rates.

(ii) Defined Benefit Obligations
The present value of the post-employment pension obligations depends on a number of factors 
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions such as discount rate, 
expected salary increase and mortality. Any change in these assumptions will impact the 
carrying amount of pension obligations.

3. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT RISK

The District Council is exposed to financial, credit and liquidity risks. The overall risk management of the 
District Council is focused on the mitigation of liquidity and credit risks and seek to minimize potential 
adverse effects on the financial performance and service delivery of the Council.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents as well as credit exposures to customers. The Council does 
not consider the need to have an independent rating of its customers. In fact no trade fee receipt is issued 
on credit while three month credit facilities are allowed to holders of market stall in principle.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through 
an adequate amount of credit facilities. The Council has appropriate management policy in place to ensure 
that there is sufficient cash to meet its financial obligations.

15
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4 PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT a R

RATE
COST:

Building

RS
5%

Public Infrastructure

RS
20%

Computer & 
Equipment 

RS 
25%

Furniture,
Fixtures 8i

Fittings

RS
20%

Motor Vehicles

RS
20%

Total

RS

As at 01 January 2014 864,281 19,222,823 500,664 170,010 11,776,834 32,534,612

Adjustments relating to prioryear (828,100) - - - - (828,100)

Additions 2,850,565 15,177,066 1,829,136 1,454,965 11,205,574 32,517,306

Revaluation ( Note ) 66,266,145 - - - - 66,266,145

As at 01 January 2015 69,152,891 34,399,889 2,329,800 1,624,975 22,982,408 130,489,963
Additions 15,254,019 6,398,631 10,828,632 273,009 - 32,754,291

As at 31 December 2015 84,406,910 40,798,520 13,158,432 1,897,984 22,982,408 163,244,254

DEPRECIATION:
As at 01 January 2014 43,214 3,844,565 125,166 34,002 2,355,367 6,402,314

Adjustments relating to prior year (41,405) - - - - (41,405)

Charge for the year 112,757 6,879,978 582,450 324,995 4,596,482 12,496,662

As at 01 January 2015 114,566 10,724,543 707,616 358,997 6,951,849 18,857,571
Charge for the year 875,457 5,397,915 3,274,613 379,597 4,596,482 14,524,064

As at 31 December 2015 990,023 16,122,458 3,982,229 738,594 11,548,331 33,381,635

Carrying Value
As at 31 December 2015 83,416,887 24,676,062 9,176,203 1,159,390 11,434,077 129,862,619

As at 31 December 2014 69,038,325 23,675,346 1,622,184 1,265,978 16,030,559 111,632,392
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

4 PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Capital Outlay ofEx-PRDC ( Fixed Assets)FOR FIXED ASSETS ACQUIRED AFTER JUL V 2008 AND BEFORE 31 DECEMBER 2012

Building Public Infrastructure
Computer & 
Equipment

Furniture, 
Fixtures & 

Fittings
Motor Vehicles Total

RS RS RS RS RS RS
COST
Net Book Value as at 01 January 2014 11,805,763 18,476,510 393,919 888,300 6,370,457 37,934,949
Adjustment relating to prior years (Liquidated 
damages- Goodlands Market) 1,957,619 1,957,619
Depreciation charged (621,356) (4,797,093) (131,306) (222,075) (1,592,614) (7,364,444)
Net Book Value as at 31 December 2014 11,184,407 15,637,036 262,613 666,225 4,777,843 32,528,124
Additions Liquidated damages released on 
Market 3,559,313 3,559,313
Depreciation on Liquidated damages (1,779,657) - - - - (1,779,657)
Depreciation charged (621,356) (4,619,128) (131,306) (222,075) (1,592,614) (7,186,479)
Net Book Value as at 31 December 2015 12,342,707 11,017,908 131,307 444,150 3,185,229 27,121,301

Capital Outlay and its corresponding Capital Grant Applied of the Ex-Pamplemousses/Riviere du Rempart District Council was distributed equally.

Note:
The net book value of the fixed assets approximate their fair values and / the carrying amount.
All the fixed assets were acquired out of government grant.
Buildings and Village halls have been recognised at fair value which is the market value for construction of similar type building

The rate used was Rs Rs 11,345 per meter square based on a recent construction.
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5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - SOFTWARE

Cost
As at 01 January
Addition
As at 31 December

Depreciation
As at 01 January
Charge for the year
As at 31 December

Carrying Value

6 LAND

Land transferred to Council
As at 01 January
Vested / Adjustments relating to prior years
Acquisition
As at 31 December

2015
RS

2014
RS

- -
357,938 -
357,938 -

89,484
-

89,484 -

268,454 -

2015 2014
RS RS

16,899,076 -
28,712,320 16,686,804

- 212,272
45,611,396 16,899,076

The land acquired relates to land sold to Council at the token amount of Rs 1 per plot and the contract of the deed 
of sale clearly stipulates that the plot of land shall be used only for the purpose for which it has been agreed under 
the Morcellement Act. The land shall be used only as green space or for social purpose without the right to 
dispose. The land has been computed at MUR 100,000 per perche.

The District Council has accounted for land acquired prior to 2014, in the accounts for the financial year ended 31 
December 2015. In previous years, land acquired for green space was not accounted for.

Land Vested to Council for maintenance and administration

Land belonging to Ministry of Housing and Lands and the Ministry of Local Government which have been handed 
to the Council for maintenance purpose only are as disclosed below. These land have not been capitalised.

Land for Cremation Grounds and Cemetries
Land for Village Halls
Land for Recreational Activities
Land for Green Space
Land for Markets
Land of Traffic Centres

Area/m2Area/m2
9,857 9,857

15,233 15,233
88,880 88,880
11,783 11,783
12,060 12,060
22,350 22,350

160,163 160,163
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7 INVENTORIES 2015 2014
RS RS

Spart Part and Lubricants 222,293 232,231
Stationery 121,166 116,965
Tools, Protective Equipment & Other Consumables 249,772 255,208
Construction and Street Lighting Materials 503,912 506,177
Street Lanterns 653,220 1,282,824
Gas 141,696 200,000

1,892,059 2,593,405

8 RECEIVABLES 2015 2014
RS RS

Market Fee 4,539,850 3,962,650
Bus Toll 4,537,075 2,575,600
Advertising Fee 22,500 -
Advance to Employees 1,677,769 1,769,381
Government Grant 471,500 486,795
Other Receivables 2,138,600 2,651,807

13,387,294 11,446,233

Non-Current Receivables 1,502,742 1,248,493
Current Receivables 11,884,552 10,197,740

Trade fee was recognised on the actual basis and no accruals have been made for trade fee not paid by economic 
trade operators and as per the LGA 2011 they should have ceased, if not in operation.

9 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash in Hand 243,822 326
Cash at Bank 49,046,515 52,598,966
Short Term Deposits 10,000,000 -

59,290,337 52,599,292

The short term deposits pertain to fixed deposits held with financial institution having fixed interest rate of 5%. 
The maturity date is 31 August 2016.

10 PAYABLES

Accounts Payables to Suppliers
Prepayment and Other Payables
Deposits
Wayleaves
Liquidated damages payable to Alphamix Ltd
Interest on Rs 3,075,000 arbitration interim award

11,221,254 16,818,994
560,324 1,452,093

6,438,114 6,538,989
2,941,440 2,941,440
3,559,313 3,559,313

11,181,929 11,181,929
35,902,374 42,492,757

Retention money of Rs 3,075,000 plus VAT and an unpaid invoice were settled upon mutual agreement for the sum 
of Rs 3,559,313. Interest at the rate of 15.35% was awarded on the retention money of Rs 3,075,000 and same 
was paid on 04 August 2016. 1Q
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

11 BORROWINGS 2015 2014
RS RS

Balance at Start 19,420,000 44,782,000
Adjustment relating to prior years - 462,000
Reimbursement (2,224,000) (25,824,000)
Balance at Close 17,196,000 19,420,000

Payable as follows:
Current - Before One Year 2,224,000 2,224,000

After One Year and Before Five Years 4,850,000 5,646,000
After Five Years 10,122,000 11,550,000
Non-Current 14,972,000 17,196,000

The borrowing comprising of loan and advance from the Government is unsecured. The loan is repayable in 
instalments by 30 June 2032 whilst the advance by 30 June 2017.
Interest is fixed at 4%.
The adjustment in 2014 relates to error noted in 2014 in relation to the opening balance brought forward prior to 
2013.

12 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Provision for Unutilised Sick Leave Pay 
Provision for Passage Benefit 
Provision for Retirement Benefit

Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities

2015
RS
2,885,049
9,836,944

50,997,243
63,719,236

2014
RS
2,593,404
7,667,647

46,449,563
56,710,614

13,357,640
50,361,596

10,656,160
46,054,454

Provision for retirement benefit includes provision for unutilised vacation, provision for bank of sick leave and 
provision for compassionate allowance payable on retirement to eligible employees.
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13 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION 2015 2014
RS RS

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at end of year:
Defined benefit obligation 284,277,564 263,951,189
(Fair value of plan assets) (65,058,376) (65,327,676)
Liability recognised in statement of financial position
at end of year 219,219,188 198,623,513

Amounts recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income 2015 2014
Service cost: RS RS

Current service cost 8,029,977 7,360,706
(Employee contributions) (3,409,142) (3,467,210)
Fund Expenses 180,874 214,172
Net Interest expense 14,560,057 14,514,236
Adjustments relating to prior years - 197,996,523
Income Statement Charge 19,361,766 216,618,427

Remeasurement:
Liability loss 4,860,959 1,308,037
Assets loss/(gain) 14,484,422 (1,308,037)
Total Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) recognised 19,345,381 -

Total 38,707,147 216,618,427

Movements in liability recognised in the Statement of Financial 2015 2014
Position RS RS
At start of year 198,623,513 -
Adjustments relating to prior years - 197,996,523
Amount recognised in P&L 19,361,766 18,621,904
(Actuarial Reserves transferred in) (79,469) -
(Employer Contributions) (6,815,495) (6,934,480)
(Direct benefits paid by Employer) (11,216,508) (11,060,434)
Amount recognised in OCI 19,345,381 -
At end of year 219,219,188 198,623,513

Actual return on plan assets: 1,431,113 5,155,519

The plan is a defined benefit arrangement for the employees and it is funded. The assets of the funded plan are 
held independently and administered by The State Insurance Company of Mauritius Ltd.
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13 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION (CONTINUED) 
Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value of obligation at start of period
Adjustments relating to prior years
Current service cost
Interest cost
(Benefits paid)
Liability loss
Present value of obligation at end of period

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at start of period
Expected return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Actuarial Reserves transferred in
(Benefits paid + other outgo)
Asset (loss)/gain
Fair value of plan assets at end of period

Distribution of plan assets at end of period 
Percentage of assets at end of year
Fixed Interest Securities and cash
Loans
Local equities
Overseas bonds and equities
Property
Total

Additional disclosure on assets issued or used by the Council

Percentage of assets at end of year
Assets held in the entity's own financial instruments 
Property occupied by the entity
Other assets used by the entity

Components of the amount recognised in OCI

Asset experience (loss)/gain during the period
Liability experience loss during the period

2015
RS

263,951,189

8,029,977
19,796,339 

(12,360,900)
4,860,959

284,277,564

2015
RS

65,327,676
5,236,282
6,815,495
3,409,142

79,469
(1,325,266) 

(14,484,422) 
65,058,376

2014
RS

248,915,013 
7,360,706

18,668,626 
(12,301,193)

1,308,037
263,951,189

2014
RS

50,918,490
4,154,390
6,934,480
3,467,210

(1,454,931)
1,308,037

65,327,676

2015 2014
58.10% 57.10%

4.30% 4.10%
15.90% 21.10%
21.00% 17.00%

0.70% 0.70%
100% 100%

2015 2014
(%) (%)

2015
RS

(14,484,422)
(3,240,577)

(17,724,999)

2014
RS
1,308,037

(1,308,037)
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13 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION (CONTINUED) 
Year
Expected employer contributions

2016
7,340,823

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
(Calculated as a % change in PV of liabilities for a 1% change in discount rate)

18 years

The plan is exposed to actuarial risks such as : investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk. The 
risk relating to death in service benefits is re-insured.

The cost of of providing the benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Method. The principal assumptions 
used for the purpose of the actuarial valuation were as follows:

2015
RS

2014
RS

Discount rate 7.50% 7.50%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.50% 7.50%
Future salary increases 5.00% 5.00%
Future pension increases 3.00% 3.00%
Mortality before retirement A 6770 Ultimate Tables
Mortality in retirement
Retirement age

PA (90) Tables rated down by 2 years
As per Second Schedule of Statutory Bodies 
Pension Funds Act

The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields on bonds.
Significant actuarial assumptions for determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected 
salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based reasonably on possible 
changes of the assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period.

- If the discount rate would be 100 basis points (one percent) higher (lower), the defined benefit obligation would 
decrease by Rs 29.4 M (increase by Rs 36.9 M) if all other assumptions were held unchanged.

- If the expected salary growth would increase (decrease) by 100 basis points, the defined benefit obligation would 
increase by Rs 20.2 M (decrease by Rs 17.5 M) if all assumptions were held unchanged.

- If life expectancy would increase (decrease) by one year, the defined benefit obligation would increase by Rs 4.5 
M (decrease by Rs 4.5 M) if all assumptions were held unchanged.

In reality one might expect interrelationships between the assumptions, especially between discount rate and 
expected salary increases, given that both depends to a certain extent on expected inflation rates. The analysis 
above abstracts from these interdependence between the assumptions.

The District Council has restated retirement benefit obligation in order to comply with the requirements of IAS 19- 
Employee Benefits. In previous years, no sufficient disclosure and provision were made for retirement benefit 
obligation.
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14 GOVERNMENT GRANT 2015 2014
RS RS

Balance at start 57,946,215 51,277,485

Adjustments relating to prior year - (41,031)

Grant-in-aid 149,745,539 153,634,700

Project related Grant 30,564,649 23,568,336

238,256,403 228,439,490

Less: Revenue Government Grant (147,943,345) (157,996,613)

Capital Grant 90,313,058 70,442,877

Less: Deferred revenue Notes 4 & 5 (14,613,548) (12,496,662)

Balance at close 75,699,510 57,946,215

Ex-PRDC Government Grant ( Capital Grant Applied )

Balance of at Start 18,831,109 26,017,589

Deferred grant - Note 4 Note 4 (8,966,136) (7,186,480)

Balance of at Close 9,864,973 18,831,109

Total Deferred Government Grant 85,564,483 76,777,324

Capital grants related to fixed assets are presented in the statement of financial position and are released to the 
statement of performance as deferred revenue in a systematic way to match the consumption of fixed assets.

Capital Grant Applied as at 01 January 2012 was allocated to the two Councils in equal proportion as the capital 
outlay is the cumulative figure of all capital asset acquired since the creation of the Council in the year 1954. Given 
the complexity, impracticality and the cost involved to identify each and every fixed asset, current asset and liability 
it was agreed between the two new Councils and the parent Ministry to apportion all assets, liabilities and general 
fund equally with the exception of passage credit balance, deposit account and stock which can be identified 
separately. Capital grant has been presented in the statement of financial position net of depreciated amount and 
the depreciated value was recognised as deferred revenue in the statement of financial performance.

15 INVESTMENTS

Long term investments

2015
RS

732,252

2014
RS

732,252

These relate to fixed deposits held with financial institutions having floating interest rate of 4% being 0.75% over 
SBM Savings Rate. The maturity date is 27 January 2017.
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16 RESERVES

Balance at Start
Land Revaluation Reserve
Passage fund reserve

Balance at Close

2015
RS

83,165,221
28,712,320

273,523

112,151,064

2014
RS

83,165,221

83,165,221

Interest income earned from cash held for payment of passage benefit has been re-classified from Accumulated 
Deficit to Passage Fund in order to comply with S81 (5) (b) of the Local Government Act 2011.

17 RENT INCOME

Market Stall Fee
Rental Income

2015
RS
5,182,000

423,760
5,605,760

2014
RS
5,181,850

118,004
5,299,854

18 OTHER REVENUE

Occassional Trade Fee
Advertsing Fee
School Fee
Bus Toll
Burial & Incineration Fee
Other

19 COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

Salaries and Wages
Overtime and Allowances

Uniform and Protective Equipment
Councillor's Allowance
Retirement and Social Contributions
Provision for Passage Benefit
Travelling and Transport
Training Cost
Provision for Unutilised Sick pay
End of Year Gratuity

2015
RS

102,750
1,593,950

104,000
4,057,700

659,150

1,092,144

2015
RS

63,958,526
4,209,136
1,079,495
2,634,132
8,676,070
3,490,114
8,516,637

19,155
2,999,755
5,346,610

100,929,630

2014
RS

62,000
18,510

127,400
3,233,750

613,650

2,278,239
6,333,549

2014
RS

60,405,489
4,338,677
1,169,968
3,292,095
9,325,980
2,177,290
8,720,628

53,944
2,598,782
5,757,728

97,840,581
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20 UTILITIES

Electricity
Water
Gas
Telephone

21 REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE

Furniture, Fittings and Equipment
Roads and Traffic Sign
Street Lighting
Playground, Play Equipment and Green Space
Public Infrastructure and Buildings
Cemetry, Incinerator and Cremation Ground 
Other

22 MOTOR VEHICLE EXPENSES

Fuel and Oil
Repairs and Maintenance

23 AUDIT AND LEGAL FEES

Audit fee
Legal and Professional fees

2015 2014
RS RS

21,347,653 20,857,802
655,691 582,992
406,241 1,354,092
613,874 594,208

23,023,459 23,389,094

2015 2014
RS RS

194,429 655,374
4,033,136 1,414,233

568,260 1,182,131
172,106 128,132

1,863,053 296,293
587,305 232,518
491,299 401,675

7,909,588 4,310,356

2015 2014
RS RS
2,781,969 2,558,551
1,396,437 1,681,914
4,178,406 4,240,465

2015 2014
RS RS

200,000 612,500
2,079,709 1,666,951
2,279,709 2,279,451

The Audit fee for the year ended 31 December 2014 included the audit fee for the years 2010, 2011 and 2012 for 
which no provision was previously made in the financial statements.

24 GRANT AND CONTRIBUTION

Grant to Village Council
Contribution to Association of District Councils

2015
RS
8.596.175

150,000
8.746.175

2014
RS
8.688.965

150,000
8.838.965
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25 OTHER GOODS AND SERVICES 2015 2014
RS RS

Printing, Postage & Stationery 854,857 782,056
Notice and Publications 161,566 209,117
Books and Periodicals 222,125 129,460
Committee expenses 84,911 183,912
Entertainment 168,945 51,404
Bank charges and fee 33,891 28,236
Security services 1,792,712 706,106
Hired Scavenging Service 15,977,355 16,942,959
Cleaning and Waste Disposal 585,588 29,111
Insurance 1,502,591 1,232,034
Rent 75,000 -
Social, Cultural, Sport and Educational Activities Note 26 2,249,304 4,964,703
Overseas Travelling and Allowances - 155,637
Sundries 141,310 54,599

23,850,155 25,469,334

The District Council has restated the 2014 figure for Social, Cultural, Sport and Educational Activities from
Rs 4,964,703 to Rs 4,964,351 being over provision.

26 ACTIVITIES AND PROJECTS 2015 2014
RS RS

Social Activity (including grant to NGO) 706,648 413,163
Cultural Activity 164,707 207,588
Sport Activity (including grant to NGO ) 707,255 1,208,826
Twinning Activity - 39,768
Educational Activity 18,480 265,081
Environmental Activity 652,214 2,830,277

2,249,304 4,964,703

The District Council has restated the 2014 figure for Environmental Activity from Rs 2,830,277 to Rs 2,829,925 due
to over provision in the financial statement.

During the year, major sport activities (Jeux de Village) which started in prior year, successfully came to an end.

The Council also organised E-Waste Campaign which was funded by the Ministry of Environment to the tune of
MUR 266,305.

27 FINANCE COST 2015 2014
RS RS

Loan Interest 959,450 1,070,650
Bank Interest - 162
Interest expense - Alphamix 11,181,928

959,450 12,252,740
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Provision for Unutilised Vacation Payment on Retirement
Provision for Bank of Sick Leave Pay on Retirement
Provision for Compassionate Allowance
Provision for Passage Benefit
Provision for Unutilised Sick Leave Pay
Pension and Gratuities

2015
RS
4,176,930

427,841
(57,091)

2,169,297
291,645

9,972,318
16,980,940

2014
RS
1,079,333
3,080,490
1,059,363

(2,002,431)
149,800

13,291,758
16,658,313

29 HUMAN RESOURCE

Permanent and Pensionable employees
Part-time Employees

Female Employees
Male Employees

Vacant Posts

2015 
No of employees

286
______________ 20

306

2014 
No of employees

279
_____________ 20

299

47
259
306

43
349

40
259
299

42
341

30 COMMITMENTS
Capital Commitments
Authorised but not yet contracted:
Public Infrastructure
Approved and Contracted
Public Infrastructure
Total Capital Commitments

2015
RS

84,249,456

858,287
85,107,743

2014
RS

4,423,035

19,423,545
23,846,580

A special grant of Rs 72 Million was approved by the Ministry of Finance and Economic Development for the 
uplifting of pulic amneties and Rs 12 Million was also approved for capital projects but not yet contrated at 
balance sheet date.

31 WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Balance at start
Prior year adjustment in relations to Goodlands Village Hall
Addition during the year (Administrative building)
Conversion of work in progress to Building
Balance at close

2015
RS
1,509,634

2,158,647
(1,539,553)
2,128,728

2014
RS

828,100
1,509,634
(828,100)

1,509,634
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31 WORK-IN-PROGRESS (CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2014, the extension to the second floor of the administrative building which was meant to be 
used as a mini conference and social hall for the Council was under construction by in-house labour and was 
therefore classified as current asset.

As at at 31 December 2015, the extension has been completed and the building has been re-classified to property, 
plant and equipment. The work in progress of around Rs 1.9 million as at 31 December 2015 relates to 
construction of Village Complex / Hall at Petit Raffray. The total estimated cost of construction is around Rs 3.6 
Million.

32 CONTINGENCIES
(a) The Council is a defendant in several legal actions involving the non-issue of building and land use permit, applicant 

in cases on illegal construction and co-respondant in civil cases between individuals.

(b) Arbitration case - Construction of Riviere du Rempart Market Fair
On 3rd January 2019 the arbitrator issued a final award in favour of Alphamix Ltd for the payment of compound 
interest to the tune of 427,324,630 plus interest on the capital of Rs 72,3 M at the legal rate of 3.5 per cent up to 
the date of payment.
Upon the advise obtained from the Ministry of Local Government, Council decided to lodge a case of "Recours en 
Annulation" to annul the award issued by the arbitrator after the prescribed mandate.

33 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

As at the date of approval of the financial statements four interim awards were issued by Justice Benjamin G Marie 
Joseph, the sole arbitrator, in the arbitration case Alphamix Ltd against District Council of Riviere du Rempart in 
favour of the applicant for the total sum of Rs 107,777,983.
Adjusting Events:

(i) Upon mutual agreement the Judge ordered to pay Rs 3,075,00 plus 15% VAT representing retention money on 20 
August 2015 and payment was made in September 2015.

(ii) A second award of Rs 11,181,928 was issued on 16 July 2016 for the payment of interest on the above capital of Rs 
3,075,000.
Non-Adjusting Events:

(iii) A third award was issued on 23 September 2016 for the payment of Rs 72,921,570 plus 15% VAT for loss of profit, 
financial charges and variation works.

(iv) On 7 October 2016 a fourth interim award of Rs 8 M plus 15% VAT was issued for the reimbursement of legal and 
consultancy fees.
All the above awards were already paid either by the Central Government or the District Council of Riviere du 
Rempart at the reporting date.

34 APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the full council and authorised for its issue at its meeting of 30 July 
2019.
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Amaury

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Amaury for 
the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

14th Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/ 211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 1,984

The Village Council of Amaury was under the jurisdiction of the ex-Pamplemousses/Riviere 
du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts for The Village Council of 
Amaury for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 were not prepared. The Cash 
balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Amaury for the financial year ended 
31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius 
and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Amitie-Gokhoola

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of 
Amitie-Gokhoola for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

14th Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 18,038

The Village Council of Amitie-Gokhoola was under the jurisdiction of the 
ex-Pamplemousses/Riviere du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts 
for The Village Council of Amitie-Gokhoola for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 
and 2014 were not prepared. The Cash balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Amitie-Gokhoola for the financial 
year ended 31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Belle Vue Maurel

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Belle Vue 
Maurel for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

14"' Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/ 211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 41,665

The Village Council of Belle Vue Maurel was under the jurisdiction of the 
ex-Pamplemousses/Riviere du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts 
for The Village Council of Belle Vue Maurel for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 
and 2014 were not prepared. The Cash balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Belle Vue Maurel for the financial 
year ended 31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Cap Malheureux

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of 
Cap Malheureux for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

14,h Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 8,769

The Village Council of Cap Malheureux was under the jurisdiction of the 
ex-Pamplemousses/Riviere du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts 
for The Cap Malheureux Village Council for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 
2014 were not prepared. The Cash balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

No bank reconciliations were performed to ascertain the completeness and accuracy of Cash 
in Hand and at Bank. Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Cap Malheureux for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Cottage

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Cottage for 
the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

14* Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 64,644

The Village Council of Cottage was under the jurisdiction of the ex-Pamplemousses/ Riviere 
du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts for The Village Council of 
Cottage for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 were not prepared. The Cash 
balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Cottage for the financial year ended 
31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius 
and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Esperance Trebuchet

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Esperance 
Trebuchet for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

14,h Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 40,751

The Village Council of Esperance Trebuchet was under the jurisdiction of the 
ex-Pamplemousses/ Riviere du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts 
for The Village Council of Esperance Trebuchet for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 
and 2014 were not prepared. The Cash balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Esperance Trebuchet for the financial 
year ended 31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah 
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Goodlands

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Goodlands 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

14’*’ Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 27,584

The Village Council of Goodlands was under the jurisdiction of the ex-Pamplemousses/ 
Riviere du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts for The Village 
Council of Goodlands for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 were not 
prepared. The Cash balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

No bank reconciliations were performed to ascertain the completeness and accuracy of Cash 
in Hand and at Bank. Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Goodlands for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah 
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Grand Baie

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Grand Baie 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

14th Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 37,424

The Village Council of Grand Baie was under the jurisdiction of the ex-Pamplemousses/ 
Riviere du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts for The Village 
Council of Grand Baie for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 were not 
prepared. The Cash balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

No bank reconciliations were performed to ascertain the completeness and accuracy of Cash 
in Hand and at Bank. Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Grand Baie for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Grand Gaube

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Grand 
Gaube for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

14lh Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 35,684

The Village Council of Grand Gaube was under the jurisdiction of the ex-Pamplemousses/ 
Riviere du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts for The Village 
Council of Grand Gaube for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 were not 
prepared. The Cash balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

No bank reconciliations were performed to ascertain the completeness and accuracy of Cash 
in Hand and at Bank. Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Grand Gaube for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah 
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

report of The Director of Audit 
To The Village Council of Mapou

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Mapou for 
the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

14th Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 101,688

The Village Council of Mapou was under the jurisdiction of the ex-Pamplemousses/Riviere 
du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts for The Village Council of 
Mapou for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 were not prepared. The Cash 
balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Mapou for the financial year ended 
31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius 
and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Petit Raffray

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Petit 
Raftray for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 1,943

The Village Council of Petit Raffray was under the jurisdiction of the ex-Pamplemousses/ 
Riviere du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts for The Village 
Council of Petit Raffray for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 were not 
prepared. The Cash balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

No bank reconciliations were performed to ascertain the completeness and accuracy of Cash 
in Hand and at Bank. Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Petit Raffray for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Piton

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Piton for 
the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s'intemal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

14lh Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 31,576

The Village Council of Piton was under the jurisdiction of the ex-Pamplemousses Riviere du 
Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts for The Village Council of Piton 
for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 were not prepared. The Cash balance 
on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Piton for the financial year ended 
31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius 
and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah 
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Poudre d’Or Hamlet

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Poudre 
d’Or Hamlet for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

1411' Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/ 211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 72,664

The Village Council of Poudre d’Or Hamlet was under the jurisdiction of the 
ex-Pamplemousses/Riviere du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts 
for The Village Council of Poudre d’Or Hamlet for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 
and 2014 were not prepared. The Cash balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Poudre d’Or Hamlet for the financial 
year ended 31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Plaine des Roches

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Plaine des 
Roches for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

14th Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/ 211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 36,594

The Village Council of Plaine des Roches was under the jurisdiction of the 
ex-Pamplemousses/ Riviere du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts 
for The Village Council of Plaine des Roches for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 
and 2014 were not prepared. The Cash balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Plaine des Roches for the financial 
year ended 31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Poudre D’Or

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Poudre 
d’Or for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

14"' Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 70,933

The Village Council of Poudre d’Or was under the jurisdiction of the 
ex-Pamplemousses/Riviere du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. The 
accounts for The Village Council of Poudre d’Or for the years ended 31 December 2012, 
2013 and 2014 were not prepared. The Cash balance on 1 January 2015 could not be 
ascertained.

Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Poudre d’Or for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Riviere Du Rempart

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Riviere du 
Rempart for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on .the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

14,h Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel: 212 2096-97/ 211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 96,795

The Village Council of Riviere du Rempart was under the jurisdiction of the 
ex-Pamplemousses/Riviere du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts 
for The Village Council of Riviere du Rempart for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 
and 2014 were not prepared. The Cash balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Riviere du Rempart for the financial 
year ended 31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Roches Noires

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Roches 
Noires for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

14"' Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 13,915

The Village Council of Roches Noires was under the jurisdiction of the ex-Pamplemousses/ 
Riviere du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts for The Village 
Council of Roches Noires for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 were not 
prepared. The Cash balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Roches Noires for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah 
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of The Vale

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of The Vale 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my qualified opinion.

14"' Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 7,449

The Village Council of The Vale was under the jurisdiction of the ex-Pamplemousses/ 
Riviere du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts for The Village 
Council of The Vale for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 were not 
prepared. The Cash balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of The Vale for the financial year ended 
31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mauritius 
and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah 
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019



19 October 2019 5019

NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The Village Council of Roche Terre

Report on the Statement of Receipts and Payments

I have audited the Statement of Receipts and Payments of The Village Council of Roche 
Terre for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Statement of Receipts 
and Payments that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Statement of Receipts and Payments based 
on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme 
Audit Institutions. Those Standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Statement of Receipts and Payments is free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the Statement of Receipts and Payments. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the Statement of 
Receipts and Payments in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the 
Statement of Receipts and Payments.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion.

14lh Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0836 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

Opening Cash Balance - Rs 27,696

The Village Council of Roche Terre was under the jurisdiction of the ex-Pamplemousses/ 
Riviere du Rempart District Council until 31 December 2012. Accounts for The Village 
Council of Roche Terre for the years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 were not 
prepared. The Cash balance on 1 January 2015 could not be ascertained.

No bank reconciliations were performed to ascertain the completeness and accuracy of Cash 
in Hand and at Bank. Counterfoils of cheques were not available.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the attached Statement of Receipts and Payments give a true and fair view 
of the receipts and payments of The Village Council of Roche Terre for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2015 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Mauritius and in compliance with the Local Government Act.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14, Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

8 October 2019
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF GRAND GAUBE

Statement of Receipts and Payment for the year ended 31 December 2015
DATE RECEIPTS | RS PAYMENTS RS |
1.01.15 Balance b/f 35684.37 Councillors Allowances 387 270
14.02.15 DCN Subsidy 29997 Goods & Services 12136.69
13.05.15 DCN Subsidy I 10 000 Organisation of Activities 16235
18.06.15 DCNSubsidy 47839

Councillors Allowances 387270

Balance as at 31.12.15 95148.68

j 510790.37 J
________________

510790.37|

N.DABEEDOAL(MRS)
Ag. Assistant Chief Executive

ND/Inc&Exp/AgAce/NO
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REIV1PART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF MAPOU

Statement of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
DATE RECEIPTS RS PAYMENTS RS
1.01.15 Balance b/f 101,688.43 Councillors Allowance 387,270.00

Organisation of Activities 134 032.88
14.02.15 DCN Subsidy 10,000.00
01.05.15 DCN Subsidy 10,000.00
18.06.15 DCNSubsidy 70,000.00

Councillors Allowance 387,270.00

Balance as at 31.12.15 57,655.55

578,958.43 578,958.43

Date:
Assistant Chief Executive
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF PETIT RAFFRAY

Statement of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
| DATE [RECEIPTS I RS [PAYMENTS RS I

11.01.15 Balance b/f 1943.07 Councillors Allowances 370190
I
2.2.15 DCN Subsidy 6000 Goods & Services .64753
14.2.15 DCN Subsidy 28334 Organisation of Activities 41496

4.5.15 DCNSubsidy 10000

18.6.15 DCNSubsidy 54279

29.9.15 DCNSubsidy 16592

Councillors Allowances 370190

Balance as at 31.12.15 10899.07

487338.07 487338.07

N.DABEEDOAL(MRS)
Ag. Assistant Chief Executive

ND/ lnc& Exp/ Ag Ace/ND
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF PITON

Statemeni of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
DATE RECEIPTS RS PAYMENTS RS
1.01.15 Balance b/f 31,576.09 Councillors Allowance 418,990.00
02.02.15 DCN Subsidy 4000 Goods & Services 35,267.00
14.02.15 DCN Subsidy 28,334.00 Organisation of Activities 75,794.00
01.05.15 DCN Subsidy 10,000.00
18.06.15 DCNSubsidy 45,582.00
31.08.15 DCN Subsidy 11,400.00

Councillors Allowance 418,990.00 Balance as at 31.12.15 19,831.09

549,882.09 549,882.09

Date:...........................................
Assistant Chief Executive
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF PLAINES DES ROCHES

Statemen of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
DATE RECEIPTS RS PAYMENTS RS
1.01.15 Balance b/f 36,593.73 Councillors Allowance 374 658

Goods & Services 27,029.10
14.02.15 DCN Subsidy 21,667.00 Organisation of Activities 35,400.00
01.05.15 DCN Subsidy 10,000.00
18.06.15 DCNSubsidy 22,751.00

Councillors Allowance 374,658.00

Balance as at 31.12.15 28,582.63

465,669.73 465,669.73

Date:...........
Assistant Chief Executive
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF POUDRE D’OR VILLAGE

Statement of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
DATE RECEIPTS I RS PAYMENTS RS

1.01.15 Balance b/f 70933.43 Councillors Allowances 387270

01.01.15 DCN Subsidy 26667 Goods & Services 13330
14.05.15 DCN Subsidy 10 000 Organisation of Activities 58468

18.6.15 DCNSubsidy 41984

Councillors Allowances 387270

Balance as at 31.12.15 77786.43

•
536854.463 536854.43

N.DABEEDOALXMRS)
Ag. Assistant Chief Executive

ND/ lnc& Exp/ Ag Ace/ND
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF POUDRE D’OR HAMLET

Statement of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
DATE RECEIPTS RS PAYMENTS RS
1.01.15 Balance b/f 72,664.04 Councillors Allowance 387,270.00
13.01.15 DCN Subsidy 4000 Goods & Services 29,271.00
14.02.15 DCN Subsidy 22,667.00 Organisation of Activities 30,908.20
01.05.15 DCN Subsidy 10,000.00
18.06.15 DCNSubsidy 33,724.00

Councillors Allowance 387,270.00

Balance as at 31.12.15 82,875.84

530,325.04 530,325.04

Date:..........H.j

Assistant Chief Executive
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

Statemen of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
DATE RECEIPTS RS PAYMENTS RS
1.01.15 Balance b/f 96,795.27 Allowance for Councillors 355550

Goods & Services 31135
14.02.15 DCN Subsidy 40000 Organisation of Activities 110156
01.05.15 DCN Subsidy 25000
18.06.15 DCNSubsidy 96458

Allowance for Councillors 355550

Balance as at 31.12.15 116,962.27

613803.27 613803.27

Assistant Chief Executive
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THE DJSTR5CT COUNC8L OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF ROCHE TERRE

Statement of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
| DATE [RECEIPTS RS PAYMENTS RS

1.01.15 |Balance b/f 27696.12 Councillors Allowances 390446

13.0.15 DCN Subsidy 2000 Goods & Services 8631
15.2.15 DCN Subsidy 20862 Organisation of Activities 48677

11.5.15 DCNSubsidy 10000

18.6.15 DCNSubsidy 30444

Councillors Allowances 390446

Balance as at 31.12.15 33694.12
481448.12 481448.12,

Ag. Assistant Chief Executive

ND/ Inca Exp/ Ag Ace/NO
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF ROCHES NOIRES

Statemen of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
DATE RECEIPTS RS PAYMENTS RS
1.01.15 Balance b/f 13,914.92 Councillors Allowance 387,270.00

Goods & Services 34,416.00
14.02.15 DCN Subsidy 28,334.00 Organisation of Activities 49,979.00
01.05.15 DCN Subsidy 10,000.00
18.06.15 DCNSubsidy 48,007.00

Councillors Allowance 387,270.00

Balance as at 31.12.15 15,860.92

487,525.92 487,525.92

Date:
Assistant Chief Executive
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THE DSSTRJCT COUNCIL OF RMERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF VALE

Statement of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
[DATE (RECEIPTS I RS PAYMENTS ! Rs I
1.01.15 (Balance b/f | 7449.29 Councillors Allowances 387270

14.2.15 DCN Subsidy 20000 Goods & Services 8380
1.5.15 DCN Subsidy 10000 Organisation of Activities 48191.93

18.6.15 DCNSubsidy 32418
—

Councillors Allowances 387270

Balance as at 31.12.15 13295.36

I 457137.29
457137.29|

N.DABEEDOAL(MRS)
Ag. Assistant Chief Executive

ND/ lnc& Exp/ Ag Ace/ND
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF AMAURY

Statemen of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
DATE RECEIPTS RS PAYMENTS RS
1.01.15 Balance b/f 1,984.31 Councillors Allowance 384,568.00

Organisation of Activities 31,021.40
14.02.15 DCN Subsidy 10,000.00
01.05.15 ' DCN Subsidy 10,000.00
18.06.15 DCNSubsidy 13,544.00

Councillors Allowance 384,568.00

Balance as at 31.12.15 4,506.91

420,096.31 420,096.31

K.TARQJIAH (Mrs)
Assistant Chief Executive
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF AM1TIE/GOKHOOLA

Statemen of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
DATE RECEIPTS RS PAYMENTS RS
1.01.15 Balance b/f 18,038.27 Councillors Allowance 371,860.00
14.02.15 DCN Subsidy 10,000.00
01.05.15 DCN Subsidy 10,000.00 Organisation of Activities 21,331.80
01.06.15 DCNSubsidy 14,078.00
15.07.15 DCN Subsidy 14,233.00
29.09.15 DCN Subsidy 3,000.00

Councillors Allowance 371 860

Balance as at 31.12.15 48,017.47

441,209.27 441,209.27
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF BELLE VUE MAUREL

Statemen of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
DATE RECEIPTS RS PAYMENTS RS
1.01.15 Balance b/f 41,665.12 Councillors Allowance 360,824.00

Goods & Services 56,830.00
14.02.15 DCN Subsidy 29,000.00 Organisation of Activities 50,000.00
01.05.15 DCN Subsidy 10,000.00
18.06.15 DCNSubsidy 47,350.00

Councillors Allowance 360,824.00

Balance as at 31.12.15 21,185.12

488,839.12 488,839.12

Date:............ IU. Qty./.{■£.

zd
K.TAF^loL 4H (Mrs)
Assistant Chief Executive
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF CAP MALHEUREUX

S ta te m ent of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
[date IRECEIPTS | RS PAYMENTS I
jl.01.15 Balance b/f 8769.1 Councillors Allowances 387270
—14.02.15 DCN Subsidy 31334 Goods & Services 12974
13.05.15 DCN Subsidy 10 000 Organisation of Activities 38885

5.06.15 DCNSubsidy 51867

Councillors Allowances 387270

Balance as at 31.12.15 50111.1

489240.1 489240.1]

Ag. Assistant Chief Executive

ND/ lnc& Exp/ Ag Ace/ND
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF COTTAGE

Statement of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
DATE RECEIPTS RS PAYMENTS RS
1.01.15 Balance b/f 64,643.65 Councillors Allowance 387,270.00
02.02.15 DCN Subsidy 7,500.00 Goods & Services 19,925.00
14.02.15 DCN Subsidy 22,334.00 Organisation of Activities 33,500.00
01.05.15 DCN Subsidy 10,000.00
18.06.15 DCNSubsidy 33,786.00

Councillors Allowance 387,270.00

Balance as at 31.12.15 84,838.65

525,533.65 525,533.65

Date:
Assistant Chief Executive
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF ESPERANCE TREBUCHET

Statement
IdateZ—

of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
RECEIPTS RS PAYMENTS RS

1.01.15 Balance b/f 40,751.03 Councillors Allowance _ 387,270.00
Goods & Services 19,102.00

14.02.15 DCN Subsidy 26,667.00 Organisation of Activities 67,760.00
01.05.15 DCN Subsidy 10,000.00
18.06.15 DCNSubsidy 42,268.00

Councillors Allowance 387,270.00

Balance as at 31.12.15 32,824.03

506,926.03 506,956.03

Date:.............
Assistant Chief Executive
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THE D8STR8CT COUNCSL OF R8V5ERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF GOODLANDS

Statement of Receipts and Payment for the year ending 31 December 2015
| DATE (RECEIPTS I RS IPAYMENTS I RS I
1.01.15 Balance b/f | 27584.07 | Councillors Allowances I 354630.65 I

2.02.15 DCN Subsidy 51900 Goods & Services 9696.76
14.2.15 DCN Subsidy 56417 Organisation of Activities 229074.51

11.3.15 DCNSubsidy 6000

1.1.15 DCNSubsidy 50000

18.6.15 DCNSubsidy 92168

Councillors Allowances 354630.65

Balance as at 31.12.15 45297.8

638699.72 638699.72

N.DABEEdOAL(MRS)
Ag. Assistant Chief Executive

ND/inc & Exp/ Ag Ace/ND
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART

THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF GRAND BAY

Statement of Receipts and Payment for the year ended 31 December 2015
IDATE RECEIPTS RS PAYMENTS RS I
1.01.15 Balance b/f 37424.3 Councillors Allowances 355550
14.02.15 DCN Subsidy 41667 Goods & Services 14500
13.05.15 DCN Subsidy 25000 Organisation of Activities 135720.65
18.06.15 DCNSubsidy 89079

Councillors Allowances 355550

Balance as at 31.12.15 42949.65

548720.3 548720.3

N.DABEEDOAL(MRS)
Ag. Assistant Chief Executive

ND/ lnc& Exp/ Ag Ace/ND

(Rec. No. 18/145339)
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